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Date: 14th February, 2025 

 

To, 

 

The Corporate Services Dept.   National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., 

BSE Ltd. Exchange Plaza, 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Dalal Street, Bandra (E), 

Mumbai- 400 001. Mumbai- 400 051 

 

Security Code: 532456                 Symbol: COMPINFO 

ISIN: INE070C01037 

 

Dear Sir,  

Sub: Submission of the 24th Annual Report of Compuage Infocom Limited for the Financial 

Year 2022-23 

Dear Sir / Ma’am,  

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing herewith copy of 24th Annual Report 

of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. This is to inform you that the 24th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held on Monday, 10th March, 2025 at 11.00 AM IST 

through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means.  

We request you to take the above information on record.  

Thanking you,  

Yours faithfully,  

FOR Compuage Infocom Limited (Under CIRP) 

 

 

Gajesh Labhchand Jain 

Resolution Professional in the matter of M/s Compuage Infocom Limited vide Hon’ble NCLT order 

dated 29.04.2024, received on 09.05.2024. 

Reg. No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019 -2020/12588 

AFA Validity: 31/12/2025 

Reg. Address with IBBI: D-501, Clifton Society, Raviraj Oberoi Marg, Shastri Nagar, Andheri 

(west), 

Mumbai 400053 
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Project-specific address for correspondence: C-602, Remi Biz Court, Off Veera Desai road, Azad 

Nagar, Andheri west, Mumbai -400053 

Reg. Email ID with IBBI: gajeshjain@gmail.com 

Project specific email ID for correspondence: cirp.compuage@gmail.com 

(Compuage Infocom Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code 2016. Its affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution 

Professional, Mr. Gajesh Labhchand Jain, appointed under the provisions of the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code 2016.) 

 

Encl.: As Above 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 24th Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company will be held on 

Monday, 10th March, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. for the financial year 2022-2023 through Video Conference (“VC”)/ 

Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM”) (hereinafter referred to as “electronic mode”) to transact the following 

business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: - 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 

Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, along with the Reports of the Board of Directors 

and the Auditors thereon;  

 

 

FOR Compuage Infocom Limited (Under CIRP) 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Gajesh Labhchand Jain 

Resolution Professional in the matter of M/s Compuage Infocom Limited vide Hon’ble NCLT order 

dated 29.04.2024, received on 09.05.2024. 

Reg. No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019 -2020/12588 

AFA Validity: 31/12/2025 

Reg. Address with IBBI: D-501, Clifton Society, Raviraj Oberoi Marg, Shastri Nagar, Andheri (west), 

Mumbai 400053 

Project-specific address for correspondence: C-602, Remi Biz Court, Off Veera Desai road, Azad 

Nagar, Andheri west, Mumbai -400053 

Reg. Email ID with IBBI: gajeshjain@gmail.com 

Project specific email ID for correspondence: cirp.compuage@gmail.com 

(Compuage Infocom Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code 2016. Its affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution Professional, Mr. Gajesh 

Labhchand Jain, appointed under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.) 

 

 

 

Date: 14th February, 2025 

 

Place: Mumbai 
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NOTES: 

1. In view of the continuing global outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to 

be followed. Accordingly, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (hereinafter referred to as “MCA”) vide 

its General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 

2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th 

January, 2021, General Circular No. 19/2021 dated 8th December, 2021, General Circular No. 

21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021 and General Circular 02/2022 dated 5th May, 2022, (collectively 

referred to as “MCA Circulars”), permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (hereinafter 

referred to as “AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a 

common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred 

to as “Act”), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”) and MCA 

Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The proceedings of AGM 

shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 309, A to Z 

Industrial Estate Ganpatrao Kadam Marg Lower Parel, Mumbai Delisle Road Mumbai Mumbai -

400013. 

 
2. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12th May, 2020, SEBI 

Circular dated 15th January, 2021, SEBI Circular dated 13th May, 2022 (hereinafter referred to as 

“SEBI Circulars”), this Notice along with the Annual Report 2022-23, is being sent only through 

electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / 

depositories. 

 

3. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND 

VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS 

/ HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE 

THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC / OAVM, 

THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED 

WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS AND THE SEBI 

CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL 

NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP 

AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE. 

 

4. The Members can join the AGM through VC / OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after 

the scheduled time of the commencement of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in this 

Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be made available to at 

least 1000 Members on a first come first served basis as per the MCA Circulars. This will not include 

large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 

Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Auditors, etc., who are allowed to attend the AGM 

without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

5. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 

quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

6. Ms. Dhruti Satia, Practicing Company Secretary, (COP No.: 21346 & ACS No.: 45096), has been 

appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize 

the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
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7. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to 

send a scanned copy (PDF / JPG Format) of its Board or governing body resolution / authorization 

etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote 

through remote e-Voting. The said resolution / authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email 

through its registered email address to dhruti@dsatia.in with a copy marked to 

info@compuageindia.com. 

 

8. Details under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard–2 on General 

Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Director seeking 

re-appointment at the AGM, form integral part of this Notice. 

 

9. Members may note that this Notice and the Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the 

Company‟s website at www.compuageindia.com, websites of the stock exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as “BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter 

referred to as “NSE”) at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. 

 

10. As per Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, as amended, requests for transfer, transmission and 

transposition of securities of listed companies shall be effected only in dematerialized form. In view 

of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to 

dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company‟s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, 

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited) (hereinafter 

referred to as “RTA / MIIPL”) at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in for assistance in this regard. 

 

11. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 4 days prior to meeting 

mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company 

email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send 

their queries in advance 4 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 

number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the 

company suitably by email.Queries that remain unanswered at the AGM will be appropriately 

responded by the Company at the earliest post the conclusion of the AGM. 

 

12. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. 

 

13. Members are requested to :- 

i. Intimate to the RTA of the Company immediately, about any change in their address, where 

the shares are held in electronic form, such change is to be informed to the DPs and not to 

the Company / RTA. 

ii. Quote Registered Folio no. or DP ID / Client ID no. in all their correspondence. 

iii. Approach the RTA of the Company for consolidation of folios. 

iv. Avail Nomination facility by filing in form SH-13 in accordance with Section 72 of the Act 

and forward the same to the RTA, if not done. (Applicable for those holding shares in 

physical form). 

v. Send all share transfer lodgments (physical mode) / correspondence to the RTA of the 

Company. 

RTA DETAILS: 

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited) 
C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai-400 083. 
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14. The Company‟s shares are listed on BSE and NSE and applicable listing fees have been paid upto 

the date. 

 

15. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email 

address, telephone / mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination, power of attorney registration, 

Bank Mandate details, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA 

in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio number and enclosing the self-attested 

supporting document. Further, Members may note that SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN 

by every participant in securities market. 

 

 

16. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 

Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also 

advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should 

be obtained from the concerned DPs and holdings should be verified from time to time. 

 

17. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes its Member after the sending of this 

Notice and holds shares as on the cut-off date for e-Voting, i.e., Monday, 03rd March, 2025, may 

obtain the Login ID and Password by sending a request to enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com However, 

if he / she is already registered with MIIPL for remote e-Voting then he / she can use his / her existing 

User ID and password for casting the vote. 

 

18. Voting through Electronic means: 

 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Amendment Rules, 2015, and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to 

provide the Members with facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be 

considered at the AGM by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting 

Services. The facility of casting the votes by the Members using an electronic voting system during 

the AGM will be provided by MIIPL. 

I. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-Voting prior to the AGM may also attend 

/ participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

II. The remote e-Voting period commences on Thursday, 06th March, 2025, 9:00 Hours IST and 

ends on Sunday, 09th March, 2025, 05.00 PM. During this period, Members of the Company 

holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date for 

e-Voting, i.e., Monday, 03rd March, 2025, may cast their vote by remote e-Voting. The 

remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by MIIPL for voting thereafter. 

III. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to 

change it subsequently. The voting rights of the Members (for voting through remote e-

Voting before the AGM and e-Voting during the AGM) shall be in proportion to their share 

of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the Monday, 03rd March, 2025. 

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions passed by remote e-Voting 

are deemed to have been passed as if they have been passed at the AGM, i.e., Monday, 10th 

March, 2025. 

IV. A person whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 

Owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e., Monday, 03rd March, 

2025, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting before the AGM as well as e-

Voting during the AGM. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual 

Shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company 

after the dispatch of this Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date, i.e., Monday, 03rd 

March, 2025, may obtain the User ID and password by duly following the procedure as 

mentioned. 

V. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting 
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is to be held, allow voting, by use of e-Voting system for all those Members who are present 

during the AGM through VC / OAVM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote 

e-Voting facility. The e-Voting module during the AGM shall be disabled by MIIPL for 

voting 30 minutes after the conclusion of the AGM. 

 

19. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes its Member after the sending of this 

Notice and holds shares as on the cut-off date for e-Voting, i.e., Monday, 03rd March, 2025, may 

obtain the Login ID and Password by sending a request to enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com. However, 

if he / she is already registered with MIIPL for remote e-Voting then he / she can use his / her existing 

User ID and password for casting the vote. 

 

REMOTE E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories 

and Depository Participants.  

 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to access 

e-Voting facility.  

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:  

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL 

 

METHOD 1 - Individual Shareholders registered with NSDL IDeAS facility  

 

Shareholders who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:  

 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”.  

b) Enter User ID and Password. Click on “Login” 

c) After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. 

Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.  

d) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be 

redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 

OR  

 

Shareholders who have not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:  

 

a) To register, visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and select  “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.  

c) Post successful registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password.  

d) After successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.  

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be 

redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

  

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL 
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a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com   

b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.  

c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen.  

a) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you will be 

able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services.  

b) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be 

redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL 

 

METHOD 1 – Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility 

 

Shareholders who have registered/ opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 

a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or www.cdslindia.com.  

b) Click on New System Myeasi Tab 

c) Login with existing my easi username and password  

d) After successful login, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will have links of e-

voting service providers i.e., MUFG InTime, for voting during the remote e-voting period.  

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be 

redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

OR 

 

Shareholders who have not registered for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 

a) To register, visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration / 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.  

c) Post registration, user will be provided username and password.  

d) After successful login, user able to see e-voting menu.  

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be 

redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

  

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of CDSL 

 

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com 

b) Go to e-voting tab.  

c) Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”. 

d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in Demat 

Account  

e) After successful authentication, click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside 

Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote 

e-voting period.  

 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant 
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Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

depository participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-voting facility.  

 

a) Login to DP website 

b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option.   

c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository website after successful 

authentication, wherein user can see e-voting feature. 

d) After successful authentication, click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside 

Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote 

e-voting period.  

 

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode /  

Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

 

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for InstaVote as under: 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in  

 

Shareholders who have not registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

 

b) Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details:  

 

A. User ID:  

NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.  

CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form – User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with 

the Company.  

B. PAN:  

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN)  

(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall 

use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.  

 

C. DOB/DOI:  

Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company 

- in DD/MM/YYYY format)  

 

D. Bank Account Number:  

Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company. 

 

*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above 

**Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide 

their Folio number in ‘D’ above 

 

❖ Set the password of your choice  

(The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character (!#$&*), at least 

one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).  

❖ Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 

❖ Click “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote).  

 

Shareholders who have registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 
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c) Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.  

 

A. User ID: Enter your User ID 

B. Password: Enter your Password 

C. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 

D. Click “Submit” 

 

d) Cast your vote electronically: 

 

A. After successful login, you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”.  

B. Select ‘View’ icon.  

C. E-voting page will appear.  

D. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / 

Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).  

E. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.  

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to 

change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.  

 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”) 

 

STEP 1 – Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in   

b) Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”  

c) Fill up your entity details and submit the form.  

d) A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email ID 

(which is filled at the time of sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, 

Director, Company Secretary of the entity & stamped and sent to insta.vote@linkintime.co.in.   

e) Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to Primary contact person’s 

email ID. (You have now registered on InstaVote) 

 

STEP 2 – Investor Mapping  

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials.  

b) Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section  

c) Map the Investor with the following details:  

 

A. ‘Investor ID’ –  

i. NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

i.e., IN00000012345678 

ii. CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

B. ‘Investor’s Name - Enter Investor’s Name as updated with DP.  

C. ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN.  

D. ‘Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney.  

 

*File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be – DP ID and Client ID or 16 Digit 

Beneficiary ID. Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signatures.  

 

E. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual 

Fund Entity). The same can be viewed under the “Report Section”.   
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STEP 3 – Voting through remote e-voting 

 

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting period.  

 

METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY  

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials.  

b) Click on “Votes Entry” tab under the Menu section.  

c) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote.  

Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under “On-going Events”.   

d) Enter “16-digit Demat Account No.” for which you want to cast vote.  

e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / 

Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).  

f) After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.  

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to 

change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.  

 

OR  

 

METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials. 

b) After successful login, you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”.    

c) Select “View” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number”.  

d) E-voting page will appear.  

e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote File” tab.  

f) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in the sample vote file and upload the 

same under “Upload Vote File” option.  

g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed.  

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently). 

 

Helpdesk: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at 

enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type  Helpdesk details  
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Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 

by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 

by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

toll free no. 1800 22 55 33  

 

Forgot Password: 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot 

Password” option available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

▪ Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

▪ Click “forgot password?”  

▪ Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  

▪ Click on “SUBMIT”. 

 

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 

Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the particulars of the 

Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. The password 

should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least 

one alphabet and at least one capital letter.  

 

User ID:  

NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.  

CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form – User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the 

Company.  

 

In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both 

then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

▪ Click on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” tab  

▪ Click “forgot password?”  

▪ Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  

▪ Click on “SUBMIT”. 

 

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 

Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the particulars of the 

Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI etc. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, 

at least one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password:  

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password 

or both, then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above 

mentioned depository/ depository participants website. 

 

❖ It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential.  
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❖ For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

❖ During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the 

resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 

 

 

LOGIN METHOD FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO ATTEND THE GENERAL MEETING THROUGH 

INSTAMEET: 

 

e) Visit URL: https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com & click on “Login”.  

 

f) Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details:  

 

E. Demat Account No. or Folio No:  

Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 

8 Digit Client ID.  

Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form – shall provide Folio Number.  

F. PAN:  

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN)  

(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall 

use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.  

G. Mobile No: Enter your Mobile No.  

H. Email ID: Enter your email Id as recorded with your DP/ Company. 

 

g) Click “Go to Meeting”  

You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for the meeting. 

 

 

Instructions for shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

 

a) Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request with the company.  

b) Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the 

company.  

c) Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. Please 

remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode 

and audio of your device. 

d) Other shareholder who has not registered as “Speaker Shareholder” may still ask questions to the 

panellist via active chat-board during the meeting. 

 

*Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name 

and serial number for speaking.  

 

 

Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

 

Once the electronic voting is activated during the meeting, shareholders who have not exercised their vote through 

the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 

  

a) On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote” 

b) Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 

registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET  
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c) Click on 'Submit'.  

d) After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ 

Against” for voting.  

e) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of 

shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against'. 

f) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click 

on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, 

else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. Once you confirm your 

vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently. 

 

Note:  

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not 

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall 

be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting.  

 

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the General Meeting will be eligible 

to attend/ participate in the General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again 

during the meeting.  

 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through 

broadband for better experience. 

 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is 

therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

Helpdesk: 

 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by sending a request at 

instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000 / 4918 6175. 

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS: 

 

I. A Member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-Voting 

but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM. 

 

II. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of Members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e., Monday, 03rd March, 2025., only shall be 

entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting as well as e-Voting at the AGM. 

 

III. During the voting period, Shareholders can login any number of time till they have voted on the 

resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 

IV. Shareholders holding multiple folios / demat account shall choose the voting process separately for 

each of the folios / demat account. 

 

V. In case the Shareholders have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting, please refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (FAQs) and Instavote e-Voting manual available at 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or write an email to 
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enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or Call us :- Tel : +91 (022) – 4918 6000. 

 

VI. The Chairman shall, during the AGM / at the end of discussion / after every business item for the 

resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by way of 

e- Voting system for the purpose of conducting a poll for all those Members who are present at the 

AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-Voting facility. 

 

VII. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman or to any other person authorized by the 

Chairman after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-Voting (votes cast during the AGM and votes 

casted through remote e-Voting), not later than 2 working days from the conclusion of the AGM. The 

result declared along with the Scrutinizer‟s report shall be communicated to BSE, NSE and RTA and 

will also be displayed on the Company‟s website at www.compuageindia.com and on the RTA‟s 

website at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. 

 

VIII. The voting results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of 

the Company www.compuageindia.com immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman 

or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the stock 

exchanges. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

 

To, 

Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors hereby present the 24th Annual Report on the business and operations of your Company along 

with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. 

 

An application for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of Compuage Infocom Limited was filed by Plus 

Plus Unified Engaugement Services Private Limited under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016, (“Code”) being CP No. CP(IB)329/MB/2023. The said application was admitted by the Hon’ble NCLT, 

Mumbai Bench vide Order dated 02.11.2023 (“CIRP Order”) and Mr. Arun Kapoor was appointed as the Interim 

Resolution Professional (IRP). Further, the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench has passed an order dated 29.04.2024 

(order received on 09.05.2024), to replace IRP Mr. Arun Kapoor (IBBI/IPA-003/IP-N00030/2017-18/10230) 

and has appointed Mr. Gajesh Labhchand Jain (Registration no. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019-2020/12588) 

as new Resolution Professional (RP) under the Code in matter of CIRP of M/s Compuage Infocom Limited 

 

 

The powers of Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended effective from the CIRP commencement 

date and such powers along with the management of affairs of the Company are vested with the IRP/ RP in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 17 and 23 of the Insolvency Code read with Regulation 15(2A) & (2B) 

of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015.  

 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

 

The highlights of the Financial Results are as tabulated below: 

          (Rs. in Lakh)     

Particulars 

Standalone Consolidated 

31st March, 

2023 

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2023 31st March, 

2022 

Revenue from 

Operations & Other 

Income 

3,74,551.18 4,22,395.14 3,74,551.18 4,22,395.14 

Total Expenses 3,94,673.33 4,18,728.93 3,94,676.33 4,18,731.06 

Finance Costs 7379.13 7442.99 7379.13 7442.99 

Depreciation  307.71 340.69 307.71 340.69 

Profit before 

exceptional items and 

tax 

(20,122.15) - (20,125.15) 3664.08 

Profit before Tax  (20,122.15) 3666.21 (20,125.15) 3,664.08 

Less: Tax Expense (141.09) 989.23 (141.09) 989.23 

Profit after Tax 

Provision  

(19,981.06) 2676.98 (19,984.06) 2,674.85 

Less: Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

(65.14) (20.61) (65.14) (2.10) 

Total 

Comprehensive 

Income for the year 

(20,046.20) 2674.88 (20,049.20) 2,672.17 

EPS (Basic) (28.16) 4.12 (28.16) 4.11 

EPS (Diluted) (28.16) 4.12 (28.16) 4.11 
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2. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:  

 

Standalone: 

During this year, your Company has achieved a turnover of Rs. 3,73,948.47 Lakhs as against Rs. 4,20,750.18 

Lakhs in the previous year. Your Company has incurred loss of Rs.  19,981.06 Lakhs as compared to last year 

profit of Rs. 2676.98 Lakhs. 

 

Consolidated: 

During this year, your Company has achieved a turnover of Rs. 3,73,948.47 Lakhs as against Rs. 4,20,750.18 

Lakhs in the previous year. Your Company has incurred loss of Rs. 19,984.06 Lakhs as compared to last year’s 

profit of Rs. 2674.85 Lakhs. 

 

3. DIVIDEND:  

 

In view of the net loss incurred by the Company for the financial year, no dividend is recommended. 

 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

  

In view of the losses incurred by the Company, no amount has been transferred to reserves. 

 

5. MATERIAL CHANGES POST CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

An application for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of Compuage Infocom Limited was filed by Plus 

Plus Unified Engaugement Services Private Limited under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016, (“Code”) being CP No. CP(IB)329/MB/2023. The said application was admitted by the Hon’ble NCLT, 

Mumbai Bench vide Order dated 02.11.2023 (“CIRP Order”) and Mr. Arun Kapoor was appointed as the Interim 

Resolution Professional (IRP). Further, the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench has passed an order dated 29.04.2024 

(order received on 09.05.2024), to replace IRP Mr. Arun Kapoor (IBBI/IPA-003/IP-N00030/2017-18/10230) 

and has appointed Mr. Gajesh Labhchand Jain (Registration no. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019-2020/12588) 

as new Resolution Professional (RP) under the Code in matter of CIRP of M/s Compuage Infocom Limited. 

 

6. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY: 

 

Compuage Infocom (S) Pte. Ltd.: 

 

Compuage Infocom (S) Pte. Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. There was no business activity 

in the Subsidiary Company during the year as the Company has transferred its business to its Singapore Branch.  

 

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “Act”), a statement 

containing salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC-1 is appended as 

Annexure “A” to the Directors’ Report.  

 

Further, no new subsidiary was acquired nor any subsidiary ceased to exist during the year under review. 

 

7. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary, prepared in accordance with the Act 

and applicable Accounting Standards along with all relevant documents and the Auditors’ Report, form part of 

the Annual Report. 

 

Pursuant to Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the subsidiary are kept open for inspection of the 

Shareholders at the Registered Office of the Company.  
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8. SHARE CAPITAL: 

        

The Company has allotted 2,07,92,258 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each at a price of Rs. 20 each (including a 

premium of Rs. 18/-per equity share) on a rights basis to the eligible equity shareholders of the company as on 

08th December, 2022. 

 

Hence, Company’s paid up capital is increased from 6,49,75,806 Equity shares of Rs. 2/- each to 8,57,68,064 

Equity shares of Rs. 2/-each during the under review. 

 

Capital Structure of the Company during the under review as below: 

 

a] Authorized Capital: The Authorized share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 stood at ` 3030.07 

lakhs comprising of 9,62,70,000 Equity shares of Rs. 2/- each, 46,65,600 Preference shares of Rs.0.10 each and 

1,10,00,000 Preference shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

 

[b] Paid-up Capital: The paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 stood at 1715.36  lakhs 

comprising of 8,57,68,064 shares of Rs. 2/- each 

 

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

Directors: 

 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 02 November, 2023 had initiated the CIRP Proceedings against the 

Company and pursuant to Section 17 of the IBC, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood 

suspended, and such powers are vested with the Resolution Professional, Mr. Gajesh Labhchand Jain. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 comprised of: 

 

(i) Two Executive Directors- Mr. Atul H. Mehta (DIN: 00716869) (Chairman and Managing Director) and 

Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta (DIN: 00740861) (Whole-Time Director) and Chief Financial Officer and Chief 

Operating officer. 

(ii)  Non-Executive Independent Director- Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt (DIN: 02343351) 

 

Resignation/ Cessation : 

 

During year the Review FY 2022-23, Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh (DIN: 00010877) resigned from the post of Non-

Executive Independent Directors w.e.f. 14th March, 2023. Further, Ms. Hetal Kudecha (DIN: 09148116), Mr. 

Vijay Agarwal (DIN: 00058548), resigned from the post of Non-Executive Independent Directors with effect 

from 29th March, 2023. 

 

Further, Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt (DIN: 02343351), resigned from the post of Non-Executive Independent Director 

w.e.f. 02nd May, 2023. 

 

Further Mr. Santosh Laxman More (DIN: 10135133) was appointed as an Independent Additional Director w.e.f 

28th April, 2023.However, he resigned from the post of Independent Additional Director w.e.f.14th August, 2023. 

 

Thereafter, Mr. Santosh Laxman More (DIN: 10135133) was appointed as Independent Additional Director 

w.e.f.26th October, 2023 and he resigned from the post of Independent Additional Director w.e.f.02nd November, 

2023. 

 

Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel of 

the Company as on date 31st March, 2023: 
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• Mr. Atul H. Mehta – Managing Director 

• Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta – Whole-Time Director 

 

Mr. Sunil Mehta resigned from the position of Chief Financial Officer with effect from 28th February, 2022 due 

to prolonged health issues. Thereafter, Mr. Bhavesh Mehta is appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the company 

with effect from 26th August, 2022 during the year under review. 

 

Further, Ms. Hasti Pala resigned from the position of Company Secretary with effect from 30th March, 2023 during 

the year under review. 

 

10. BOARD EVALUATION: 

 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board, Committees and 

Individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate Governance requirements as 

prescribed in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”). 

 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis 

of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, roles and responsibilities, monitoring of programs, 

execution and performance of duties and obligations, etc. 

 

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee 

Members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of Committees, comprehensiveness of the 

discussions, effectiveness of Committee’s recommendation for the decision making of the Board, etc. 

 

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the Individual 

Directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the Individual Director to the Board and Committee 

meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in 

meetings, knowledge acquired with regard to the Company’s business, understanding of industry and global 

trends, etc. 

 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of the 

Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated. Performance evaluation of Independent 

Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated. 

 

The outcome of Board and Directors’ evaluation showed positive ratings in terms of level of commitment and 

engagement by all the Directors.  

 

11. BOARD MEETINGS: 

 

The Board met 10 times during this financial year, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance 

Report appended as Annexure “B” to the Directors’ Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was 

within the period prescribed under the Act and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations. 

 

12. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence 

as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(b) of the Listing Regulations. 

 

 

 

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility] Rules, 

2014, as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility 
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[“CSR”] Committee under the Chairmanship of Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh, Non Executive Independent Director. The 

other members of the Committee are Mr. Vijay Agarwal,  Non-Executive Independent Director and Mr. Bhavesh 

H. Mehta, Whole-Time Director. Your Company also has in place a CSR policy and the same is available on your 

Company’s website at www.compuageindia.com. During the year under review, the Company was required to 

spend Rs. 67.77 Lakhs towards CSR initiatives. The CSR Committee has approved the activities to be undertaken 

for spending CSR towards promotion of healthcare. During the financial year 2022-23, the Company has spent 

the amount of Rs. 16.00 Lakhs towards CSR initiatives. The Company was unable to spent Rs. 51.77 Lakhs on 

CSR activities due to liquidity issue.  

 

The Report on CSR activities as required under the Companies [Corporate Social Responsibility] Rules, 2014, as 

amended from time to time, is annexed as Annexure-“C” forming part of this Report 

 

14. ANNUAL RETURN: 

 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, copy of the Annual Return of the Company 

prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Act read with Rule 11 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 is placed on the website of the Company at www.compuageindia.com. 

 

15. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:           

 

A separate report on Corporate Governance regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated in Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with 

the Stock Exchanges, are enclosed as appended as “Annexure “B” forming part of this Report. 

 

16. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 

 

A report on Management Discussion and Analysis which includes details on the state of affairs of the Company 

as required under the Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Listing Regulations forms part of the Annual Report. 

 

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 

outgo, as required under the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given hereunder: 

A. Conservation of energy: 

 

Your Company is primarily engaged in marketing and trading activities and has not consumed energy of any 

significant level and hence no additional investment is required to be made for reduction of energy consumption. 

However, the Company will continue with its efforts to conserve the energy. 

 

B. Technology absorption: 

 

The Company’s operations do not require significant absorption of technology. 

 

C. Earnings And Outgo in Foreign Exchange:  

          (Rs. in Lakh) 

 

 

18. PREVENTION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARRASSEMENT AT WORK PLACE:  

 

Particulars Standalone and  Consolidated 

Current Year (in Rs.) Previous Year (in Rs.) 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 0.00 0.00 

Foreign Exchange Outgo 0.00 2.37 
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The Company has a Policy on “Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place” and matters connected 

therewith or incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Work Place (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013. Your Directors state that during the year under 

review, no cases were filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013.  

 

The Company has submitted an Annual Report to the District Women and Child Development Office stating that 

there were no complaints in the Company with respect to sexual harassment at workplace. The Company has an 

Internal Complaints Committee in place in accordance with the provisions under the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

 

19. HUMAN CAPITAL 

 

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 is annexed herewith as Annexure “D” and forms part of this Report. 

 

Relations with employees remained to be cordial. Your Company had 599 employees as of 31st March 2023. 

 

20. INTERNAL AUDIT AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 

 

The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate framework for internal financial controls commensurate 

with the size, scale and complexity of the Company’s operations. 

 

21. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

 

In accordance with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Members of the Company in its 23 rd Annual 

General Meeting, held on 30th August, 2022 had appointed M/s. Bhogilal C. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, 

having Firm Registration No.101424W, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office for a period 

of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of 23rd AGM till the conclusion of 28th AGM of the Company. 

The requirement for annual ratification of Auditor’s appointment at the AGM had been omitted pursuant to 

Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on 7th May, 2018. During the year, the Auditors’ had confirmed 

that they satisfy the independence criteria required under the Act. 

 

Auditor’s Qualifications and Board responses: 

 

Certain issues relating to Company’s income stream, inventories, trade receivable, doubtful debts etc. and its 

effect on the going concern aspects, this qualification has been self-explanatory. 

 

 

22. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed BNP & Associates, 

Company Secretaries, Firm Registration No. P2014MH037400, to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for 

the financial year 2022-23. 

 

These is observation made by the Secretarial Auditor, in their report for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2023 as under: 

 

Auditor’s observation and Board responses: 

 

As at the end of the period under review, three Independent Directors of the Company have resigned. As a result, 

as on 31st March, 2023, the composition of the Board of Directors the Company and its Committees thereof is 
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not as per Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the 

Company has informed that they will be complying with the said requirement within the time limits as mentioned 

in the SEBI (LODR), 2015 and the Act. 

 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report in form MR-3, for the financial year 2022-23, forms part of the Directors’ Report, 

appended as Annexure “E”. 

 

Further, the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, in relation to 

compliance of all applicable SEBI Regulations / circulars / guidelines issued thereunder., pursuant to requirement 

of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations was duly submitted to the stock exchanges and is available on the 

website of the Company at www.compuageindia.com. 

 

23. COST AUDIT: 

 

 

The provisions of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the Company is not 

required to maintain cost accounts and records for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.  

 

24. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS: 

 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditor, Secretarial Auditor and Internal Auditor have not reported 

any instances of frauds committed in the Company to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act.  

 

 

25. RELATED PARTY: 

 

During the year under review, all related party transactions were periodically placed before the Audit Committee 

and also before the Board of Directors of the Company. An omnibus approval from the Audit Committee is 

obtained for the related party transactions which are of a foreseeable and repetitive in nature. All the related party 

transactions were in the ordinary and normal course of business and at arms length basis.  

 

In line with the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Policy for determining RPT and their 

Materiality was suitably amended and approved by the Board which is placed on the website of the Company at 

www.compuageindia.com.  

 

There are no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with interest of the 

Company at large. There were no transactions of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the 

Promoter(s) / Promoter(s) Group which individually holds 10% or more shareholding in the Company. 

 

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) and applicable rules 

of the Act is set out in Form AOC-2, is appended to the Directors’ Report as Annexure “F”. 

 

 

26. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS: 

 

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been 

disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report. 

 

 

27. UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT AND 

STATEMENT OF DEVIATIONS AND VARIATIONS: 
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The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or Qualified Institutional Placement during 

the financial year 2022-23. 

 

 

28. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:  

 

The Company has constituted various Committees of the Board as required under the Act and the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. For details like composition, number of meetings held, attendance of members, etc. of such 

Committees, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report appended as Annexure “B” to the Directors’ 

Report. 

 

 

29. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME: 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has imparted familiarization programmes 

for its Independent Directors with review of business strategy of the Company, industry trends and regulatory 

updates covering changes with respect to the Act and the Listing Regulations and other allied matters. 

 

The Familiarization Programmes for Independent Directors aim to provide them an opportunity to familiarize 

themselves with the Company, its management and its operations so as to gain a clear understanding of their roles, 

rights and responsibilities and contribute significantly towards the growth of the Company. They have full 

opportunity to interact with senior management personnel and are provided all the documents required and sought 

by them for enabling them to have a good understanding of the Company, its business model and various 

operations and the industry of which it is a part. 

 

The policy on Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors and Familiarization Programme details of 

Independent Directors undertaken by the Company have been disclosed on the website of the Company at 

www.compuageindia.com.  

 

 

30. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Act , the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 

ability, confirm: 

i. That in preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023, the applicable accounting 

standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

ii. That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, and the profits of the Company for the 

year under review; 

iii. That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. That the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023, have been prepared on a ‘Going Concern 

Basis’; 

v. That proper internal financial controls were in place and that such internal financial controls are adequate 

and were operating effectively; 

vi. That proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

31. INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT: 
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Risk Management is integral to your Company’s strategy and for the achievement of our long-term goals. The 

Company regularly identifies uncertainties and after assessing them, devises short and long term actions to 

mitigate any risk which could materially impact your Company’s goals. 

 

The risk assessment includes review of strategic risks at domestic and international level including sectoral 

developments, risks related to market competition, financial, geographical, political and reputational issues, 

environment, social and governance risks and cyber security risks. The Company is well aware of these risks and 

challenges and has put in place mechanisms to ensure that they are managed and mitigated with adequate timely 

actions. 

 

The Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy, which is also hosted on the website 

of the Company at www.compuageindia.com, which includes identification of elements of risk, if any, which in 

the opinion of the Audit Committee of the Company and the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. 

 

 

32. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

 

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and in line with the best governance 

practices. For this purpose, a policy has been laid down through which Directors, employees and business 

associates can report unethical behavior, malpractices, wrongful conduct, fraud, violation of Company’s Code 

of Conduct without fear of reprisal and have provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.  

 

The Whistle-Blower Protection Policy aims to: 

• Allow and encourage stakeholders to bring to the Management’s notice, concerns about unethical 

behavior, malpractice, wrongful conduct, actual or suspected fraud or violation of policies. 

• Ensure timely and consistent organizational response. 

• Build and strengthen a culture of transparency and trust. 

• Provide protection against victimization. 

 

The above mechanism has been appropriately communicated within the Company across all levels and has been 

displayed on the website of the Company at www.compuageindia.com.  

 

 

 

33. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 

 

During the year under review, there was no any application made by company under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code,  

 

34. APPRECIATION: 

 

Your Directors are thankful to the Vendors, Customers, Bankers, Business Partners, Central and State 

Governments together with their departments and the local authorities, employees for their valuable support and 

co-operation. 

 

The Directors also wish to express their gratitude to investors for the faith that they continue to repose in the 

Company. 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

(suspended during CIRP)  

 

Compuage Infocom Limited, 
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Sd/- 

 

Atul Mehta 

DIN: 00716869 

Managing Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 

Bhavesh Mehta 

DIN: 00740861 

Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 

Taken on Record by 

Gajesh Jain 

Resolution Professional 

Reg. No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019 -2020/12588 

 

Date : 08th October, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure A 

 

FORM AOC-I  

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of Subsidiary 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

 

PART “A”: SUBSIDIARIES 

  

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars               Details 

1.  Sl. No.  1 

2.  Name of the Subsidiary Compuage Infocom (S) Pte. Ltd. 

3.  The date since when subsidiary was acquired 2009-2010 

4.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 

from the holding Company's reporting period 

Same as Parent Co. FY 2022-23 

5.  Reporting currency and exchange rate as on the last date 

of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign 

subsidiaries. 

USD 

1USD = 82.21 INR  

 

6.  Share Capital Rs.82.21 Lakhs 

7.  Reserves and Surplus Rs.46.61 Lakhs 

8.  Total Assets Rs. 129.07 Lakhs 

9.  Total Liabilities Rs. 129.07 Lakhs 

10.  Investments NIL 

11.  Turnover NIL 

12.  Profit before taxation Rs.(3.12) Lakhs 

13.  Profit after taxation  Rs.(3.12) Lakhs  

14.  Proposed Dividend  NIL 

15.  Extent of shareholding (in %)  100 

 

Notes:  

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NIL 

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year –NIL 

 

 

 

PART “B”: ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 

(Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and 

Joint Ventures) 

 

Since the Company does not have any Associate Company or any Joint Venture, the said para is not applicable. 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

(suspended during CIRP)  

 

Compuage Infocom Limited, 

     

 

Sd/- 

Atul Mehta 

DIN: 00716869 

Managing Director (Suspended Director) 
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Bhavesh Mehta 

DIN: 00740861 

Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 

Taken on Record by 

Gajesh Jain 

Resolution Professional 

Reg. No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019 -2020/12588 

 

Date : 08th October, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure B 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

 

The report on Corporate Governance in compliance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter 

referred to as “Listing Regulations”) is as follows: 

 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

 

We believe that our Corporate Strategy needs to be dynamic, vibrant and responsive to the changing economic 

scenario and flexible enough to absorb environmental and fiscal fluctuations. Professionalism in management, 

transparency and sound business ethics helps in encouraging widespread participation from all stake holders. 

 

2. APPROPRIATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE WITH DEFINED ROLES AND 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The Company has put in place an internal governance structure with defined roles and responsibilities of every 

constituent of the system.  

 

The Corporate Governance structure at CIL is as follows: 

 

1. Board of Directors:  

 

The Company has been under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under the provisions of the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”) vide order dated 2nd November 2023 passed by the National 

Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”). The powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended as per Section 17 of 

the Code and such powers were being exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the 

NCLT by the said order under the provisions of the Code. As per Section 20 of the Code, the management and 

operations of the Company were being managed by the Interim Resolution Professional Mr. Arun Kapoor upon 

commencement of CIRP. Subsequently, vide order dated 29th April 2024 passed by NCLT, the IRP Mr. Arun 

Kapoor was replaced by Resolution Professional (RP) Mr. Gajesh Labhchand Jain who is now responsible for the 

management and operations of the Company. 

 

All the directors and the Company Secretary of the company except two have resigned from their positions in 

the Company prior to commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) on 2nd 

November 2023. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 comprised of: 

 

(i) Two Executive Directors- Mr. Atul H. Mehta (DIN: 00716869) (Chairman and Managing Director) and 

Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta (DIN: 00740861) (Whole-Time Director) and Chief Financial Officer and Chief 

Operating officer. 

(ii) Non-Executive Independent Director- Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt (DIN: 02343351) 

 

However, as on date of this report, the Board comprised 2 (Two) Directors and Chief Operating officer, which 

includes 2 (Two) Executive Promoter Directors.  

 

2. Committees of the Board:  

 

The Committees of the Board play a significant role in the governance structure of the Company and had been 

constituted to transact / approve the matters as mandated by applicable rules and regulations, which concern the 

Company. The Board had four committees, viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. 

 

As on 31st March, 2023 Board of Directors of Compuage Infocom Limited (“The Board”) the Board 

comprised of 3 (Three) Directors, which included 1 (One) Non-Executive Independent Directors and 2 (Two) 
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Executive Promoter Directors. However, as on date of this report, the Board comprised 2 (Two) Directors, 

which includes 2 (Two) Executive Promoter Directors.  

 

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the Listing 

Regulations read with Section 149 of the Act, consisting of 2 (two) Executive Directors and 1 (four) Non-

Executive Independent Directors as on March 31, 2023. 

 

In terms of the requirements of the Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the following skills / expertise / 

competencies of the Directors as given below:  

 

Skills/Expertise/Compete

nce and their details  

Mr. 

Atul H. 

Mehta 

Mr. 

Bhavesh 

H. Mehta 

Mr. 

Ganesh 

S. 

Ganesh* 

Mr. 

Vijay 

Agarwa

l** 

Mr. 

Virendra 

G. Bhatt*** 

Ms. Hetal 

Kudecha*

***  

Business Development 

Planning and developing 

strategies that enable 

sustainable growth 

✓ ✓     

Industry Experience 

Experience and knowledge 

of the industry in which the 

organization operates, 

technical competencies 

resulting in knowledge of 

how to anticipate 

technological trends, 

generate innovation, and 

extend or create new 

business models 

✓ ✓     

Sales and Marketing 

Building brand awareness, 

identifying the business 

strengths, weaknesses, 

opportunities and threats 

and thereby enhancing 

overall enterprise reputation 

✓ ✓     

Financial Management 

Management of financial 

function of the Company 

resulting in proficiency in 

complex financial 

management, capital 

allocation and financial 

reporting processes and 

experience in actively 

supervising principal 

accounting and auditing 

and performing similar 

functions 

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓  

Leadership 

Extending leadership 

✓ ✓    ✓ 
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experience in the 

organizations, strategic 

planning and risk 

management. Developing 

talent and driving change 

for long term growth 

Business Judgement 

Ability to identify key risks 

to the organization in a 

wide range of areas 

including legal and 

regulatory compliance and 

monitor risk and 

compliance management 

frameworks and systems 

✓ ✓   ✓  

Human Resource 

Management 

Developing strategies to 

manage human resources 

and achieve change. 

✓ ✓    ✓ 

   

All the Directors took an active part at the Board and Committee Meetings by providing valuable guidance to 

the Management on various aspects of business.  

 

 

Membership, Attendance and Other Directorships: 

 

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year 

and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in other 

Companies as on 31st March, 2022, are given below: 

Name of 

Director 
Designation 

Number 

of 

Directors

hip in  

other 

Public 

Limited 

Companie

s  

Number of Committee 

positions held in other 

Public Limited Companies  

List of 

Directorship 

held in Other 

Listed 

Companies 

and Category 

of Directorship 

Members

hip 

Chairmans

hip 

Mr. Atul H. 

Mehta  

(DIN: 00716869) 

Promoter,  

Executive, 

Chairman and 

Managing 

Director 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

 

Nil 

 

Mr. Bhavesh H. 

Mehta 

(DIN: 00740861) 

Promoter,     

Executive and  

Whole-Time 

Director  

  

 

Nil 

  

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

 

 

Mr. Ganesh S. 

Ganesh 

(DIN: 00010877)* 

Non-Executive 

Independent  

Director 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

 

Nil 
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* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

***Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 

****Ms. Hetal Kudecha resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 29.03.2023 

 

Notes: 

1. The directorship held by Directors as mentioned above, do not include directorships in CIL and of foreign 

companies, companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Act and private limited companies. 

2. In accordance with the Listing Regulations, memberships / chairmanships of only Audit Committee and 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of all public limited companies have been considered. 

3. As required by the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being 

in force) and the Listing Regulations, none of the Directors hold directorships in more than ten public 

limited companies or in seven equity listed entities; or hold Independent Directorship either in more than 

seven equity listed entities or in three equity listed entities (in case he / she serves as a Whole-time 

Director / Managing Director in any listed entity). Further, none of the Directors hold membership of 

Board Committees (Audit Committees / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee) in excess of ten and 

chairmanship of Board Committees as aforesaid in excess of five. 

4. Due to resignation of all directors the composition of the Board of Directors the Company and its 

Committees thereof was not as per Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 and Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

5. Except Mr. Atul H. Mehta, Chairman and Managing Director and Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta, Whole-Time 

Director, who are related to each other as brothers, none of the other present Director is related to any 

other Director on the Board in terms of definition of ‘relative’ as per the Act (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force). 

 

 

BOARD MEETINGS 

 

The Board plays a critical role in the strategic development of the Company. To enable itself to discharge its 

duties and responsibilities effectively and take informed decisions, the Board meets at regular intervals to 

discuss and decide on business strategies / policies including performance of the Company, business 

operations, employee relations, review the financial performance, etc., of the Company.  

 

The Board Meetings were scheduled well in advance and notice and detailed agenda along with the relevant 

notes and other material information is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate the Directors to 

plan their schedule. The Company adheres to the provisions of the Act read with the rules issued thereunder, 

Mr. Vijay 

Agarwal 

(DIN: 

00058548)** 

Non-Executive 

Independent  

Director 

7 

 

 

 

 

 

8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Themis 

Medicare 

Limited  

(Non-

Executive 

Independent 

Director) 

 

• Gujarat 

Themis Biosyn 

Limited  

(Non-

Executive 

Independent 

Director) 

 

Mr. Virendra G. 

Bhatt (DIN: 

02343351)*** 

 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Nil Nil Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Ms. Hetal Kudecha 

(DIN: 

09148116)**** 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Nil Nil Nil 

 

Nil 
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Secretarial Standards and Listing Regulations with respect to convening and holding the meetings of the Board 

of Directors and its Committees.  

 

The Board sets annual performance objectives, oversees the actions and results of the management, evaluates its 

own performance, performance of its Committees and individual Directors on an annual basis and monitors the 

effectiveness of the Company’s governance practices for enhancing the stakeholders’ value. 

 

In the financial year 2022-23, the Board met ten times. The interval between two consecutive Board Meetings 

was well within the maximum period mentioned under Section 173 of the Act and the Listing Regulations. 

 

The details of 10 (Ten) Board Meetings were held and attendance of the Board of Directors at the same held 

during the financial year 2022-23 are as follows: 

 

16th May 2022, 28th July, 2022, 12th August, 2022, 26th August, 2022, 29th September, 2022, 07th 

November, 2022, 14th November, 2022, 08th December, 2022, 12th January, 2023, 23rd January, 2023. 

 

Name of the Directors 

Relationship 

with other 

Directors 

No. of Board 

Meetings 

Held 

No. of Board 

Meetings 

Attended 

Attendance 

at last AGM 

Mr. Atul H. Mehta 

(DIN: 00716869) 

Brother of Mr. 

Bhavesh H. 

Mehta 

10 10 Yes 

Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta 

(DIN: 00740861) 

Brother of Mr. 

Atul H. Mehta 

10 10 Yes 

Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh 

(DIN: 00010877)* 
# 

10 9 Yes 

Mr. Vijay Agarwal 

(DIN: 00058548) ** 
# 

10 
6 

Yes 

Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt 

(DIN: 02343351) *** 
# 

10 
6 

Yes 

Ms. Hetal Kudecha 

(DIN: 09148116) 

**** 

# 

10 

7 

Yes 

 

* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

***Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 

****Ms. Hetal Kudecha resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 29.03.2023 

 

# There is no relationship among any of the Directors 

 

The Board has granted leave of absence to the Directors who were absent at the respective Board Meeting(s) at 

their request. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.  

 

Separate meeting of the Independent Directors: 

 

In compliance with Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the Act, separate meeting of 

the Independent Directors was held on 23rd January, 2023, for FY 2022-23, without the presence of Non-

Independent Directors and in the said meeting, the Independent Directors, inter-alia, considered the following: 

 

i. Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 

ii. Reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive 

Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 

iii. Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company Management 

and the Board that is necessary for the Board to perform their duties effectively and reasonably.  

 

Compliance Framework: 

 

The Company has a robust and effective framework for monitoring compliances with applicable laws within the 

organization and providing updates to senior management and the Board periodically. The Audit Committee and 

the Board, periodically review the status of the compliances with the applicable laws. 
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Code of Conduct: 

 

The Board has formulated a Code of Conduct (hereinafter referred to as “Code”) for the Board Members, 

Senior Management and all Employees of the Company. The Code provides guiding principles of conduct to 

promote ethical conduct of business, confirms to equitable treatment of all stakeholders and to avoid unethical 

practices or behaviour.  The Code is available on the website of the Company at www.compuageindia.com. 

 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

As per the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Company has the following Committees: 

 

A. Audit Committee Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

B. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

 

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

a) Composition of Audit Committee: 

 

The Audit Committee comprised of three Members viz. Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh, Mr. Vijay Agarwal and Mr. 

Virendra G. Bhatt, Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company, who were financially literate and 

bring in expertise in the fields of finance, accounting, development, strategy and management. All the members 

of the Committee were Independent Directors of the Company. Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh chaired the Committee. 

Ms. Hasti Pala, Company Secretary, acted as a Secretary to the Committee.  

 

The Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to monitor and supervise the Company’s internal controls 

and financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of 

transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Chairman of the Committee regularly interacts 

with the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors of the Company to have independent discussions with them.  

 

The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the Act and the 

provisions of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee functions in accordance with its terms 

of reference which define its authority, responsibility and reporting function. 

 

However, Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023. Mr. Vijay 

Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023. Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as 

Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023. Ms. Hetal Kudecha resigned as Non-Executive 

Independent Director w.e.f 29.03.2023. 

 

b) Terms of Reference of Audit Committee:  

 

• Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

• Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment and, if required, the 

replacement or removal of the Statutory Auditors and the fixation of audit fees; 

• Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them; 

• Reviewing with the Management, the Annual Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report before submission 

to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

➢ Matters to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s Report 

in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Act. 

➢ Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

➢ Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the Management. 

➢ Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

➢ Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

➢ Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions. 

➢ Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report, if any. 

• Reviewing with the Management, the Quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board for 

approval; 

• Reviewing, with the Management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, right issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than 
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those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, 

monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to 

the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

• Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

• Reviewing, with the Management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems; 

• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit; 

• Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the Board; 

• Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 

as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

• To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

• Establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as may 

be prescribed; 

• To review the functioning of Whistle Blower mechanism; 

• Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate; 

• To allow Auditors and Key Managerial Personnel, a right to be heard while considering the Auditor’s 

Report; 

• Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee; 

• Reviewing the utilization of loans and / or advances from / investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore (One Hundred Crore) or 10% (Ten Percent) of the asset size of the 

subsidiary, whichever is lower, including existing loans / advances / investments, if applicable; 

• Considering and commenting on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, 

demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders; 

• To mandatorily review the following information: 

➢ To define significant related party transactions. 

➢ Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations. 

➢ Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors. 

➢ Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses. 

➢ The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor. 

➢ Statement of deviations, if applicable: 

❖ Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 

submitted to the stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the Listing Regulations. 

❖ Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 

prospectus / notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the Listing Regulations. 

 

c) The composition of the Committee along with the details of the Meetings held and attended by its 

Members during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 

 

Name of Director Category Position No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Ganesh S. 

Ganesh* 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Chairman 
6 6 

Mr. Vijay 

Agarwal** 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Member 
6 5 

Mr. Virendra G. 

Bhatt*** 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director  

Member 
6 5 

 

* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

***Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 
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In the financial year 2022-23, the Committee met six times. The interval between two Meetings was well 

within the maximum period mentioned under Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.  

 

The dates on which the Committee Meetings were held are as follows: 

 

16th May, 2022, 28th July, 2022, 12th August, 2022, 26th August, 2022, 14th November, 2022, 23rd January, 

2023. 

 

The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. The minutes of the Meetings of the Committee were 

placed before and noted by the Board. 

 

 

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE  

 

a) Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three Members, viz. Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh, Mr. 

Vijay Agarwal and Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt, Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company. Mr. Ganesh 

S. Ganesh chairs the Committee. Ms. Hasti Pala, Company Secretary, acted as a Secretary to the Committee.  

 

The role of the Committee is to oversee the selection of Directors and Senior Management Personnel based on 

criteria related to the expertise, qualifications, independence and experience. The Committee reviews and 

approves the annual salaries, performance commissions, service agreements and other employment conditions 

for Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company.   

 

The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 178 of the Act and the 

provisions of Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee functions in accordance with its terms 

of reference which define its authority, responsibility and reporting function. 

 

b) Terms of Reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 

• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and other Employees;  

• To evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience for appointment of an Independent Director 

and on the basis of such evaluation, to prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for an 

Independent Director. 

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board;  

• Devising a policy on Board diversity;  

• Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment 

and removal;  

• The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board, the compensation terms 

including periodic revision, performance bonus, incentives, commission, other services, perquisites and 

benefits payable to the Executive Directors; 

• Framing and implementing on behalf of the Board and the shareholders, a credible and transparent policy 

on remuneration of Executive Directors; 

• Considering, approving and recommending to the Board, any change in designation and increase in salary 

of the Executive Directors; 

• Ensuring that the remuneration policy is good enough to attract, retain and motivate Directors; 

• Bringing about objectivity in deeming the remuneration package while striking a balance between the 

interest of the Company and the shareholders; 

• Deciding on whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the 

basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors; 

• Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management; 

• Such other matters, as the Board may, from time to time, request the Committee to examine and 

recommend / approve.  

 

c) The composition of the Committee along with the details of the Meetings held and attended by its 

Members during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 
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Name of Director Category Position No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Ganesh S. 

Ganesh 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Chairman 
6 6 

Mr. Vijay Agarwal Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Member 
6 5 

Mr. Virendra G. 

Bhatt** 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director  

Member 
6 5 

    

* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

***Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 

 

In the financial year 2022-23, the Committee met six times.  

 

The dates on which the Committee Meetings were held are as follows: 

 

♦ 16th May, 2022, ♦ 28th July, 2022, ♦ 12th August, 2022, ♦ 26th August, 2022, ♦ 14th November, 2022, ♦ 

23rd January, 2023. 

 

The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. The minutes of the Meetings of the Committee were 

placed before and noted by the Board. 

 

Performance Evaluation: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations, the annual 

performance evaluation was carried out for FY 2022-23 by the Board in respect of its own performance, the 

Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, 

Stakeholders’ Relationship and Corporate Social Responsibility Committees. A structured questionnaire 

covering various aspects such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, 

execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance was prepared. A separate exercise 

was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board who 

were evaluated on parameters such as guidance / support to management outside Board / Committee meetings, 

degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, the effectiveness of meetings, etc. The performance evaluation of 

the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding the Directors being evaluated. The 

performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the 

Independent Directors. 

 

Remuneration Policy: 

 

Your Company has a well-defined Policy for Remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

other Employees (hereinafter referred to as “Policy”) which is in compliance with Section 178 of the Act and 

Regulation 19 read with Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.  

 

The Policy is based on the fundamental rule of rewarding performances as against earmarked objectives. While 

deciding on remuneration for Directors, the Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee consider the 

performance of the Company, current trend in the industry, the qualification of the appointee, his / her 

experience, past performance and other relevant factors. This information is used to review the Company’s 

remuneration policies. The Policy aims at attracting and retaining high caliber talent and ensures equity, 

fairness and consistency in rewarding the employees. There is no pecuniary relationship or transaction other 

than sitting fees received by the Non-Executive Directors vis-à-vis the Company. The criteria for making 

payment to the Non-Executive Directors is according to the terms and conditions mentioned in the Policy 

which is placed on the website of the Company at www.compuageindia.com.  

 

The annual variable pay of senior managers is linked to the Company’s performance in general and the 

performance of their functions / business units for the relevant year is measured against specific major 

performance areas which are closely aligned to the Company’s objectives.  

 

Remuneration to Executive Directors: 

 

Name of Director Position Salary & Perquisite Service Contract 

Mr. Atul H. Mehta Chairman and Managing Rs.1,20,00,000/- p.a. 5 years w.e.f. 

34

http://www.compuageindia.com/


  

 
 

Director 08.09.2020 to 

07.09.2025 

Mr. Bhavesh H. 

Mehta 
Whole-Time Director Rs.1,20,00,000/- p.a. 

5 years w.e.f. 

18.10.2020 to 

17.10.2025 

 

 

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors: 

 

The remuneration paid to Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company, Mr. Vijay Agarwal, Mr. 

Virendra G. Bhatt and Ms. Hetal Kudecha based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee. Whereas, Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh, Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company has stated 

his unwillingness towards acceptance of sitting fees for the Board and Committee Meetings to be attended by 

him.  

 

Name Sitting Fees Commission 

Mr. Vijay Agarwal* Rs. 6,00,000 0 

Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt** Rs. 6,00,000 0 

Ms. Hetal Kudecha*** Rs. 7,00,000 0 

 

*Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

**Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 

***Ms. Hetal Kudecha resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 29.03.2023 

 

 

None of the Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company are in receipt of any commission or have 

been granted any stock options during the financial year 2022-23.  

 

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors: 

 

Details of the Equity Shares held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2023, is as under: 

 

Name of the Director No. of Equity shares 

Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh* 1255 

Mr. Vijay Agarwal** Nil 

Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt*  Nil 

Ms. Hetal Kudecha***   Nil 

 

* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

***Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 

****Ms. Hetal Kudecha resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 29.03.2023 

 

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme. Additional details pertaining to remuneration 

is covered in the Directors’ Report. 

 

 

C. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 

a) Composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of three members viz.  Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh, Mr. 

Virendra G. Bhatt, Non-Executive Independent Directors and Mr. Atul H. Mehta, Chairman and Managing 

Director of the Company. Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh chairs the Committee. Ms. Hasti Pala, Company Secretary, 

was designated as the “Compliance Officer” who oversees the redressing of the investors’ grievances and acts 

as a Secretary to the Committee.  

 

The Committee looks into various aspects of interest of shareholders. The Committee ensures cordial investor 

relations and oversees the mechanism for redressal of investors’ grievances.  
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The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 178 of the Act and the 

provisions of Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee functions in accordance with its terms 

of reference which define its authority, responsibility and reporting function. 

 

b) Terms of Reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

 

• Consider and approve issue of share certificates (including issue of renewed or duplicate share 

certificates); 

• Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer / 

transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new / 

duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc.; 

• Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;  

• Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services 

being rendered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent; 

• Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual reports / statutory notices 

by the shareholders of the Company;  

• The Committee also monitors the implementation and compliance of the Company’s Code of Conduct 

for Prohibition of Insider Trading in pursuance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

c) The Composition of the Committee along with the details of the Meetings held and attended by its 

Members during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 

 

Name of Director Category Position 
No. of Meetings  

Held Attended 

Mr. Ganesh S. 

Ganesh* 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 
Chairman 4 3 

Mr. Atul H. Mehta 
Chairman and Managing 

Director 
Member 4 4 

Mr. Virendra G. 

Bhatt** 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director  

  Member 
4 4 

 

* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 

 

a) In the financial year 2022-23, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met four times.  

 

b) The dates on which the Committee Meetings were held are as follows:  

 

♦     16th May, 2022 ♦ 12th August, 2022 ♦ 07th November, 2022 ♦ 23rd January, 2023 

 

c) The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. The minutes of the meetings of the Committee 

were placed before and noted by the Board. 

 

d) The Company has appointed Link Intime India Private Limited, Mumbai, to act as Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent of the Company. The Committee also oversees the performance of the Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent and recommends measures for overall improvement of the quality of investor 

services as and when the need arises.      

e) Details of investor complaints received and redressed during the year 2022-23 are as follows: 

 

Opening Balance Received during the year Resolved during the 

year 

Closing Balance 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

D. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 

 

a) Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 
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The Corporate Social Responsibility (hereinafter referred to as “CSR”) Committee comprises of three 

members viz.  Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh and Mr. Vijay Agarwal, Non-Executive Independent Directors, and Mr. 

Bhavesh H. Mehta, Whole-Time Director of the Company. Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh chairs the Committee. Ms. 

Hasti Pala, Company Secretary, acted as a Secretary to the Committee. At the previous Annual General 

Meeting of the Company which was held on 15th September, 2021, Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh, being the Chairman 

of the Committee, was present thereat, to answer the queries of the Shareholders. 

 

The scope of functions of Committee is to formulate and recommend to the Board, an Annual Action Plan in 

pursuance of CSR Policy of the Company including CSR projects or programmes to be undertaken, manner of 

execution of such projects or programmes, modalities of utilization of funds and its implementation, 

monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects undertaken by the Company. 

 

The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 135 read with Schedule VII 

of the Act. The Committee functions in accordance with its terms of reference which define its authority, 

responsibility and reporting function. 

 

b) Terms of Reference of CSR Committee: 

 

• Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the 

Company in areas or subject, as specified in Schedule VII of the Act; 

• Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to above; 

• Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time; 

• Formulate and recommend to the Board, an Annual Action Plan and projects or programmes to be 

undertaken for the next financial year; 

• Monitor the implementation of CSR Annual Action Plan of the Company from time to time. 

 

c) The Composition of the Committee along with the details of  the Meetings held and attended by its 

Members during the financial year 2022-23 are given below: 

 

Name of Director Category Designation No. of Meetings attended 

Held Attended 

Mr. Ganesh S. 

Ganesh* 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Chairman 5 5 

Mr. Vijay 

Agarwal** 

Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

Member 5 4 

Mr. Bhavesh H. 

Mehta 

Whole-Time Director Member 5 5 

 

* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

 

In the financial year 2022-23, the Committee met five times.  

 

The dates on which the Committee Meetings were held are as follows: 

 

♦    16th May, 2022 ♦   28th July, 2022 ♦ 12th August, 2022 ♦ 14th November, 2022 ♦ 23rd January, 2023 

 

The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. The minutes of the meetings of the Committee were 

placed before and noted by the Board. 

 

The CSR Policy of the Company along with CSR projects or programmes to be undertaken is displayed on the 

website of the Company at www.compuageindia.com. A CSR Report giving details of the CSR activities 

undertaken by the Company during the year along with the amount spent on CSR activities is appended to the 

Directors’ Report as Annexure B. 

 

 

Subsidiary Companies: 

 

Compuage Infocom (S) Pte. Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, incorporated as per laws of 

Singapore located at 50, Genting Lane, #04-02 Cideco Industrial Complex, Singapore (349558).  
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Your Company does not have any material non-listed Indian Subsidiary Company, whose turnover or net 

worth exceeds 10% (ten percent) of the consolidated turnover or networth respectively, of the Company and its 

subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year, in terms of Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing 

Regulations. 

 

The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements including investments.  

 

 

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

Annual General Meetings: 

 

1. Location, date and time of General Meetings held in last three years: 

 

Year AGM/ 

EGM 

Date Time Venue Special Business 

2021-

22 

23rd 

AGM 

30.08.20

22 

11.30 

a.m. 

Video 

Conferencing 

/ Other Audio 

Visual Means 

1. To appoint Branch Auditors and fix 

their remuneration and in this 

regard to consider and if thought 

fit, to pass with or without 

modification, the following 

resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution 

2. To increase the borrowing powers 

of the Company and to consider 

and if thought fit, to pass with or 

without modification, the following 

resolution as Special Resolution 

3. To create mortgage / charge over 

the assets of the Company and to 

consider, and if thought fit, to pass 

with or without modification, the 

following resolution as Special 

Resolution 

2020-

21 

22nd 

AGM 

15.09.20

21 

11:30 

a.m. 

Video 

Conferencing 

/ Other Audio 

Visual Means 

4. Appointment of Branch Auditors 

and fix their remuneration. 

2019-

20 

21st 

AGM 

18.08.20

20 

11:00 

a.m. 

Video 

Conferencing 

/ Other Audio 

Visual Means 

1. Appointment of Branch Auditors 

and fix their remuneration; 

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Atul H. 

Mehta (DIN: 00716869) as a 

Managing Director; 

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Bhavesh H. 

Mehta (DIN: 00740861) as a 

Whole-Time Director; 

4. Appointment of Mr. Ajay H. 

Mehta (DIN: 00686327) as a 

Director. 

 

Postal Ballot: 

 

During the year under review, there is no any resolutions were passed through Postal Ballot. 

 

5. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 

The Company has usually published its financial results in Business Standard having nationwide circular and 

in Mumbai Lakshadeep have regional circular and submitted to the stock exchanges where the shares of the 

Company are listed, in accordance with the Listing Regulations except financial annual result for year ended 

March 31, 2023. 
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6. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

 

1. Annual General Meeting: 

 

Date and Time: 10th March, 2025 at 11:00 Hours  

         

2. Board Meeting for considering of Audited Accounts: Not Applicable 

 

3. Book Closure Date: Not Applicable 

 

4. Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable 

 

5. Financial year: 1st April, 2022 to 31st March, 2023 

 

6. Registered Office: Compuage Infocom Limited 

            309, A to Z Industrial Estate,  

    Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, 

           Lower Parel, Delisle Road, 

           Mumbai-400013 

   

7. Listed on Stock Exchange:  

 

At present, the Equity Shares of the Company are listed at: 

 

➢ BSE Limited 

Address: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001. 

 

➢ National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Address: Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai – 

400 051.          

          

8. Stock Exchanges Code: 

 

ISIN No.: INE070C01037 

BSE Security Code: 532456 

BSE Security ID: COMPUAGE 

NSE Symbol: COMPINFO 

 

 

9. Corporate Identity Number (CIN):    

 

Our Corporate Identification Number, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India is 

L99999MH1999PLC135914 and our Registration Number is 135914. 

 

10.  Payment of Depository Fees and Listing Fees: 

 

Annual Custody / Issuer fees for the year 2022-23 has been paid by the Company to NSDL and Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as “CDSL”).  

 

Annual Listing Fees for the year 2022-23 has been paid by the Company to BSE and NSE. 

 

 

11.  Registrar and Transfer Agents:   

        Name & Address       : Link Intime India Private Limited 

                  C 101, 247 Park,  

     L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),  

     Mumbai: 400 083.  

 Phone No.                                   :           022 49186200, 022 49186270 

 Fax No.       : 022 49186060 

E-Mail                                 : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in    
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12. Share Transfer System and Registrar and Transfer Agent: 

 

All share transfer and other communications regarding share certificates, change of address, dividends, etc., 

should be addressed to Registrar and Transfer Agents. Stakeholders Relationship Committee is authorized to 

approve transfer of shares in the physical segment. The Committee has delegated authority for approving 

transfer and transmission of shares and other related matters to the officers of the Company. A summary of all 

the transfers / transmissions, etc., so approved by officers of the Company is placed at every Committee 

Meeting. All share transfers are completed within statutory time limit from the date of receipt, provided the 

documents meet the stipulated requirement of statutory provisions in all respects. The Company obtains from 

a Company Secretary in practice, yearly certificate of compliance with the share transfer formalities as 

required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations and files a copy of the same with the Stock 

Exchanges. 

 

 

13. (i)  Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2023:  

 

 

Summary of Shareholdings as on 31st March, 2023: 

     

Category No. of shares % of Shareholding 

Promoters & Promoters Group 36577990 42.65 

Clearing Member 64474 0.08 

Foreign Portfolio Investor I 502710 0.59 

Hindu Undivided Family 2565102 2.99 

Investor Education and Protection Fund 907150 1.06 

Non Resident Indians 1550389 1.81 

Other Bodies Corporate 1371826 1.60 

Other Public 42228423 49.22 

Total 85768064 100.00 

 

 

14. Financial Release Dates: 

 

Quarter Release Date 

(Tentative and subject to change) 

1st Quarter ending 30th June Mid of August  

2nd Quarter ending 30th September Mid of  November  

3rd Quarter ending 31st December Mid of February  

4th Quarter ending 31st March End of May 

 

15.  Dematerialization of shares and liquidity and Lock-In of shares: 

 

(a) Dematerialization position as on 31st March, 2023: 

      

Total No. 

of fully 

paid up 

Shares 

No. of 

Listed 

Shares 

Shares in 

Demat 

Form of the 

listed shares 

Percentage 

% 

Shares in 

Physical  

Form of the listed 

shares 

Percentag

e 

% 

8,57,68,06

4 
8,57,68,064 8,56,34,125 99.84 1,33,939 0.16 

 

Shares of the Company are traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading on both depositories in 

India, i.e., NSDL and CDSL.  

 

Under the depository system, the International Securities Identification Number allotted to the Company’s 

shares is INE070C01037. 

 

16. Outstanding Global Depository Receipts / American Depository Receipts:  
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The Company has not issued any Global Depository Receipts (hereinafter referred to as “GDRs”) / American 

Depository Receipts (hereinafter referred to as “ADRs”), hence there are no outstanding GDRs / ADRs, etc., as 

at the end of 31st March, 2023.  

 

17.   Address for Correspondence:  

 

The Shareholders may address their communication / suggestions / grievances / queries to the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agents at the address mentioned above, or to the Company at: 

 

Compuage Infocom Limited 

309, A to Z Industrial Estate, Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, 

Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400013 

Tel. No.: 91-22 31706903 

Fax: 022-67114445   

Email: investors.relations@compuageindia.com 

 

For any assistance regarding dematerialization of shares, share transfers, transmissions, change of address, 

payment of dividend on shares and any other query relating to shares of the Company: 

 

(i)   Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:  

 

Link Intime India Private Limited 

C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg,  

Vikhroli West, 

  Mumbai- 400 083.  

Tel: 022 49186200, 022 49186270 ;  

Fax: 022 49186060; 

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in  

 

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective 

Depository Participants. 

 

(ii) Any query on Annual Report:  

 

Registered office of the Company as mentioned aforesaid. 

 

 

18.  Details with respect to unclaimed suspense account and due dates for transfer of unclaimed dividend 

to IEPF Account: 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 39(4) read with Para F of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, following are the 

details of the unclaimed shares of the Company, voting rights of which shall remain frozen till the rightful 

owner of such shares claims the shares. 

 

 

Further the following dividends which remain unpaid and unclaimed for a period of seven years will be due 

for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (hereinafter referred to as “IEPF”) of the Central 

Government:  

 

 

Dividend 
Date of declaration of 

Dividend 
Due for transfer to IEPF 

   

2015-16 (Final) 24.09.2016 29.10.2023 

2016-17(Final) 23.09.2017 25.10.2024 

2017-18 (Final) 28.09.2018 02.11.2025 

2018-19 (Final) 21.08.2019 23.09.2026  

2019-20 (Final) 18.08.2020 18.09.2027 

2020-21 (Final) 15.09.2021 20.10.2028 

*2021-22 (Final) *30.08.2022 *04.09.2029 

   

* Actual Date of transfer and Data not available as company is into CIRP. 
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19. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

 

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of the Company in a fair and transparent manner by 

adopting high standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. It has put in place a 

mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle 

Blower Policy under which the employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and regulations and 

the Code of Conduct. However, the company is in CIRP so no such committee members looking after the said 

mechanism. In the absence of committee, it is the duty of BOD to look after vigil mechanism however they are 

also suspended. 

 

20. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 

 

The Company does not deal into commodities and hence commodity price risk does not arise. However, the 

Company has adequate systems and measures to manage foreign exchange risk. 

 

21. Below are the details of the credit rating obtained during the financial year 2022-23 

 

Facility Rating 

Long Term Bank Facilities CARE BB; Stable (Double B; Outlook: Stable) 

Short Term Bank Facilities           CARE A4 (A Four) 

 

22. Compliance Certificate  

 

The Compliance Certificate to the Board of Directors pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI LODR could 

not been obtained during the year 2022-23. 

 

 

7. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

   

a) Transactions with related parties are disclosed in notes to accounts annexed to the financial 

statements. 

b) There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties, viz., Promoters, Directors or 

the Management, or their relatives or subsidiaries that had potential conflict with the Company’s 

interest. Required disclosure has been made in the Annual Report. The Policy for determining Related 

Party Transactions and their Materiality as approved by the Board is uploaded on the website of the 

Company at www.compuageindia.com. 

c) The Company received a notice from NSE on June 30, 2023 for not filling financial results for the 

quarter ended March 31, 2023.Subsequently, the company went under CIRP following the NCLT 

order dated November 02, 2023. 

d) During the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company did not have any material listed / 

unlisted subsidiary companies as defined in Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. The Company 

has framed the policy for determining material subsidiary and the same is disclosed on the website of 

the Company at www.compuageindia.com. 

e) In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules thereunder. The 

significant accounting policies which are consistently applied have been set out in the notes to the 

financial statements. 

f) The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or Qualified Institutional 

Placement during the financial year 2022-23. 

g) None of the Directors are interested in the Loans and Advances made by the Company or its 

Subsidiary Company. 

h) During the financial year 2022-23, there has been no such case where any recommendation of any 

Committee of the Board was not accepted by the Board.  

i) The total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 

statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm / network entity of which the statutory auditor is a 

part, are disclosed in notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements. 

j) There was no complaint filed or pending as on end of the financial year 2022-23 in relation to the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.  

k) The Company has implemented the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as set out in 

the Listing Regulations.  
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l) Related Party Transactions  with related parties as per the requirements of Accounting Standards 18 

issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are disclosed in the relevant Schedule of 

Notes to Annual Accounts. 

m) The Compliance Certificate to the Board of Directors pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI 

LODR could not been obtained during the year 2022-23. 

n) A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice is appended to the Directors’ Report as Annexure 

D that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from 

being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

or any such statutory authority. 

 

The Company has given disclosures specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) 

of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations. 
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Annexure C 

 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES 

 

1. Brief Outline on Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company: 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility (hereinafter referred to as “CSR”) has been an integral part of your Company’s 

philosophy. Your Company is committed to its social responsibilities and takes initiatives to serve the society as 

a good corporate citizen. 

 

The CSR Policy inter-alia provides the approach, direction and guiding principles given by the Board of 

Directors of the Company, taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, for selection, 

implementation and monitoring of CSR activities as well as formulation of the Annual Action Plan. Your 

Company focuses its CSR activities in the areas of (i) Education and Skill Development (ii) Promotion of 

Health Care and Sanitation and (iii) Community Development. The CSR Policy sets out your Company’s 

commitment and approach towards CSR under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to 

as “Act”). The objective of this Policy is to promote a unified and strategic approach to CSR. 

 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee: 

 

The Members of the CSR Committee as on 31st March, 2023, are as under: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name Designation / 

Nature of 

Directorship 

No. of Meetings of the 

CSR Committee held 

during the year 

No. of Meetings of the CSR 

Committee attended during 

the year 

1 Mr. Ganesh S. 

Ganesh 

Chairman - Non-

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

5 5 

2 Mr. Vijay 

Agarwal 

Member - Non-

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

5 4 

3 Mr. Bhavesh 

H. Mehta 

Member - Whole-

Time Director 

5 5 

 

3. Web-link of composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects as approved by the 

Board: www.compuageindia.com  

 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out 

in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.: Not Applicable 

 

5. (a)  Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 3440.64 Lakhs 

 

(b)Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 68.81 Lakhs 

 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NA 

 

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year: Rs. 1.04 Lakhs 

 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year ((b)+(c)-(d)): Rs. 67.77 Lakhs 

 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project).- Rs. 16 Lakhs 
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Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

 

Sr. 

No

. 

Name 

of the 

Projec

t 

Item 

from the 

list of 

activitie

s in 

schedule 

VII to 

the Act 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/No

) 

Location of the 

project 

Amoun

t spent 

for the 

project  

(in Rs.) 

Mode of 

Implementatio

n – Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 

Implementation – 

Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

Stat

e  

Distric

t 

Nam

e  

CSR 

Registratio

n Number 

 - - - - - - - - - 

 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads.: NIL 

 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. : NIL 

 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. Rs. 16 Lakh 

 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial 

Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6) of Section 135 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per second proviso of Sub-

Section (5) of  section 135 

Amount Date of Transfer Name of the 

Fund 

Amount Date of 

Transfer 

Rs. 16 Lakhs - - - - - 

 

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:  

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-

section (5) of section 

135 

Rs. 68.81 Lakhs 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 16.00 Lakhs 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] - 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

activities of the previous financial years, if any 

- 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-

(iv)] 

Rs. 1.04 Lakh 

 

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Preceding 

Financial 

Year 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

Section 

135(6)  

(in Rs.) 

Balance 

Amount in 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

subsection 

(6) of 

section 

135 

(in Rs.) 

Amount 

Spent in 

the 

reporting 

Financial 

Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount transferred 

to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(5), if 

any 

Amount 

remaining 

to be spent 

in 

succeeding 

financial 

years 

(in Rs.) 

Deficie 

ncy, if 

any 

Amount 

(in Rs) 

Date of 

transfer 

1.  NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 
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2.  NA 

 

NA NA NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 

 

3.  NA NA NA NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 

 

NA 

 

 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 

spent in the Financial Year: 

 

Yes      No    

 

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired   

 

 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the Financial Year: 

Sl. 

No. 

Short 

particulars of 

the property 

or 

asset(s) 

[including 

complete 

address and 

location of 

the 

property] 

Pincode 

of 

the 

property 

or 

asset(s) 

Date of 

creation 

Amount 

of CSR 

amount 

spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ 

beneficiary of the registered owner 

     CSR 

Registration 

Number, if 

applicable 

 

 

 

Name Registered 

address 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

 

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal 

Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property 

as well as boundaries) 

 

 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 

subsection (5) of section 135. -  There is tight liquidity situation within the company. 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

(suspended during CIRP)  

For Compuage Infocom Limited, 

      

 

Sd/- 

Atul Mehta 

DIN: 00716869 

Managing Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 
√ 

NA 
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Bhavesh Mehta 

DIN: 00740861 

Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 

Taken on Record by 

Gajesh Labhchand Jain 

Resolution Professional 

Reg. No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019 -2020/12588 

 

Date : 08th October, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE-D 

 

Particulars of Employees 

 

 

A. The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below: 

 

i) Details of the ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees 

for the financial year 2022-23: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Directors Designation Ratio to median remuneration of the 

employees 

1.  Mr. Atul H. Mehta Chairman and Managing 

Director 

* 

2.  Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta Whole-Time Director * 

3.  Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh* Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

* 

4.  Mr. Vijay Agarwal** Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

* 

5.  Mr. Virendra G. 

Bhatt*** 

Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

* 

6.  Ms. Hetal Kudecha**** Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

* 

 

* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

***Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 

****Ms. Hetal Kudecha resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 29.03.2023 

 

ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 

Financial Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year 2022-23: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Directors Designation % increase in remuneration 

1. Mr. Atul H. Mehta Chairman and Managing 

Director 

* 

2. Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta Whole-Time Director * 

3. Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh* Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

* 

4. Mr. Vijay Agarwal** Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

* 

5. Mr. Virendra G. 

Bhatt*** 

Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

* 

6. Ms. Hetal Kudecha**** Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

* 

7. Ms. Hasti Pala# Company Secretary 

 

* 

 

* Mr. Ganesh S. Ganesh resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f.14.03.2023 

**Mr. Vijay Agarwal resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

***Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 02.05.2023 

****Ms. Hetal Kudecha resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f 29.03.2023 

# Resigned as Company Secretary w.e.f. 29.03.2023 

 

iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2022-23: 

0.84% 
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iv) *The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:  

 

v) *Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the 

managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 

circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 

 

vi) It is hereby affirmed that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 

B. Details of the every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

 

Particulars Name: Atul H. Mehta 

Age: 63 

Name: Bhavesh H. Mehta 

Age: 50 

Designation, Nature of duties 

and Date of commencement of 

Employment 

Chairman and Managing 

Director,  

Specialized in Finance and 

Strategic Planning (08.09.2008) 

Whole-time Director, Specialized 

in Imports and Logistics 

(18.10.2000) 

Qualification / Experience MBA – U.S.A 

(32) 

M.Com 

(25) 

Gross Remuneration Rs. 1,20,00,000/- 1,20,00,000/- 

Nature of employment Contractual Contractual 

Relationship Brother of Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta, 

Whole-Time Director 

Brother of Mr. Atul H. Mehta, 

Chairman and  Managing Director 

Previous Employment  Business Business 

Percentage of Equity shares 

held in the Company 

20.35% 20.35% 

 

Note: The above amount does not include provision of gratuity, provident fund and leave encashment 

 

Note: 

 

1. Neither Managing Director or Whole-Time Director or any other directors of the Company have received 

any remuneration or commission from subsidiary of the Company.  

 

There were no employees in receipt of remuneration more than the limits prescribed under Section 197(12) 

of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rule, 2014. 

 

2. *Due to overall manpower attrition in the Corporate Debtor and more so in the finance and Information 

Technology department, several challenges including data corruption were faced in its Information 

Technology systems. As a result, management was unable to retrieve employee data and consequently, could 

not calculate the ratio of each Director's remuneration to the median remuneration of the employees for the 

financial year 2022-23. 
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To, 

-
- --------= .s § ==-s ~s 
& Associates 
Company Secretaries 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 
[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
COMPUAGE INFOCOM LIMITED 
309, A to Z Industrial Estate, 
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, 
Lower Parel, Delisle Road, 
Mumbai-400013 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by COMPUAGE INFOCOM LIMITED having CIN: 
L99999MH1999PLC135914 (hereinafter called the 'Company') for the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2023 (the "audit period"/ the period under review). 

We conducted the Secretarial Audit in a manner that provided us with a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
Company's corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

We are issuing this report based on: 

(i) Our verification ofthe Company's books, papers, minutes books, soft copies ofvarious records, 
scanned copies of minutes of the Board, its committees, forms and returns filed and other records 
through virtual data room '/physically maintained by the Company during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2023, as well as before the date of issue of this report; 

(ii) Our observations pursuant to visit to the office of the Company. 
(iii) Compliance certificates confirming compliance with all laws applicable to the Company as 

given by the Key Managerial Personnel I Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company and taken 
on record by the Audit Committee j Board of Directors; and 

(iv) Representations made, documents shown and information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and <:uthorized representatives during our conduct of Secretarial Audit. 

j· 

We hereby report that, in our opinion, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 3151 

March, 2023, the Company has: ' 

(i) Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder; and 
(ii) Board processes and compliance mechanisms are in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

The members are requested to read this report along with our letter of even date annexed to this report as 
Annexure-A. 

Page lof8 

A/1 02 1st Floor. Ramkrupa CHS, Above lnduslnd Bank. SVP Road . Borivali (West) . Mumbai - 400 092 . 
T: +91 22 2890 0426 I 2890 0176 W: www.bnpassociates in 
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1. Compliance with specific statutocy provisions 

We further report that: 

1.1 We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms, and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company during the year according to the applicable provisions f clauses of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') and the Rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment; 
(iv) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder; 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act') 
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 ["SEBI (LODR), 2015'1; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015*; 
(f) Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, 

(vi) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India ('Secretarial 
Standards') as applicable mandatorily to the Company 

*The Company has also maintained a Structured Digital Database ("SDD") pursuant to the requirements 
of regulation 3 (5) and 3 (6) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

j• 
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1.2 During the period under review: 

(i) The Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and 
Secretarial Standards as mentioned above except as stated hereunder: 

As at the end of the period under review, three Independent Directors of the Company have 
resigned. As a result, as on 31•t March, 2023, the composition of the Board of Directors the 
Company and its Committees thereof is not as per Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 and 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company has informed that they will be 
complying with the said requirement within the time limits as mentioned in the SEBI (LODR), 
2015 and the Act. 

(ii) Generally complied with the applicable provisions f clauses of: 

(a} The Act and Rules mentioned under paragraph 1.1 (i) 
(b) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment as mentioned under 
paragraph 1.1 (iii) and 

(c) The Secretarial Standards on meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards 
on General Meetings (SS-2) mentioned under paragraph 1.1 (vi) above, which are applicable 
to the meetings of the Board, Committees constituted by the Board held during the year, the 
Annual General Meeting held on 30th August, 2022. The compliance of the provisions of the 
Rules made under the Act with regard to participation of Directors through video conference 
for the Board/Committee meeting( s) held during the year, were verified based on the signed 
minutes of the meetings provided by the Company. 

1.3 We are informed that during the. period under review, the Company was not required to initiate any 
compliance related action in respect of the following laws f rules f regulations f standards and was 
consequently not required to maintain any books, papers, minute books or other records or file any forms/ 
returns thereunder: 

(i) 
(ii) 
(iii) 
j• 

(iv) 

The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2q21; 
The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021; and 
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of External Commercial Borrowings. 
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We further report that: 

2.1 The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 comprised of: 
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(i) Two Executive Directors- Mr. Atul H. Mehta (DIN: 00716869) (Chairman and Managing Director) 
and Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta (DIN: 00740861) (Whole-Time Director) and Chief Financial Officer 
and Chief Operating officer. 

(ii) Non-Executive Independent Director- Mr. Virendra G. Bhatt (DIN: 02343351) 

2.2 The following processes relating to the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and I or 
Key Managerial Personnel during the year were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act 
and LODR:-

(i) The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28th July, 20 22 has approved the Re-appointment of Mr. 
Bhavesh H. Mehta (DIN: 007 40861) as a Director of the Company who was liable to retire by rotation 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting ("AGM'j of the Company. His appointment has been approved 
by the shareholders at its meeting held on 30th August, 2022. 

(ii) Cessation of Mr. Ganesh S. Shiva (DIN: 00010877), as a Non:.. Executive Independent Director of the 
Company pursuant to his resignation dated 14th March, 2023 w.e.f. 14th March, 2023. 

(iii) Cessation of Ms. Hetal Kudecha (DIN: 09148116), as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company pursuant to her resignation dated 29th March, 2023 w.e.f. 29th March, 2023. 

(iv)Cessation of Mr. Vijay Agarwal (DIN: 00058548), as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company pursuant to his res.ignation dated 29th March, 2023 w.e.f. 29th March, 2023. 

2.3 Adequate notice of the meetings of the Board and its committees were sent to all the directors to enable 
them, to plan their schedule for the meetings of the Board, at least seven days in advance except for few 
meetings which were convened at a shorter notice with the consent of the Board to transact urgent business, 
at which more than one independent director were present as required under Section 173 (3) of the Act and 
SS-1. 

2.4 Agenda and detailed notes em agenda were sent to the directors at least seven days before the meetings 
of fhe Board and its committees, other than in respect of few meetings which were convened at a shorter 
notice to tdinsact urgent business, and necessary compliance as required under Section 173 (3) of the Act 
and SS-1 was in place. 
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· 2.5 Agenda and detailed notes on agenda for the following items were either circulated separately less than 
seven days before or at the Board meetings and consent of the Board for so circulating them was duly 
obtained as required under SS-1 

(i) Supplementary agenda notes and annexures in respect of unpublished price sensitive 
information such as audited financial statement I results, unaudited financial results and 
connected papers; and 

(ii) Additional subjects/ information/ presentations and supplementary notes. 

2.6 A system exists for directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for their meaningful participation at the meeting. 

2. 7 We note from the minutes verified that, at the Board meetings held during the year: 

(i) Decisions were taken through the majority of the Board; and 
(ii) No dissenting views were expressed by any Board member on any of the subject matters 

discussed, which were required to be recorded as part of the minutes. 

3. Compliance mechanism 

There are reasonably adequate systems and processes prevalent in. the Company, which are commensurate 
with the size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 

4. Specific events 1 actions 

4.1 During the year under review, the following specific events/ actions having a major bearing on the 
Company's affairs have taken place: 

1. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 16th May, 2022 has recommended 
approval of dividend ofRs. 0.20/- (Twenty Paise Only) per equity share, i.e., 10% on face value ofRs. 
2.00/- (Rupees Two Only) each out of the profits of the financial year ending on 31st March, 2022. 
The shareholders have approved the said dividend, by way of ordinary resolution, at its meeting held 
on 301hAugust, 2022. · 

j· 2. The Board of Director~ of the Company at its meeting held on 28th July, 2022 has revised the overall 
bo;rowing limits of the Company not exceeding Rs. 1,500 Crore (Rupees Fift~en Hundred Crore Only) 
at any given point of time in pursuance of Section 180(1)(c) of the Act The shareholders have 
approved the revision in the borrowing limits, by way of special resolution, at its meeting held on 
30th August, 2022. 
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3. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 28th July, 2022 has created charge over 
the assets of the Company for an amount not exceeding Rs. 1500 Crore (Rupees Fifteen Hundred 
Crore Only) in pursuance of Section 180(1)(a) of the Act The shareholders have approved the said 
creation of charge, by way of special resolution, at its meeting held on 30th August, 2022. 

4. The Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 261h August, 2022, has approved the 
appointment of Mr. Bhavesh H. Mehta, who holds the position of Whole-Time Director having DIN: 
00710861, as the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company w.e.f 26th 
August, 2022. The shareholders have approved his appointment, by way of ordinary resolution, at its 
meeting held on 301hAugust, 2022. 

5. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 8th December, 2022 has approved the 
allotment of2,07,92,258 shares ofRs. 2 each at price ofRs. 20 each [including a premium ofRs. 18/­
(Rupees 18 only) per equity share] on a rights basis to the eligible equity shareholders of the 
Company. The Company has accordingly completed the said rights issue of the equity shares which 
are listed and permitted to trade on the stock exchanges with effect from Monday, December 19, 
2022. 

6. Cessation of Ms. Hasti Pala (ICSI Membership No.: A67841), as Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer of the Company pursuant to her resignation w.e.f. 3 Qth March, 20 23. 

Date: 13th July, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure A to the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 

31st March, 2023 

Compuage lnfocom Limited 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. The Company's management is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with 

the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards. Our responsibility is 

to express an opinion on the secretarial records produced for our audit 

2 .. We have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 

3. We have considered compliance related actions taken by the Company based on independent legal 

/professional opinion obtained as being in compliance with law. 

4. We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the correct facts are 

reflected therein. We have also examined the compliance procedures followed by the Company on a test 

basis. We believe that the processes and practices we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company. 
I' 

Page 7 of8 

56



& Associates 
T: + 91 22 2890 0426 

+ 91 22 2890 0176 
W: www.bnp-associates.com 

6. We have obtained the management's representation about the compliance oflaws, rules and regulations 

and happening of events, wherever required. 

7. Our Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Date: 13th July, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Company Secretaries 

CERTIFICATE OF NON- DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) ofthe SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

To, 
The Members of 
Compuage Infocom Limited 
D-601/602&G-601/602, 
Lotus Corporate Park, 
Steel Compound, Western Express Highway, 
Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai-400063 

We have examined the relevant books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed, notices 
received from the Directors for the financial year 2022-23 and other records maintained by the 
Compuage lnfocom Limited having CIN: L99999MH1999PLC135914 (hereinafter referred 
to as the 'the Company') having its registered office at D-601/602&G-601/602, Lotus Corporate 
Park, Steel Compound, Western Express Highway, Goregaon· (East), Mumbai-400063 and also 
the information provided by the officers, agents and authorised representatives of the Company 
for the purpose of issue of Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule 
V Para-e sub clause 10 (i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended vide notification no SEBI/ LAD/ 
NRO/GN/2018/10 dated 09th May 2018 issued by SEBI. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications [including 
verification of Directors Identification Number (DIN) status as per the portal of Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) i.e. www.mca.gov.in ] as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to us by the Company & its Officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on 
the Board of the Company as stated below, for the financial year ending on 31st March 2023, 
have been debarred or ~isqualified from being appointed or continuing to act as Director of the 

1· Company by Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government 
oflndia or by any such other statutory regulatory authority. 

Sr. DIN Name of the Director Designation Date of 
No Appointment 

* 
1. 00716869 Atul Harkishandas Chairman and Managing 08/09/2008 

Mehta Director 
2. 00740861 Bhavesh Mehta Whole-Time Director 18/10/2000 
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Sr. DIN Name ofthe Director 
No 

3. 02343351 Virendra Gunvantrai 
Bhatt 

Designation 

Non-Executive-
Independent Director, 
Employee Director 
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Date of 
Appointment 

* 
25/02/2021 

* Dates of Appointment of Directors as stated above are based on information appearing on the 
MCAPortal. 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment f continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the Management of the Company. We further state that this certificate is 
neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Date: 13th July, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 

Page 2 of 2 

Company Secretarie , 
[Firm Regn. No. P2014MH037400 

Avinash Bagul 
Partner 

FCS No.: -5578 
COP No.: -19862 

PR No.: - 637/2019 
UDIN:F005578E000606178 

59



Annexure F 

 

 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 

referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 

transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Not applicable 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: Not 

applicable 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

(suspended during CIRP)  

 

Compuage Infocom Limited, 

      

 

Sd/- 

 

Atul Mehta 

DIN: 00716869 

Managing Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 

Bhavesh Mehta 

DIN: 00740861 

Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 

Taken on Record by 

Gajesh Jain 

Resolution Professional 

Reg. No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019 -2020/12588 

 

Date : 08th October, 2024 

Place: Mumbai 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

Compuage Infocom Limited-Industry structure  

 

 
Compuage Infocom Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Company / Compuage”), had developed as one of India's major IT and 

Mobility products distribution intermediaries over the course of more than three decades. The Company has established a robust 

network of resellers to extend the wave of digital connectivity throughout the nation and beyond. Company’s product line consists of 

PCs, components, and peripherals, cloud computing, mobility devices, enterprise solutions, and physical safety and security. The 

Company is based in Mumbai and has 46 offices, partnerships with 28 global brands, 25 warehouses and 69 service centres in 600+ 

cities across the country with a network of over 12,000 resellers assures the smooth delivery of the products. The Company has its 

global footprints over 7 countries across SAARC nations. The Company handles the entire supply chain, including procurement, 

warehousing, bulk breaking, technical assistance, material transfer and credit distribution. 

 

The business has been divided into four distinct product segments: IT Consumer, IT Enterprise Solutions, Cloud Computing, and 

Hardware Services. IT Consumer majorly deals in PCs, audio / video products, peripherals, mobiles and accessories, etc., and brands 

associated here are Asus, HP, SanDisk, Samsung and various other brands. IT Enterprise segment deals in products related to security, 

software, power and network infrastructure, etc., and some of the major brands here are Cisco, Microsoft, etc.  

 

These 2 divisions have been in existence for a long while, while cloud computing and hardware services divisions are of recent past. 

Cloud computing products include business applications, cloud management services, etc., of Microsoft, SAP and many others, while 

under hardware services, the Company provides warranty services which include basic and chip level repairs for brands like HP, Asus, 

Vertiv and few others. Compuage with its PAN India network and efficient supply chain provides immense value to its vendors taking 

care of their distribution angle and providing a wider reach to their products while they can focus on their core competency. 

 

 

Financial Year 2022-23-Development 

 
FY22-23 was a challenging year for the industry. It began with the deadly second wave of Covid-19 which brought back the lockdown 

restrictions to prevent the spread of the virus. As the year progressed, the lockdown restrictions were eased before the country was 

again hit by the third wave of Covid-19 which didn’t prove to be a deadlier one and lasted for a short period of time. Another major 

disruption faced during the year was on account of shortage of semi-conductors. The production timelines for the manufacturers who 

were dependent on semi-conductors were impacted and hence the supply of the end finished product.  

 

In FY22-23, the demand was led by restarting of offices while some of the demand continued to come from work from home 

segments. We believe the future of work will be a mix of work from office and home. This will require new additional investments by 

the corporates in the areas of remote working and cloud services. The demand for mobiles and laptops has also increased for personal 

use for efficient communication, education and entertainment purposes. All these factors collectively will lead to sustainable demand. 

 

IT products in the long term have to grow on sustainable basis given the need for the digitalization especially in our country. The 

world is moving in a rapid space towards complete digitalization, and this is not possible without an extensive use of IT products and 

its services. 

 

The business of the Company has been severely disrupted on account of extremely tight liquidity situation and inadequate support 

from major vendors and lenders, who have recalled the credit facilities. This situation has been further aggravated by high level of 

manpower attrition resulting in serious gaps in maintenance of IT systems and records. The Company has defaulted in respect of 

instalments and payment of interest on term loans and dues on account of cash credits from Banks., The Company had submitted a 

restructuring plan to the lenders , however, it was not accepted by them 

 

 

Outlook 

 
Companies all over the world are increasingly putting an emphasis on specialisation, while at the same time, they are continuing to 

outsource the services that are not important to their business. This has two advantages over other options. First, it enables the 

organisation to concentrate on its core business, so that both the management team's available bandwidth and the company's resources 

may be redirected toward the areas that truly count. Second, it enables them to reduce expenses by outsourcing their non-core 

operations and delegating them to businesses that are specialised in those areas and are able to do the same functions at a reduced cost. 

In other words, it enables them to cut costs by reducing their overhead. 
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The industry of distribution is likewise going through this shift at the moment. Compuage, as a top distribution player, delivers great 

value to Company’s vendor partners by taking care of its vendor partners' distribution angle and offering a larger reach to their 

products. This helps free up Company’s vendor partners to focus on their primary expertise, which is producing innovative products.  

 

Going forward, the Company’s focus will continue to keep on adding new brands to its portfolio, penetrate newer regions to increase 

the scale of the business, improve the product mix and optimize the cost structure to drive the profitability and thus create value for all 

its stakeholders. 

 

Opportunities and Risks 

 
A growing number of foreign brands wish to enter the Indian market in order to capitalise on its potential. Such brands often desire a 

sophisticated distribution system covering the country's geographical borders and reaching customers across India, which would 

accelerate their brand's growth. 

 

Current and emerging product lines are witnessing expansion, resulting in the emergence of numerous new product concepts. This 

affords the opportunity to not only expand existing product lines, but also enter new product categories to meet the wants of 

consumers. In view of the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process the Company has not been able to encash many 

opportunities during the period under review. The Company is hopeful to perform better in the next year. Any downward movement of 

product prices of the investee Companies could affect their margins, which could be a threat to the Company`s fortunes. 

 

 

Internal control systems and their adequacy 

 

The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate framework for internal financial controls commensurate with the 

size, scale and complexity of the Company’s operations. 
 

Disclaimer 
 

Certain statements made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report relating to the Company constitute as ‘forward looking 

statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from such expectations whether expressed 

or implied. Several factors could make significant difference to the Company’s operations. These include climatic and economic 

conditions affecting demand and supply, government regulations and taxation, natural calamities over which the Company does not 

have any direct control. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board  

(suspended during CIRP)  

 

Compuage Infocom Limited,      

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Atul Mehta 

DIN: 00716869 

Managing Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 

Bhavesh Mehta 

DIN: 00740861 

Director (Suspended Director) 

 

 

Taken on Record by 

Gajesh Jain 

Resolution Professional 

Reg. No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01697/2019 -2020/12588 

 

Date : 08th October, 2024 

Place: Mumbai  
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BHOGILAL C. SHAH & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
2A, Shree Pant Bhuvan, 1st floor, Sandhurst Bridge, Mumbai 400 007. 
Phone: 2361 0939 

PARTNERS: 
SNEHAL V.SHAH 
SURIL V. SHAH 

B. Com., F.C.A., M.M. (U.S.A.) 
B. Com., A.C.A., M.B.A. (U.S.A.) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 
The Members of 
Compuage Infocom Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying standalone financial statements of Compuage Infocom Limited ("the 
Company"). which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 st March, 2023. the Standalone Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Incoms), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statemenl of 
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, Including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ''the standalone financial 
statements"). 

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying standalone fi nancial statements of the Company. Because of 
the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not 
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these standalone 
financial statements. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

(a) As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, all the directors of the company except two directors and 
Company Secretary have resigned from their positions in the Company prior to commencement of the 
Corporate Inso!vency Resolution Process ("C!RP") on 2nd November 2023. Upon commencement of the 
CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and are exercised by the 
Resolution Professional ("RP"). Since these financial statements belong to the period when the affairs of the 
company were being managed and governed by the erstwhile Board of Directors of the Company, these 
financial statements have been prepared with the same "basis of preparation" as adopted by the erstwhile 
Board of Directors as enumerated upon the Board under Section 134(5), of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
related regulations, while highlighting/addressing any material departures as per the current conditions and 
events which occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date. While Signing the aforesaid financial 
statements, the Resolution Professional (RP) has relied on the representation and statements made by 
existing staff/heads of the departments and accounts, Finance and Tax team of the Company. We have 
been given to understand that RP has signed the attached financial statements solely for the purpose of 
compliance and discharging his duty under the CIRP, governed by the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 (the "Code") . 

(b) As mentioned in note 43 to the financial statements, pursuant to the commencement of CIRP of the Company 
under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, there are various claims submitted by the financial creditors, 
operational creditors, employees and other creditors to the RP. The overall obligations and liabilities 
including interest on loans and the principal amount of loans shall be. determined upon the succe.ssful 
resolution of the Company. Pending final outcome of the CIRP, no accounting impact in the books of 
accounts has been made in respect of excess or short claims or non-receipts of claims for operational and 
financial creditors. Hence, consequential impact, if any, is currently not ascertainable and we are unable to 
comment on possible financial impact of the same. 

(c) Books of Accounts 
As stated In note 1 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the books of accounts maintained 
on SAP are not accessible due to high level of manpower attrition resulting in serious gaps in maintenance 
of IT systems and records. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate evidence to substantiate the same, 
we are unable to verify and comment on whether the books of accounts maintained on SAP are accessible 
or not and the consequent impact on the standalone financial statements. As such, in the absence of 
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accessibility to books of accounts, we have conducted the audit on the basis of alternate procedures to the 
extent possible. 

(d) Inventories 
Inventories are being carried at Rs. 16,735.38 lakhs out of which Rs. 2,307.40 lakhs are located at Singapore 
Branch which is not audited by us. The management was of the view that these inventories continue to remain 
marketable. However, due to ongoing default in payment to lenders who hold a hypothecation charge on 
these inventories, certain sale restrictions have been imposed. As most of the inventories remain unsold, the 
realizable value of the inventories is in doubt. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate evidence to support 
the management's assessment with respect to realizable value of the inventories, we are unable to comment 
on whether the inventories are being carried at cost or realizable value, whichever is lower as required by Ind 
AS 2 and the consequent impact, if any, on the carrying value of the aforesaid inventories. 

(e) Trade Receivables and Provision for Doubtful Debts 
Trade Receivables are being carried at Rs. 54,597.82 lakhs out of which Rs. 1 ,772.53Iakhs are of Singapore 
Branch which is not audited by us. Amount of Provision for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables of 
Rs. 46,103.29 Lakhs has been disclosed in note 6 and not debited to the Profit and Loss Account and has 
not been reduced from Trade Receivables in the Balance Sheet which is not in accordance with Ind AS. As 
stated in note 1 due to restrictions imposed by lenders on inventory sales, the Company is currently unable 
to make further supplies to customers. This disruption in the purchase-sales-collection cycle has posed 
challenges in debt collection and recovery. The expected realization of the amounts outstanding from 
customers is uncertain. Further, requests for confirmations had been sent to a sample of debtors. However, 
no replies were received from them. Due to unavailability of confirmations, we are unable to comment on the 
impact, if any, on the carrying value of the aforesaid Trade Receivables, its Ageing Schedule and the 
adequacy of Provision for Expected Credit Loss. Further, as the Provision for Expected Credit Loss of Rs. 
46,103.29 has been disclosed as a note and not debited to the Profit and Loss Account, the loss has been 
understated to that extent. 

(f) Balances with Government Authorities 
Balances with Government Authorities are being carried at Rs. 6,546.80 lakhs. This balance comprises of 
VAT paid on account of disputed cases of Rs. 56.64Iakhs, Customs Duty Refund of Rs. 195.42 lakhs, Unjust 
Enrichment of Rs. 47.82 lakhs and GST Input Credit Available of Rs. 6,246.92 lakhs. The recoverability of 
VAT Refund, Customs Duty Refund and Unjust Enrichment depends on the outcome of the cases filed with 
the respective government departments. Availability and Utilization of GST Input Credit depends on the 
outcome of the CIRP and whether the Company is able make payments to its suppliers and to sell products 
in the future. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, on the carrying value of the 
aforesaid Balances with Government Authorities. 

(g) Trade Payables 
Trade Payables are being carried at Rs. 33,392.39 lakhs. Confirmations from certain parties are not available. 
Due to unavailability of confirmations, we are unable to ascertain the impact on the carrying value of the 
aforesaid Trade Payables, its ageing schedule and corresponding impact, if any, on Purchase of stock-in­
trade. 

(h) Purchase of stock-in-trade 
Purchase Rate Difference of Rs. 13,942.29 lakhs has been credited to this account. Proper records for 
verification of this amount were not available . Accordingly, we are unable to ascertain the impact on this 
amount and the corresponding impact, if any, on the loss of the Company. 

(i) Impairment to Debtors 
Impairment to Debtors of Rs. 8,392.70 lakhs is on account of loss on Merchanting Transaction. Based on 
available documentation related to the transaction , we are unable to ascertain the impact on this amount and 
the corresponding impact, if any, on the loss of the Company. 

(j) We have been informed that the report submitted by the Forensic Auditor appointed by Committee of 
Creditors is confidential. Further, we have been informed by the Interim Resolution Professional & Resolution 
Professional that certain information including the minutes of meetings of the Committee of Creditors and the 
outcome of certain procedures carried out as part of the CIRP are confidential in nature and could not be 
shared with anyone other than the Committee of Creditors and NCL T. Accordingly, we are unable to comment 
on the possible financial impact, presentation and disclosures, if any, that may arise if we had been provided 
access to such information. 
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Material uncertainty related to Going Concern 

The financial statements are presented with the assumption that the Company will be able to continue its operations 
and that it has the ability to meet its financial obligations and liabilities in the normal course of business. As stated in 
note 1 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the business of the Company has been severely 
disrupted on account of extremely tight liquidity situation and inadequate support from major vendors and lenders, 
who have recalled the credit facili ties. This situation has been further aggravated by high level of manpower attrition 
resulting in serious gaps in maintenance of IT systems and records. The Company has defaulted in respect of 
instalments and payment of interest on term loans and dues on account of cash credits from Banks. As confirmed by 
the management, the Company had submitted a restructuring plan to the lenders which has not been accepted by 
them. The Company is undergoing the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as explained in detail in note 42. 
Such events and conditions, along with the matters described in the section of Disclaimer of Opinion in our report, 
and their possible impact on erstwhile management's assumptions, and other matters as set forth in note 1. indicate 
that materia! unoertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concem. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate evidence, we are unable to comment as to whether the going 
concem basis for the preparation of these financial statements 1aken by the Resolution Professional is appropriate. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period . These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the standalone financial statements as a whole , and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

Except for the matters discussed in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion Paragraph, there are no other Key Audit 
Matters to be communicated in the Auditor's Report. 

Responsibility of Management for the standalone financial statements 

The Company has been under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP") under the proVisions of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("the Code ') vide order dated 2nd November 2023 passed by the National 
Company Law Tribunal ("NCL 1'). The powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended as per Section 17 of the 
Code and such powers were being exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (I RP) appointed by the NCL T by 
the said order under the prOVisions of the Code. As per Section 20 of the Code, the management and operations of 
the Company were being managed by the Interim Resolution Professional Mr. Arun Kapoor upon commencement of 
CIRP. Subsequently, vide order dated 29th April 2024 passed by NCL T, the IRP Mr. Arun Kapoor was replaced by 
Resolution Professional (AP) Mr. Gajesh Labhchand Jain who is now responsible forthe management and operations 
of the Company. 

The management is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pOSition, financial performance, 
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind 
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specifred under 
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequa's accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; maktng Judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and deSign, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accouniing records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern , disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concem and using1he going concern 
basis of accounting unless management erther intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. Under Section 20 of the Code, It Is incumbent upon the Resolution Professional to 
manage the operations of the Company as a going concern upon initiation of CI RP and the financial statements which 
have been prepared on going concern basis have been considered by the Resolution Professional accordingly. 

The management is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, and to issue an auditor's report. However, because 
of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these standalone financial statements. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (,ICA!') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

Other Matter 

We have not audited the financial statements and other financial information of one of the branches located outside 
India. 

These financial statements and financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the standalone financial statements, in so far as it relates to 
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the foreign branch and our report in terms of section 143 (3) of 
the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid foreign branch is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

The financial statements and other financial information of the foreign branch which is located outside India whose 
financial statements and other financial information has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in that country and which has been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing 
standards applicable in that country. The Company's management has oonverted the financial statements of this 
branch located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in its respective country to accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company's 
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of the branch located outside India is 
based on the reports of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the Management of the Company 
and audited by us. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports 
of the other auditors. 

Report on legal and other regulatory requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of SUb-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable, which is subject to the possible effects of 
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above and the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 
in our separate Report on the Internal Controls over Financial Reporting. 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of its foreign branch, as noted in the 
"other matters" paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable that: 

(a) as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above, we have sought but were unable to obtain 
all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit; 

(b) as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section, we are unable to state whether proper books of 
account as required by law have been kept by the Company; 

(c) as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section, we are unable to state whetherthe Balance Sheet, 
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) due to the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section , we are 
unable to state whether the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ; 

(e) the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion and in the Material Uncertainty related to Going 
Concern section above , in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company. 

(f) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on 31 5t March 2023, and taken on 
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record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31St March, 2023 from being 
appointed as a director, in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(g) the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated 
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above. 

(h) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure B. Our report expresses 
disclaimer opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting for the reasons stated 
therein; 

(i) with respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; 

(j) other than the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph 
above, with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us : 

(i) the Company has disclosed the impact on pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 
financial statements; 

(ii) the Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses: 

(Iii) there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of fu nds) by the Company to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entity (" Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 
entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on be,half of the funding party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under subclause (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement 

(v) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with section 123 of the 
Act. 

For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's registration No. 101424W 

~LUo'&~ 
r 
Suril Shah 

Partner 
Membership No. 42710 

UDIN: 24042710BKGWNP7292 
Mumbai, October 8, 2024 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the standalone 
financial statements for the period ended 31 51 March 2023, we report that: 

(i) (a) (A) As stated in note 1 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the books of accounts 
maintained on SAP are not accessible due to high level of manpower attrition resulting in serious 
gaps in maintenance of IT systems and records. 
In view of the above, we are unable to comment on whether the Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & 
Equipment. 

(B) Due to the reasons stated in (A) above, we are unable to comment on whether the Company 
has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) As explained to us, the Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the 
management in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion, is 
reasonable , considering the size and nature of its business. As explained to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) As explained to us, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the 
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) 
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) As explained to us, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment or intangible 
assets during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

(e) As explained to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and rules made thereunder. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(ii) (a) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by 
the management. In our opinion , the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable 
and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No 
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. 

(b) As explained to us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore 
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit, in our opinion, the quarterly 
returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions upto 31 51 

December 2022 are in agreement with the books of account of the Company. 

As stated in note 1 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the books of accounts 
maintained on SAP are not accessible due to high level of manpower attrition resulting in serious 
gaps in maintenance of IT systems and records. 

In view of the above, we are unable to comment on whether the returns or statements filed by the 
Company with such banks or financial institutions for the quarter ended 31 51 March 2023 are in 
agreement with the books of account of the Company. 

(iii) The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms , Limited Liability Partnerships 
or any other parties during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and 
security, as applicable. 
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(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of Sections 73 and 76 of the 
Act. In respect of unclaimed deposits, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 74 and 
75 or any other relevant provisions of the Act. We are informed by the management that no order has 
been passed by the Company Law Board, National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or 
any Court or any other Tribunal. 

(vi) As explained to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of Cost Records under 
section 148(1), Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company, 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been generally regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, SalE~s Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Cusfoms, Duty of Excise, 
Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year 
except for Income Tax. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other 
material statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31 sl March 2023 for a period at more than six months 
from the date they became payable except for Income Tax tor A. Y. 2021-22 amounting to Rs. 
3,41 ,69,670/- and Income Tax tor A. Y. 2022-23 amounting to Rs. 3,30,81,6001-. The Company has 
made an application to the Income Tax Department to adjust this tax payable for A. Y. 2021-22 
against refund due tor A. Y. 2020-21 amounting to Rs. 4,29,62,590/- as determined by Intimation 
u/s 143(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the amounts which have not been 
deposited as on 31 51 March 2023 on account of any dispute, are as follows: 

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the 
statute Dues (Rs. in the amount relates dispute is pending 

lakhs) 
Sales Tax & Sales Tax 3.67 I 2014-2015 A.C. Appeal 

Entry Tax Acts and Entry Tax 18.94 2007-2013 D.C. Appeal 
of respective 4.82 2009-2010 D.C. Appeal 

states 9.82 2010-2011 D.C. Appeal 
24.50 2011-2012 D.C. Appeal 
8.08 2012-2013 D.C. Appeal 

15.00 2013-2014 D.C. Appeal 
31.71 2014-2015 D.C. Appeal 
6.42 2015-2016 D.C. Appeal 
4.10 2016-2017 D.C. Appeal 

36.43 2015-2016 J.C. Appeal 
I 

Goods and Goods and 82.30 2017-2018 
Service Tax Act, Service Tax 

2017 
The Customs Custom Duty 1,088.93 2009-2022 Departmental 

Act, 1962 Authorities I CESTAT 
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 6,554.45 2019-20 

I 
CIT (Appeals) 

1961 

(viii) As explained to us, there are no transactions which were not recorded in the books of account which have 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
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(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
defaulted in repayment of loans and other borrowings and in the payment of interest thereon to 
lenders as stated below (details provided to the extent available) : 

S. Nature of borrowing Name of Amount not Whether No. of days 
No. Lender paid on due principal or delay or 

date (Rs. in interest unpaid 
lakhs\ 

1. Unsecured Loan 
I 

Arka Fincap 216.88 Principal 6 
Limited 

2. I Unsecured Loan Arka Fincap 
I 

24.77 Principal 5 
Limited 

3. Unsecured Loan Arka Fincap 121 .64 Principal 2 
Limited 

4. GECL Loan Bandhan 12.41 Both 26 
Bank 

5. GECL Loan Central Bank 57.38 
I 

Both 
I 

42 
of India 

6. GECL Loan Central Bank I 57.38 Both 14 
of India 

7. GECL Loan Indian Bank 34.71 Both 31 
8. GECL Loan I Indian Bank I 34.12 Both 2 
9. Unsecured Loan Livfin India 76.95 

I 
Principal I 5 

Pvt. Ltd. 
10. Unsecured Loan Livfin India 49.99 Principal 3 

Pvt. Ltd. 
11 . I Unsecured Loan Livfin India 79.96 Principal 

I 
2 

Pvt. Ltd. 
12. Term Loan Mahindra & 7.48 Principal 25 

Mahindra 
Financial 

Services Ltd. 
13. Working Capital Loan Equentia 59.99 Principal 2 

Financial 
Service Pvt 

Ltd 

14. Working Capital Loan Equentia 234.99 Principal 1 
Financial 

Service Pvt 
Ltd 

15. Working Capital Loan Profectus 139.91 Principal 7 
Capital Pvt 

Ltd 

16. Working Capital Loan Profectus 359.43 Principal 6 
Capital Pvt 

Ltd 

17. Unsecured Loan Siemens 397.32 Principal 26 
Factoring 
Pvt. Ltd. 

18. Unsecured Loan Siemens 

I· 
198.62 Principal 22 

Factoring 
Pvt . Ltd. 

19. GECL Loan Tata Capital 15.07 I Principal 
I 54 

Ltd. 
20. GECL Loan Tata Capital 14.56 

I 
Principal 26 

Ltd. 
21. Working Capital Loan Eight 500.00 Principal 23 

Finance Pvt. 
Ltd. -

~\.C.S~ 
~~ ~ b 
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(b) As explained to us, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were 
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on short 
term basis have not been utilized for long term purpose. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offering or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has made preferential allotment of shares during the year. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us the requirements of section 42 and 
section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the fun ds raised have been 
used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. 

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on 
the Company has been noticed or reported during the' year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and 
upto the date of this report. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle-blower complaints received during 
the year by the Company. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
all transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under 
audit have been considered by us. 

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
them. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 4S-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
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(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIG) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(d) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, there is no CIC as part of the Group. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvii) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 20,095.12 lakhs in the financial year. The Company has not 
incurred cash loss in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 
3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xix) As referred to in "Material uncertainty related to Going Concern" paragraph in our main audit report and 
as disclosed in Note 1 to the accompanying standalone financial statements and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the erstwhile Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, there exists a material uncertainty as on the date of the audit report that Company may not 
be capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

(xx) (a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act in respect of other than 
ongoing projects has not been transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies 
Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso 
to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. 

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing 
projects has not been transferred to special account in compliance with provision of sub section (6) 
of section 135 of the Companies Act. 

For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's registration No. 101424W 

~~-fu~ ,-
Suril Shah 

Partner 
Membership No. 42710 

UDIN : 24042710BKGWNP7292 
Mumbai , October 8, 2024 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub~section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Compuage Infocom Limited ("the 
Company") as of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

We do not express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Cornpany. Because of 
the significance of the matters described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion" section of our report, we have not 
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

The system of internal financial controls over financial reporting with regard to the Company were not made available 
to us to enable us to determine if the Company has established adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 st March 2023 due to reasons 
as stated in Note 1 of the financial statements. 

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICA!') . These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 to the exient applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

However, because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not 
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the Company's internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the -preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements-in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's registration No.1 01424W 

?u.....¥!.Y&9 
r 
Suril Shah 

Partner 
Membership No. 42710 

UDIN: 24042710BKGWNP7292 
Mumbai, October 8, 2024 
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Compuage Infocom Limited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

( ~ in Lakh unless otherwise suued) 
Particulars I ~ote 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 

A. ASSETS 
I. Non-current assets 

a) Property. plant and equipment 2 
b) Intangible assets 2 
c) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 3 
(ii) Others financial assets 4 

Total non-current assets 
2. Current assets 

a) Inventories 5 
b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 6 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8 
(iv) Loans 9 
(v) Other financial assets 10 

c) Current tax assets (net) II 
d) Other current assets 12 

Total current assets I 
TOTAL ASSETS 
B. EQliITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

a) Equity share capital 13 
b) Other equity 14 

Total equity I I 
Liabilities 

1. Non-current liabilities 
a) Financialliabilities 

(i) Borrowings 15 
b) Provisions 16 
c) Deferred t<L'l liabilities (net) 17 

Total non-current liabilities 
2. Current liabilities 
a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 18 
(ii) Tradc payables 19 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small 
enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro and small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 20 
b) Other current liabilities 21 
C) Provisions 22 
d) Current tax liabilities (net) 17 

Total current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Significant accountin/? policies 1 
The above Balance Sheet should be read In conjunction wlth the accompanymg Notes 

As per our report of even date 
For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Firm Reg. No.: 101424W 
Chartered Accountants 

(CA. S. V. Shah) 
Partner 
Membership No. : 042710 
Place: l\Iumbai I. _ / I 
Dated : ~ ~UV !).to;J14 

" 

Suspended Director 

4.854.15 4.855.19 
0.56 0.65 

139.28 158.22 
- 448.05 

4.993.99 5,462.11 

16.735.38 43.697.63 

54.597.82 52.083.26 
1.233.61 507.21 
8.047.05 7.958.35 

19.10 22.13 
1.210.73 1.174.99 

280.84 -

6.705.18 6.805.37 
88.829.71 112.248.94 
93.823.70 117.711.05 

1.715.36 1.299.52 
6.993.55 23.427.09 
8.708.91 24.726.61 

- 4.779.8 1 
- 206.91 
- 421.77 
. I 5,408.49 

50.001.79 50.106.24 

- -

33.392.39 33.970.80 
1.234.77 1.516.06 

185.31 1.783.81 
300.53 30.00 

- 169.04 
85.114.79 87.575.95 
85.114.79 I 92.984.44 
93.823.70 117,711.05 

97/2019 -2020/12588 

Bhavesh Mehta 
Suspended Director 
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Compuage Infocom Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 
Particulars Note 2022-23 2021-22 

Revenue from operations 23 373,948.47 420,750.18 
Other income 24 602.71 1,644.96 
Total Income 374,551.18 422 395.14 
Expenses 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 342,344.37 414,912.46 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 26 26,962.25 (11,758.83) 
Employee benefits expense 27 3,443.91 3,476.85 
Finance costs 28 7,379.13 7,442.99 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2 307.71 340.69 
Other expenses 29 14,235.96 4,314.77 I 

Total Expenses 394,673.33 418,728.93 
Profit before exceptional items and tax (20,122.15) 3,666.21 
Profit before tax (20,122.15) 3,666.21 
Tax expense 
Current tax 17 5.48 954.53 
Tax for Earlier Years 17 275.20 -

Deferred tax 17 (421.77) 34.70 
Total tax expense (141.09) 989.23 
Profit for the year (19.981.06) 2 ,676.98 
Other Comprehensive Income I 
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

- Remeasurment of Defined Employee Benefit Plans - 17.80 
- Income Tax relating to above items - (4.48) 

b) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss 
- Foreign Currency Transalation difference (65.14) (20.61) 
- Income Tax relating to above items - 5.19 

Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax (65.14) (2.10) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (20,046.20) 2,674.88 
Earnings per Equity share attributable to owners of the 
Company 

No. of shares 857.68 649.76 
Basic and diluted earning per Equity share of ~ each (28.16) 4.12 
Significant accounting policies 1 
The above Profit & Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes 

As per our report of even date 
For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Firm Reg. No.: 101424W 
Chartered Accountants 

For and Behalf on behalf of Compuage Infocom Limited 

(CA. S. V. Shah) 
Partner 
Membership No. : 042710 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: c5},"", C'eioW,.!J.O!l.4 

Suspended Director 

fIP·p 01697/2019 -2020/12588 

Bhavesh Mehta 
Suspended Director 
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COJ\.1PUAGE INFOCOM LIMITED 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023 

( ~ In Lakhs) 

Particulars March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

A. Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Profit before tax (20.122.15) 3.666.21 
Adjustment For. 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 307.71 340.69 

Impairment of Debtors 8,392.70 . 

Unrealised Exchange Rate Diffference (Net) (65.14) (23.40) 

Finance costs 7.379. 13 7.442.99 

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost (563.0:!) (1.627.95) 

Loss I (Gain) on Sale of Property. Plant & Equipment 1.54 -
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (4.669.23) 9.798.54 
Chanaes in working capital: 
Decrea,e!(Increas<,) In Inventories 26.962.25 (11.758.83) 
Decrell5eJ(rncrell5e) In Trade Receivables (10,907.26) 3.392.64 

Decrell5e!(lncrease) In Current Loans 3.03 677.10 
Decrea~eI(lncrease ) In Other Current Assets 112.35 3.326.64 

Decrease/(lncrease) In Other Financial Assets (35.74) 822.58 
Increase I(Decrease) In Trade Payables (578.41 ) 9.597.20 

Increase I(Decrease) In Other Financial Liabilities (281.29) 1.088.63 

Increase I(Decrease) In Other Current Liabil ities (1.767.54) (1 ,797.96) 

Increase I(Decrease) In provisions 63.62 40.14 

Total 13.57 1.01 5.388.14 
Income tax paid (net of refund) (57 3.68) (600.37) 

Net Cash lnflow/(Outflow) From Operating Activities (A) 8.328.10 I 14,586.31 

B. Cash Flows From Investing Acthities 
Purchase of Property. plant and equipment (325.82) (484.44) 

Sale of Property. plant and equipment 17.70 -
Sale/(Purchase) of Non-Current Investments 18.94 15.80 
Proceeds from 1 (Payment of) fixed deposits 359.35 ( 1.541.54) 
Interest received on financial assets measured at amortised cost 563.02 1.627.95 
~et Cash lnflow/(Outflow) From Investing Acthities (B) 633.19 (382.231 

C. Ca h Flows From Financing Activities 
Proceed~ from Issuance of Equity Share Capital under Rights Issue 4.158.45 -
Proceeds from 1 (Repayment of) Current Borrowings (104.45) (4.572.62) 
Proceeds from I (Repayment of) Non Current Borrowings (4,779.81) (2.330.65) 
Interest Paid (7,379.13) (7,442.99) 
Dividend on Equity shares ( 129.95) (J?9.95) 

f:'\et Cash Inflow/(Outflow) From Financing Activities ( C) (8,234.8911 (14.476.21) 

I~et Increasel(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 726.40 (272.13) 

Cash And Cash Equivalents As At Beginning or The Year 507.21 779.34 
Cash And Cash Equivalents As At End Of The Year 1.233.61 507.21 

i) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 - Statement of 
Cash Rows as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015. 

As per our report of even date 

For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 

Firm Reg. No.: 101424W 
Chartered Accountants 

(CA. S. V. Shah) 
Partner 
Membership No. : 042710 
Place : Mumbai L . , _ I. 
Dated: c9-H, ockJ Q.lj .!:l-C);.J.I-f 

For and Behalf on behalf of Compuage Infocom Limited 

Suspended Director 

0169712019 ·2020/12588 

~AI* 
Bhavesh Mehta 
Suspen'ded Director 
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Compuage Infocom Limited 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 
c- A. E (luity Share Capital 

p>' 
Particulars Note Amount 

As at April 01, 2021 13 1,299.52 

Changes in Equity share capital during the year -

As at March 31, 2022 13 1,299.52 
Changes in Equity share capital during the year 415.84 

As at March 31, 2023 13 1,715.36 

B. Othel' Equity - -
Reserves nnd Surplus 

Particulnrs 
Secul'ities 

General Capital 
Capital 

Premium redemption 
Resel've 

Reservc rescI'Ve 
reserve 

As at Apl'il 01,2022 3,668.80 35.36 134.84 129.72 

Profit for the year - - - -

Other Comprehensive Income - - - -

T otal comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Preferential allotment-Rights Issue 3,742.61 - - -
Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners:-
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) 

- - - -
As at March 31, 2023 7,411.41 35.36 134.84 129.72 
The above Statement of Changes in ECJuity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Retained 
Total other 

E<luity 
Earnings 

19,458.37 23,427.09 
( 19,981.06) (19,981.06) 

(65.\4) (65.14) 
(20,046.20) (20,046.20) 

- 3,742.61 

( 129.95) (129.95) 
(717.78) 6,993.55 
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Compuage Infocom Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023. 

Note 1: Corporate Information/Overview: 

Compuage Infocom Limited (The Company) is a public Limited Company domiciled in Indiaand incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on the BSE Ltd and NSE Ltd. 

Business Overview and Challenges: 

Business Overview: 
Compuage is in the business of distribution of technology products, services, software & telecom products. It helps 
marquee brands like ASUS, HP, CISCO, Microsoft and tens of others bring their products to the markets through 
10,000+ resellers. It also offers warranty services as value addition and also to shore up its bottom line. 

It has a strong reputation built over three decades and operates through a nationwide network comprising 45 sales 
offices, 27 warehouses, and 70 service centers. An international presence in Singapore caters to the Asia Pacific 
region. Compuage is one of the few distributors handling major brands like Asus, Cisco, HP, and Microsoft. It has 
received numerous awards for its outstanding performance. . .~~. 

Compuage has been availing credit facilities from a bank consortium led by Indian Bank. It has had an unblemished 
track record for meeting its commitments to all the lenders on time, except in recent months . 

. Nature of Business: 
The IT distribution sector, characterized by razor-thin profit margins (typically around 1 %), involve substantial 
logistics operations encompassing procurement, warehou 'ng, transportation, channel development and credit 
deployment. Compuage faces the perpetual challenge of product obsolescence due to the fast-paced evolution of 
technology. Furthermore, it competes with global giants, which enjoy economies of scale, efficient operations, and 
robust global networks, providing them a distinct competitive edge. 

Business Strategy and Execution: 

Compuage' trategy aimed to achieve grnwth by e paoding its presence aeros Mobility IT Consumer, IT 
Enterpri e. Cloud Business and Services segments aspiring to become a comprehensive distribution bub. While 
it secured di tri butorships foftop brands in the e areas, the srrategy faced cballenge due to slow scaling compared 
to peers, primarily because of inadequate low-cost working capital. 

~ile Compuage matched its peer in term of market penetration, sales infrastructure, and warehousing facilities, 
it did so with ignificantly lower revenue. Consequentl. , operational costs as a percentage of revenue remained 
elevated, aggravated by costly deb[ financing, sub tanti ally eroding gross margins. As a result, limited surplus 
fund were avaiJable for growth. To address till , Compuage strategically shifted focus away from mobility and IT 
consumer sectors to prioritize enterprise business, cloud offerings, and services, which offered better profit 
margins. This shift began in 2019, well before the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Impact of COVID: 
With the COVID- L9 pandemic emerging in early 20_0 Cornpuage faced severe challenge. The enterprise 
busine s, initially flourishing, suffered as major clientS like corporate enterprises and government offices closed 
impacting sales sign i ficantl . Simultaneou ly, semiconductor shortages disrupted stock availability worsening 
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receivables management and extending the working capital cycle. Ironically, the IT consumer sector, which Compuage had 
de-emphasized, boomed due to high demand for laptops and smartphones driven by remote work and study. This dual blow 
caused the company to lose out on the thriving IT consumer market \vhile facing a decline in the IT enterprise sector. 

To mitigate the e cballenge , Compuage expanded its eu tomer base by targeting a large number of MSME cu tamers . 
Leveraging irs nationwide distribution network. thi s strate g) initially boo ted sales but posed difficulties in receivables 
collection as defaults from this segment surged rapidly from December 20_1 . . 

Stagnant Working Capital Support: 
Efforts to secure enhanced working capital limits encountered delays and preconditions, resulting in insufficient working 
capital to sustain operations. Some consortium banks even reduced existing limits, further aggravating the situation. 

Efforts to Overcome Challenges: 
Faced with the severe working capital deficit and declining support from bank . Compuage made extensive effortS to navigate 
the crisis. Despite some success in securing partial assistance from ~'BFCs and an arrangement of Rs. 80 crores m working 
capital with one ofthe leading bank. these measures proved inadequate. The company explored multiple a enne ,including 
private equity funding, seeking a strategic partner. and even contemplating a complete sale of the business as a going concern. 
However, due to the fiercely competitive nature of the industry and its thin profit margins, it couldn't find a suitable partner 
or investor. 

To address the acute liquidity shortage, the promoters sold a portion of their shareholding in the open market, injecting Rs. 
15 crores inca the company. Compuage had also planned a rights issue of equity shares, which eventually materialized in 
December 2022, resulting in infu ion of approximately Rs. 41.58 crores into the company. However. these funds provided 
only a temporary respite, addres ing a small fraclion of the substantial cash deficit the company faced. 

Despite the substantial working capital shortfall, Compuage diligently strived to meet its payment commitments to lenders, 
even if ir meant missing out on potential business opportunities. This determination to honoring obligations to lenders 
contributed to continuons delays in payments to vendor-. 

Dwindling Vendor Support: 
Although Compuage initially benefited from its long-standing relationships and credibility with multinational vendors, this 
support was short-lived. The company had assured vendors that payments would be regularized once the enhanced limits 
were approved. Due to dwindling vendor support to Compuage. regular practice to adjust Compuage claims for marketing, 
training, special price clearances, price protection, etc, which gets adjusted against future purchases have not been recognised 

by the vendors. However, as these limits were not released, delays in streamlining vendor payments persisted. Vendors began 
redirecting their business to Compuage's competitors, strengthening the competition while simultaneously weakening 
Compuage. Prolonged payment delays eventually led vendors to withhold deliveries and, in some cases, completely withdraw 
their supp()rt, even terminating agency arrangements with Compuage. There are counter claims by company as per industry's 
norms for various activities performed by the company on behalf of the vendors which have not been considered by them. 

Additional Factors: 
Factors like rupee'depreciation and increased online sales exerted additional pressure on offline channels and supply chain 
margins. 

Current Situation: 
Amid market pressures, Compuage experienced a significant reduction in team size, leading to warehouse consolidation and 
outsourcing of various functions. The company is grappling with in"emory sales due to restrictions imposed by lenders, 
outstanding payments recovery, and vendor claims, impacting profitability. ea h flow, and credibility. This situation has been 
further aggravated by high level of manpower attrition resulting in seri ous gaps in maintenance of IT systems and records 
which has resulted in non-accessibility to the books of accoun maintained on SAP. 
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Subsequently, a petition c.P. (IB) 329/MB/2023 was filed by Plus Plus Engaugement Services Pvt Ltd under section 7 
ofInsolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IBe) against Compuage Infocom Limited ("Corporate Debtor") for the 

default in payment of INR 1,68,57,123/- (Rupees One Crore Sixty-Eight Lacs Fifty-Seven Thousand One Hundred 
Twenty-Three Only). The Hon'ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench admitted the petition and ordered initiation of Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process in respect of the Corporate Debtor on November 02,2023. The Hon'ble Bench in the 
same order appointed Mr. Arun Kapoor as the Interim Resolution Professional CIRP'). Thereafter, Hon'ble NCLT, 

Mumbai Bench has passed an order dated 29.04.2024 (Order received on 09.05.2024), for the replacemerit of Resolution 
Professional and appointed Mr. Gajesh Labhchand Jain (Registration no. IBBIIIP A-OO l/IP-P-O 1697/2019-2020/1 2588) 

as Resolution Professional ("RP") under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("Code") in matter of Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process of Mis Compuage Infocom Limited. 

The Companies Act 2013 (as amended) (The "Act") under section 134(1), states that the financial statement shall be 
approved by the Board of Directors and thereafter signed on behalf of the Board by the chairperson of the Company 
where he is authorized by the Board or by 2 Directors out of which 1 shall be Managing Director, if any, and the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO), the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Company Secretary of the Company, wherever 
they are appointed, for submission to the Auditor for his report thereon. Further Section 134(5) of the Act, mentions 
following points under the purview of the Directors ' responsibility: 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to gi ve a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for that period; 

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) the directors, in the case of a listed company had laid down internal financial control to be followed by the 
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and \vere operating effectively. 

These financial statements of the company for the year ended 31.03 .2023 pertains to period prior to commencement of 
the CIRP on 02.11.2023. All the directors of the Company except two directors, and Company Secretary had resigned 
from their position in the company prior to commencement of CIRP. Upon commencement of the CIRP, the powers of 
the Board of Directors of the company stand suspended and are exercised by the Resolution Professional. 

These financial statements have been signed by the Resolution Professional (RP) while exercising the powers of the 
Board of Directors of the Company which has been conferred upon him in terms of the provisions of the Section 17 of 
the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 2016. The Resolution Professional have signed these statements in good faith, solely 
for the purpose of compliance and discharging his duty under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, governed 
by the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 2016. Since these financial statements belong to the period when the affairs of 
the company were being managed and governed by the erstwhile Board of Directors of the Company, these financial 
statements have been prepared with the same "basis of preparation" as adopted by the erstwhile Board of Directors as 
enumerated upon the Board under Section 134(5), of the Companies Act, 2013 and related regulations, while 
highlighting/addressing any material departures as per the current conditions and 
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events which occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date. While signing the aforesaid financial statements, the 
Resolution Professional (RP) has relied on the representation, statements and information provided by Suspended 
Management of the Company. 

A. Significant Accounting Policies: 

i) Basis of Preparation: 

(a) Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards CInd AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, hereinafter referred to as the Ind AS, 
and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (z), which is also its functional currency. 

(b) Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reponed amounts of revenue . expen e ,a ets and liabilitie and the dis Iosure of contingent 
liabilitie . atthe end of the rep()rting period .. AJ[bough these e rima[es are based on management's best knowledge 
of current event and actions uncertainty about [he e a umption. and estimate could re ult in the outcomes 
requiring adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. 

(c) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the 
carrying amounts of receivables and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the 
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the 
date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit 
reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the 
assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. 
The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of 
approval of these financial statements. 

(d) Historical Cost Convention: 

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual 
basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the 
end of each reporting period, as rated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently over alI the periods presented in these financial statements. 

ii).Currenti Non-Current classification: 
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Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions: 

i. the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
ii. The asset is intended for sale or consumption; 
iii. The assetlliability is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
iv. The assetlliability is expected to be realized/settled within twelve months after the reporting period; 
v. the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date; 
vi. In the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has ascertained its 
normal operating cycle as twelve months. 

ili).Tangible Assets IPropertv. plant and equipment: 

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses . 

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, 
if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has 
useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining item. 

The cost-of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and 
other nonrefundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant 
and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. 

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant 
and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their- useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and 
maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. 

iv).Depreciation on tangible fixed assets: 

Depreciation on each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight Line Method 
based on useful life ofthe assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation 
methods are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, 
such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and accordingly, accounted for prospectively. 

v).intangible Assets: 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. 
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Internally generated intangibles are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 
Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life i.e. 3 years based on management assessment and 
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 

_ The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed 
at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future econonUc benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period 
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on 
intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

vi).Derecognition: 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Yin.Impairment of non-financial assets - property plant and equipment and intamtible assets: 

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to assess if there are any indications of 
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss on such assessment will be recognised 
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the assets is 
net selling price or value in us~, whichever is higher. While assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to the present value by using weighted average cost of capital. A previously recognised impainnent 
loss is further provided or reversed depending on changes in the circumstances and to the extent that carrying 
amount of the assets does not exceed the carrying amount that will be determined if no impairment loss had 
previously been recognised. 

Goodwill, intangible assets having indefinite useful life and intangible assets currently not in use by the Company 
are tested for impairment annually and also whenever there are indicators of impairments. 

Reversal of impairment of Goodwill is not recognized. 

viii).Lease: 

The Company as a Lessee 

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises for its branches at various 
locations. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, 
the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract i~volves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 
substantially all ofthe economic benefits from use ofthe asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company 
has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding 
lease liabjlity for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the 
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease 
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arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROD assets 
and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 
As all the leases are short-term leases or low value leases, the Company has not recognized any right-of-use asset 
and corresponding lease liability for any of the lease arrangements in which it is a lessee during the year. 

The Company as a Lessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the 
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance 
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

Transition 

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116, Leases and applied the standard to all lease contracts 
existing on April 1,2019. However, as all the leases are short-term leases or low value leases, the Company has 
not recognized any right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for any of the lease arrangements during the 
year. 

h:).Borrowing costs: 

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowing and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowing to the extent they are regarded as an 
adjustment to the interest cost. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part ofthe cost of the respective 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 

x).Revenue Recognition : 

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a transaction flows to the 
Company in the ordinary course of its activities and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts 
and volume rebates by the Company. 

Revenue includes only the gross inflows of economic benefits, received and receivable by the Company, on its 
own account. Amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as Sales Tax, VAT and GST are excluded from 
revenue. 

The company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, type of 
transaction and specifics of each arrangement. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for 
discounts and returns. No element of financing is deemed present as sales are made with a credit term which is 
consistent to market practice. 

Sale of products: 

\ 
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Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Company transfers all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer, while the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective control 
over the products sold. 

Rendering of services;. 
Revenue from product support services are recognized once the service is provided and the invoice is raised and 
are net of applicable taxes. 

Interest: 
Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 

Dividend: 
Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount 
of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

xj).Forei2TI Cunene" Transactions Itransiations: 

Functional and presentation Currency: 

Items included in the financial statement of the company are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the company operates (functional currency). The Financial statements of the company are 
presented in Indian Currency, which is also the functional currency of the company. 

Initial Recognition: 

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are recorded in the functional 
~urrency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign 
exchange tr?Jlsactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Foreign exchange gain or loss resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from translation of monetary 
assets or liability denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end exchange rate are generally recognized in the 
profit and loss account except that they are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges. 

Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date: 

Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items 
that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value is measured. 

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. 
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xii).Derivative financial instruments and bed!:!e accountine: 

The Company enters into derivative financial contracts in the nature of forward currency contracts with external 
parties to hedge its foreign currency risks relating to foreign currency denominated financial liabilities measured 
at amortized cost. 

The Company is not following hedge accounting. Consequently all derivative instruments are recognised and 
measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss. 

xiii).Inventories: 

(a) Stock of goods traded is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The costs of purchase of inventories 
comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the entity 
from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
finished goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining 
the costs of purchase. The costs are determined on a weighted average basis. 

(b) Saleable scrap is accounted for as and when sold. 

xiv).Investments and other financial assets: 

Classification: 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

i) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income (OC!), or through 
Profit or Loss), and 

ii) Those measured at amortised cost. 

The classification depends on the business model ofthe entity for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in Profit or Loss or Other Comprehensive 
Income. 

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. 

For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election 
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI) 

Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes 'a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction 
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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SubseQ!lent measurement: 

After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at: 

i) Fair value {either through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or through Profit or Loss (FTVPL)} or, 
ii) Amortised cost. 

Debt instruments: 

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model of the Company for managing the 
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company 
classifies its debt instruments: 

Measured at amortised cost: 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss 
arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI): 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets 
and collecting contractual cash flow that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured 
at fair value through Other Comprebensive Income. Fair value movements are recognised in tbe OCI. Interest 
income measured using the ErR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain / (loss) previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity 
to other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss: (FVTPL) 

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FTVPL. Such financial assets 
are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, 
recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity instruments: 

The Company subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments other than subsidiary companies, 
_associate company and joint venture Company at fair value. The Management of the Company has elected to 
~resent fair value gains and losses on such equity investments in Other Comprehensive Income, and there is no 
subsequent reclassification of these fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends from 
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the right to receive payment is 
establi shed. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI 
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

Investments in Subsidiary Companies, Associate Companies and Joint Venture companies: 
~:::;::::~ ...... 

10 

89



Investments in Subsidiary Companies, Associate Companies and Joint Venture companies are carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the 
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in 
Subsidiary Companies, Associate Companies and Joint Venture companies, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Impairment of financial assets: 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

i) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, and bank balance. 

ii) Trade Receivables. 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables 
which do not contain a significant financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require 
the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime 
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

De-recognition: 

A financial asset is de-recognized only when the Company 
i) has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
ii) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual 

obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized. Where the entity 
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not 
de-recognized. Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognized if the Company has not retained 
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control ofthe financial asset, the asset is continued to be 
recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

Financial liabilities: 

i) Classification as debt or equity 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance ofthe 
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

ii) Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the fair value. 

iii) Subsequent measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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iv) De-recognition 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specifjed in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. 

Offsetting financial instruments: 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recogni ed amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneousl . The legall_ enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal couee of bu me and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of 
the Company or the counterparty. 

xy).Retirement and other employee benefits: 

Short term employee benefits: 

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of service such as salaries, ,v ages , bonus, ex gratia, medical 
benefits etc. are recognized in the year in which the employees render the related service and are presented as 
current employee benefit obligations within the balance sheet. 

Defined contribution plan: 

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as contribution to provident fund , Employees State Insurance 

Corporation. National Pension Scheme are charged as an expense to the statement of profit and loss on the amount 
of comribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the emplo ees. The above benefits are 
classified as defined contribution schemes as the company has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly 
contributions. 

The Liability or Asset, is recognized in the Balance sheet in respect of Gratuity is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation 
is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method (PUCM). 

ni).Income Ta.~es : 

The income tax e pense or credit for the period i the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period based 
on the applicable income tax rates adJusted b ' hange in deferred tax asse and liabilitie attributable to temporary 
difference and unn ed lax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated OIl the basis of the fax law enacted 
or ub -rantively enacted at the end oftbe reporringperiod. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken. 
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation i subject to imerpret?tion. It establishe 
provj ions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expecred to be paid to the (ax authorities. 

Minimum Alternate Tax ('MAT') under the provisions of the Income Tax. Act, 1961 i recognized as current tax 
in the Statement of Profi t and Loss. The credit available under the ACT in re pec( of M.A.T paid will be recognized 
as an asset only when and to the extent there i convincing evidence tbat me Company wilJ pay normal iDcome tax 

during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for et off against the normal taX liability. Such 
an asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date 

12 

91



Deferred income tax is provided in full. usjng the liabili[)' method. on temporary difference arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their can. ring amounts. Howe ·er. deferred tax liabilitie are not recognized 
if they arise from the initial recognition of Goodwill. Deferred income lax i aJ 0 nor accounted for if it arises from 
initial recognition of an as et or liability in a tran aClion other than a business combination that at the time of the 
tran action affect neither a counting profit nor taxable profit I (tax los ). Deferred income tax is derennined using 
tax rates (and law) that ha e been enacted or ub tantiaUy enacted b the Balance Sheet date and are expected to 
apply when the related deferred income tax a er i realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize tho e temporary differences and losses. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilitie are off: et when there i a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the arne taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
of Let wbere the enriry bas a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basi. or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability simulraneou Iy. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, 
except to the extent that it relate to item recognized in Other Comprehen ive lncome or directly in equiry. In chi 
case. the tax i al oTecognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directl in equity, respectively. 

~ii).Cash and cash eguhalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short term' deposits (three 

months or les from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and 

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

xviii).Segment reportin2: 

The Company operates only in one reportable segment. 

xix).Earnings per Share: 

Basi earning. per share are calculated by dividi ng the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
hareholders (after dedu ting preference di vidends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 

equity share outstanding dwing [he perioo. 

For the purpo e of calculating Diluted Earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholdeL and [he eighred average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 
of alJ dilutive potential equity hare. 

xx). Provisions and contingent liabilities: 

PrOvisions are recogni ed when the Compan has a pre ent legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
event it is probable that an outflow of resource' will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be 
reJiabl eSlimated. The e are reviewed at each year end and reflect the best current estimate. Provisions are riot 
recogni ed for future operating losses. 

Where [here are a number of similar obhgarions, tbe likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by can idering the clas of obligation- as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of 
an outflow with respect to anyone item included. in the same class of obligations may be small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
ob]jgation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate 
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that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

Contingent liabHitie are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confIrmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain f].lture events not 
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to ettle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
cannot be made. . 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 
NOTE 2 : PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT , 

Particulars Buildings IT Equipment 

Gross carrying amount 
As at April 1st, 2021 4,291.62 1,839.77 
Additions - 468.07 
Disposals - -
As at April 1st, 2022 4,291.62 2,307.84 
Additions - 315.43 
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2023 4,291.62 2,623.27 
Depl'edation I Amortisation 
As at March 31,2021 327.87 1,739.88 
Charge For the year 75.39 68.28 
Disposals - -
As at MalTh 31, 2022 403.26 1,808.16 
Charge For the year 75.39 102.64 
Disposals - -
upto March 31, 2023 478.65 1,910.80 
Net carrying amount 
As at 31-03-2022 3,888.36 499.68 
As at 31-03-2023 3,812.97 712.47 
- - ~-- - - - - - --

1. The company has hypothicated Buildings to avail the Loan from the Bank. 

Vehicles 

117.29 
-
-

117.29 
-

-117.29 

-
84.58 

6.76 

-
91.34 

6.71 
(98.05) 

-

25.95 

-
----

Total 
Office Furniture and Property, Intangible 

Equipment Fixture plant and Assets 
equipment 

789.93 1,607.79 8,646.40 11.99 
12.47 3.90 484.44 -
- - - -

802.40 1,611.69 9,130.84 11.99 
10.39 - 325.82 -
- - (117.29) -

812.79 1,611.69 9,339.37 11.99 

626.94 1,155.78 3,935.05 11.25 
61.82 128.35 340.60 0.09 

- - - -

688.76 1,284.13 4,275.65 11.34 
53.17 69.71 307.62 0.09 

- - (98.05) -
741.93 1,353.84 4,485.22 11.43 

113.64 327.56 4,855.19 0.65 

'---- 70.8~ _ 257.85 4,854.15 0.56 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
« in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

NOTE 3 . Non Current Investments 

Particluars 

a) Investment in equity instruments of Subsidiary company 
measured at cost 
1,50,000 Ordinary Shares of Compuage Infocom Pte.Ltd -
Singapore 
Sub-total (a) 
a) Investment in equity instruments of Other Company 
measured at FVTPL ~ Un quoted 190416 Equity Shares of 
Bombay Mercantile Co- Op. Bank Ltd of ~30 Each. (Previous 
lyear: 274416 Equity Shares ofRs. 30 each). 
Sub-total (b) 
Total 

NOTE 4 : Other Non Current Financial Assets 

Particluars 

Fixed Deposits with Banks. with maturity beyond 12 months 

Total 

NOTE 5 . Inventories 

Particluars 

Stock in trade 
Total 

NOTE 6 . Trade Receivables 

I Particluars 

Unsecured, considered !rood 
IUnsecured. considered Doubtful (Not provided For) 
I Total 

A~ei~ rOT lr:Jd.e rt'Cci'nwles uu~umdin~ as at ~Jsl ~wrch ~O'l~ 

I 
I 
I 

I 
1 
I 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31.2022 

82.16 75.90 

82.16 75.90 

57.12 82.32 
57.12 82.32 

139.28 158.22 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31.2022 

- 448.05 

- 448.05 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

16,735.38 43.69.7.63 
16,735.38 43,697.63 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

8,494.53 52,083.26 
46.103.29 -

54,597.82 52,083.26 

Particlun", OU ISt.andin~ for follo"in2 periods from due dnlcs of nn"m""l l 

Not due [Less than 6 6 months-l 
1-2year>; 2 ~3 years 

More than 3 
Tolal 

months "ear years 
r odi<pul<C! trade receivables-considered ~oo<1, 8.~94.53 1 8.494..13 

Cndispu ~oj trade receivables-which have significant increase in 
credir risk _ - - -

UndispUted [fade receivables-credit impaired. 1 - · -
Dt:s oul~d t:r:Jde rece: \"3.bles<-<H1:Sldefed ~ood. I - I I . 
Disputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit 

U95.3s l ri>L 38.166.53 651 17 1.267.56 976.33 l-Ui.32 .46.103...29 

Disputed trade receivables-credit imp:tin.-d. • 1 - · I 
l..ess: Pro"\5'On fO n:\olLbtfuJl det>,.-::redi! im.l'.nired I · I 
Tow I 13.389.91 I 38.166.53 651.17 1,267.56 976.33 146.32 I 54.597.82 

A,neino for trade receh'3bl~ QUlSt3ndin ro as at 31st t\tlarch "0"''' , - - -
ParticJusr>; Oul$bndin!! for follo\\; ne. periods from dUI! dl.lles or p3Vml!Dt 

~otdue I Less than 6 Ii months·l 
1-2 year>; [2.3years More than 3 I Tolal 

months ,'ear years 
ll!ndl5jlUh'd It'.ld. , ,,,,·eh-,,t, it'.I-ronsider<C! j!DOd. I 2~.S5&'24 ?3.883.89 867.49 552.36 1 22.84 85.77 1 50.27059 

Lnd.i~putrd trade receivables-which have significant increase in I .crediE risk - - - -

t'ndi5pu(<C! trnde rece{' 'llcIes-cm:fu ""pained, · - - I -
Di,pul~d trade ",<ri\'SbIesJ:Dn,Jd<:tedzood. I - I 4-2676 685.42 644.16 1 0.38 55.95 1.812.67 

Disputed trnde receivables-which have significant lnt:re:::L5e' in credit 
· [ riSk -

10000ute<llr.!de recel\'llob!s..:redi( impoired . - . . I · 
Less: Provision r. dit imoaired · - · I - -
Totnl //."I.O"~ ... C,~'\. 24.858.24 24.310.65 1,552.91 1,196.52 I '~.22 141.72 52.083.26 

r~~~ ( ... --' ->0 ~) ;: ::Z~~~ t-
O ClDOOl~:Z: m 
""ft .... \0'0 . (1) 
~ o==:~:e ~ 
~ ,0 ~ 

"'-'t llJf- ~,-4 
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NOTE 7 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particluars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Bank balances 

In current accounts 1,196.68 431.38 
In unpaid dividend accounts 16.35 19.34 

Cash on hand 20.58 14.54 
Fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - 41.95 
Total 1,233.61 507.21 

NOTE 8 : Other Bank Balances 

Particluars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Fixed deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months 8,047.05 7,958.35 
Total 8,047.05 7,95835 

NOTE 9 : Current Loans 

Particluars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 
Loans to employees 19.10 22.13 
Total 19.10 22.13 

NOTE 10: Other Current Financial Assets 

Particluars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 
Fixed deposits other than Banks 895.00 735.00 
Security deposits 239.38 370.99 
Interest accrued 76.35 69.00 
Total 1,210.73 1,174.99 

NOTE 11 : Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particluars 
As at As at 

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 
Advance income tax (net of provisions) 280.84 -

Total 280.84 -

NOTE 12 : Other Current Assets 

Particluars 
As at As at 

March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022 
Prepaid expenses 97.15 478.10 
Advance to staff 2.64 1.65 
Balances with Government authorities 6,546.80 6,325.62 
Miscellaneous Expenses (to the extent not written of) 58.59 -
Total 6,705.18 6,80537 

96



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
('!' in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

NOTE 13 • EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars 

Anthoru;ed 
9,62.70.000 i:quity shares of ii!'2.00 t.~ch 
'l-6.65.600 Preference shares of {0.1O (Ten pllise) each 
1.IO.OO.ooOPreference shares of'!' 10.00 each 
Total 
Issued. subscribed and fuUy paid ·up 
8.57 .68.06~ Equity shares of n.oa each fully paid (Previous W iII 
: 6,49,75,806 Equity shares of {2.00 each fuUy paid 
) 

Total 

As at I As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31.2022 

I 
1.925.40 I 1.925.40 

4.67 I 4.67 
1.100.00 I 1,100.00 
3.030.07 3.030.07 

1.715.36 1,299.52 
1.715.36 1.299.52 

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amonnt outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period: 

Asat As at 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

No.inlakh ~ In lakh No. in Iakh ~ In!akh 
At the heginning oCthe Period 649.76 1,299.52 649.76 1,299.52 
Add : Preferential allotment.Rights Issue 207.92 415.84 -
Outstallding at the end of the period 857.68 1.715.36 649.76 1.299.52 

Terms I rights attached to equity shares 
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of {2.00 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to recei ve remaining assets of the company.after dislribution of 
aU preferential amounts. 

The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by shareholders. 

':1 Details of Shareholders bolding more than 5 % of Equirv sbares: 
As at As at 

Name of Shareholder March 31.2023 March 31. 2022 
Holdinl! % No.inlakh Holdinl! % No. in lakh 

L Atul Harkishandas Mehta 20.35% 174.54 23.02% 149;54 
2. Bhavesh Harkishandas Mehta 20.35% 174.54 23.02% 149.54 
3. Ajay Harkishandas Mehta 1.95% 16.69 12.30% 79.94 

d) Disclosure of shareholding of promoters: 
O' cl shareh ldin f '3 IS osure of . 0 !! 0 ' promolers as at 31st MarCh 211_ 

Asat As at 
Name of Sbareholder March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 

Holdinl! % I No. inlakh Holdinl! % No. in lakh 
1. Atul Harkishandas Mehta 20.35%1. 17454 23.02% 149.54 
2. Bhavesh Harkishandas Mehta 20.35~ 1 174.54 23.02% 149.54 
3. Ajay Harkishandas Mehta 1.95% 16.69 12.30% 79.94 

DiscI f h eb Id' osurc 0 s a r 0 m~ o· promoters as at 31 MarCh 70" st - -
As at As at 

Name of Shareholder March 31.2022 MarCh 31, 2021 

Boldinl! % I No. in !akh Boldinl! % No. in lakh 
J. Atul Harkishandas Mehta 23 .02~ 1 149.54 23.02% 149.54 
2. Bhavesh Harkishandas Mehta 23.02% 149.54 :23.02% 149.54 
3. Ajav Harkishandas Mehta 12.30% 79.94 12.30% 79.94 

NOTE 14· OTBER EQUITY 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 
8) Cllpital reserve 134.84 134.84 
b) Capital redemption reserve 129.7? 129.72 
c] Securities premium reserve 7.411.41 3,668.80 
d) General reserve 35.36 I 35.36 
e) Retained Earnin.~: 

Balance III the beginnin!l, of the year 19,458.37 16.913.44 
Add: Profit for the year (19,98 1.06) 2,676.98 
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (65.14) (2.10) 
Less: Dividend on Equity shares (129.95) (J29.95) 
Balance as at the end of the year (717.78) 19.458.37 
Total 6,993.55 23.427.09 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

NOTE 15 . Non Current Borrowings 

Particluars 

Term loans from banks, secured 
Term loans from others, unsecured 
Total 

NOTE 16 . Non Current Provisions . 
Particluars 

Provision for gratuity 

Total 

NOTE 17:- CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAX 

As at As at 
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

- 4,136.71 
- 643.10 

- 4,779.81 

As at As at 
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

- 206.91 

- 206.91 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023,March 31, 
2022 are: 

a) Income tax expen-e 

Particulars 

i) Current tax 
Current tax on profits for the year 
Adjustments for current tax of pri or period 
Total current tax eAllense 
ii) Deferred tax 
(Decrease) I Increase in deferred tax liabilities 
Deerease I (Increase) in deferred tax assets 
Total deferred tax expensel(benefit) 

I ncome tax expense 

b) Current tax liabilities (net) 

Particulars 

Provi sion for tax (net of taxes paid) 

Total 

c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

As at 
31-03-2023 

5.48 

5.48 

-421.77 

(421.77) 
(41629) . 

As at 
31-03-2023 

-

-

As at 
31-03-2022 

954.53 

954.53 

34.70 

34.70 
989 13 .-

As at 
31-03-2022 

169.04 

169.04 

-
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The balance comprises temporary differences a.ttributable to the below items and corresponding movement in deferred tax 
liabilities I (assets): 

Particulars 
As at (Charged) I As at (Charged) I 

31-03-2023 Credited 31-03-2022 Credited 
Property. plant and equipment & Intangible assets p&1 - (466.52) 466.52 35.12 
Fair valuation of term loan p&1 - - - (0.42) 

Remeasurment of Defined Employee Benefit Plans-OCI - (22.30) 22.30 4.48 
Foreign Currency Transalation difference-OCI I - 67.05 (67.05) (5.1 9) 
Net deferred tax (asset) I liability - (421.77) 421.77 33.99 
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NOTESTOTHE FIN'ANCLU TATEME~TS 
(~ in Lakh unless otherwise Slated) 

~OTE 18 . Current Borrowin .. s =. 

Particluars 

Secured 
Cash credit from banks 

Current Maturities of long tenn debt 

Unsecured 
Loan from related parties 
Loan from others 

Total 

As at As at 
!.\ Iarch 31. 2023 March 31. 20Z2 

35.047.20 29.758.31 
8.083.19 4.498.12 

3.265.40 4.132.40 
3.606.00 11.717.41 

50.001.79 50,106.24 
The company has defaulted on repayment of loans and Interest durmg the year. 

""OTE 19 . Trade Pa,'ables 

Particluars 
As at As at 

Ma rch 31. 2023 ~Marc.b 31. 2022 
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 
enrerprises 33.39239 33.970.80 
Total 33.392.39 33.970.80 

Age-in" [01' u'llde plITllble<; OU3tlUlcliW!: JI.S ilt 31st 1\IaI'cb 2023 
PlllticiuRrs Ontsta ndina fol' foDo?i:ngpe l'iods from due dates 

~otdue Less thlUl 1 ! 1 _ 2 wars 2 · .3 yem's Mort' th~n .3 
Total 

Hal' ' \'f'al'S 

MSl.\I.IE I . . 
Qrhe:'l; I 33,392.39 - . - 33392.39 

Disumeo dues ·MS]I.·n; I - . I . - -
Diso,ued dues -O'Jle:-;; I - - . I -

I 
Total I - 33,392.39 - . 33,392.39 

Agt'ing for tnlde payables ollt>tandillg as at 31st March 2022 

PaItidUlUS Ontr;tand1D.1! for fonmnn .o;: peliod;; from dne dates I 
~Qt due 

Less thlUll 
~'ear 

'MS:\,IE 
o-che.c. 2.1..8 2869 9.14211 

p isPurtd dues -MS:ME I . -
Dispur~d "'~es -Oth<!I's -

Total 2~,82lL69 I 9.142_11 

~OTE '0 . Other Current Financial LiabiJjties -
ParticJuars 

Unpaid dividends 
Amount due to subsidiary company 
Unclaimed Deposits 
Security Deposits 
Other payables 
Total 

NOTE '1 . Other Current Liabilities -
ParticJ uars 

Statutory Dues 
Advances from customers 
Total 

~OTE 22 : Current P r O\isiOIis 

ParticJuars 

1 - 2 ~'eaI's 2 - .3 ~. ('1U'S 
MQnthau3 

Total nan 

-
-
-

-

. 

-
-

I I 
I - I 

As at 
:vrarch 31. 2023 

16.38 
2~0.78 

-
10.00 

957.61 
l.l34.i7 

As at 
:-VIarch 31. 2023 

134.98 
50.33 

185.31 

As at 
March 31. 2023 

300.53 I 
300.53 

-
33,970.80 

. 

- -

I 33,970.80 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

19.34 
200.01 
127.50 

10.00 
1.159.21 
1.516.06 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

923.56 
860.25 

1.783.81 

As at 
Mar ch 31. 2022 

30.00 
30.00 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(~ in Lakb unless otherwise stated) 

NOTE 23' REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulars 

(a) Sale of Products 
Computer Components & Others 

Total (a) 

(b) Sale of services 
Product support services 
Total (b) 

Total 

NOTE 24 : OTHER INCOME 

Particulars 

Interest from bank: deposits 
Interest from others 
Rent Income 
t-.lfisceilaneous income 
Total 

NOTE 25 : PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE 

Particulars 

Computer Components & Others 

Total 

As at As at 
March 31,10.23 March 31. 2022 

372,618.40 419,516.50 

372,618.46 419.516.50 

1.330.07 1.233.68 
1,330.07 1,233.68 

373948.47 420,756.18 

As at As at 
March 31, 2623 March 31. 2622 

469.93 374.15 
93.09 1,253,80 
35.92 14.28 

3.77 2.73 
662.71 1,644 .. 96 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2622 

342,344.37 414,912.46 

342,344.37 414.912.46 

NOTE 26: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN­
PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE 

Particulars 

(a) Stocks at the end of the year 
Stock-in-trade 
Total (a) 

i.e s: 
(b) Stocks at beginning of the year 
Stock-in-trade 
Total (b) 

(Increase) I Decrease in stocks 

NOTE 27 : EMPLOYEE BEl'I'EFIT EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 

Contribution to provident and other funds 
Gratuity 

Staff welfare 
Total 

NOTE 28 : FINANCE COSTS 

Particulars 

Interest on borrowings (at amortised cOSt) 
Interest on Preference Shares 
Total 

As at 
March 31. 2623 

16.735.38 
16,735.38 

43.697.63 
43,697_63 

26,962.25 

As at 
March 31. 2023 

3,210.91 

60.86 
116.98 
55.16 

3.443.91 

As at 
March 31 2623 

7,379.13 

7,379.13 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

43,697.63 
43,697.63 

31.938.80 
31,938.80 

(11,758.83) 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

3.298.95 

71.33 
58.13 
48.44 

3,476.85 

As at 
March 31. 2622 

7,410.19 
32.80 

7,442.99 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

NOTE 29 : OTHER EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Rent and compensation 
Power & fuel 
Rates and taxes 
Insurance 
Payments [Q the .statutory auditors: 

a) Audit fees 
b) Tax matters 
c) Other matters 

Expenditure on Corporate Social Reponsibility 

Net exchange rate difference-Loss 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Impairment of Debtors 
Total 

NOTE 30:- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

757.73 709.63 
87:42 34.29 

- 47.75 
200.24 354.65 

16.50 20.42 
2.00 2.00 
1.50 1.50 

16.00 65.85 

10.83 48.15 
4,751.04 3,030.53 

8,392.70 -

14,235.96 4,314.77 

The disputed demands for taxes and other matters amounts as of the reporting period ends are respectively as 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31-03-2023 31-03-2022 
Claims against the Com.Qany not acknowledged as debts 
Disputed demands in respect of V AT/Custom Duty 1,334.72 1,_02.44 

Disputed demands in respect of Income Tax 6,554.45 -

(Based on legal opinion, the Company does not feel any liability will 
arise and hence no provision has been made in the accounts.) 

The Company does not envisage any likely reimbursements in respect of the above. 

The above matter are current) being con idered by the tax authorities and the Compan expects the judgment will 
be in its favour and has therefore. not recogru ed the provision in relation to these claim . Future cash outflow in 
respect of above will be determined only on receipt of judgement I decision pending witl.l tax authorities. The 
potential undi counted amount oftatal pa ments for taxe that the Company could be required to make if there was 
an adverse decision related to the: e di puted demands of regulators as of the date reporting period ends are as 
ill u trated abo e. 
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NOTE 31:- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 
Funded Scheme 
a) Defined Benefit Plans: 
Gratuity 

The actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for the Gratuity was 
carried out as at March 31,2022. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current sen'ie 
cost and past service cost. were measured using the projected unit credit method. 

Based on Acturial duation obtained the following table sets out the status of Gratuity plan and amount recognised 
in the companies financial ,latements as at 31.03.2022. 

Due to the circumstances as stated in Note 1. the company has provided for Gratuity of all eligible employees as 
payable as on 31.03.2023 at the time of seperation. 

lD • 1S, (Rs.' Lalli ) 
A) Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position at As at 

Perioel-End March 31. 2011 
Present Value of Funded Defined Benefit Obl igation 248.)1 
Fair value of Plan Assets (J 1.60) 
Net Defined Benefit (Asset)iLiabiIity Recognised in Statement of 

I Financial Position 236.91 

B) Net Defined Benefit Costl(Income) included in Statement of As at 
Profit & Loss at Period-End March 31 2022 
Service Cost , 41.16 
Interest Cost on DBO (A ) 18.9? 
Interest Income Plan Assets ( B ) (1.95) 
Net Interest COsT (A) + (B) 16.97 

Past Service Cost -
Total Defined.Benefit CostJ(lncome) included in Profit & Loss 58.13 

C) Current I Non-Current Bifurcation I As at 
March 31. 20"" 

Current Liability 30.00 
lNon-Current Liability 206.91 
(Assetl/Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet 236.91 

Dj Actual Return on Plan Assets I As at 
~'Iarch 31. 2022 

Interest Income on Plan Assets 1.95 
Remeasurements on Plan Assets (5.85) 
Actual Return on Plan Assets (3.90) 

E) Analysis of Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive As at 
(Income) / Loss at Period-End r.Iarch 31. 2022 
Amount recomized in OCI - Be!!innin!! of the j:)eriod (70.81) 
Remeasurements due to : I 

Effect of change in financial assumptions CA2 (1 1.01) 

Effecl of experience adjustments (B) (P.64J 
Actuarial (Gains) fLosses (.-\) + (Bl (23.65) 
Return on Plan Assets (exculdin!! interest) 5.85 
TOlllJ remeasurements recomized in OCI \ 17.80) 
Amount reco~ed in 00 - End of the period I (88.61 ) 

- -
F) Total Defined Benefit Cost / (Income) included in Profit & I As at 

Loss and Other C/Lmprehensive Income March 31. 2022 
Amollnt recognized in Profit & Loss. End of Period 58.13 
Amount recognized in OCI. End of Period (I 7.80) 
(Asset)/Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet 40.33 

G) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the Period 
As at 

March 31. 2022 
Defined Benefit ObIi!!lltion. Be!!inning of the Period 230.16 
Net Current Service Cost 41.16 
lnterest Cost on DBO 18.92 
Actuarial (Gains) fLosses (23.~) 

Benefits Paid ~\*C~ (18.]0) 
Defined Benefit ObligatioD. End of Period f/,..~/ . ;;;~Q\I 248.50 

~~~ ( ~ ~-~="' r-) ." ~~Cl"'Ci) m 
,0 - ..... ;;~% en 
~ -::::~~:z: 9 ~ c>_~ o .... 

.P.P/, - ~ 
~II'Al" '. 
~ 

102



H) Change in Fair value of Plan Assets during the Period I As at 
.March 31, 2022 

Fair Value of Plan Assets. Berinni~ of the Period I 15.60 
Interest Income Plan Assets 1.95 
Actual Company Contributions 18.00 
Actuarial Gains I (Losses) (5.8:5) 
Benefi ts Paid (1 8.1 0) 

Fair value of Plan Assets. End of Period I 11.60 

I) Reconciliation of Balance Sheet Amount 
As at 

March 31. 2022 
Balance Sheet (Asset) I Liabilit) . Bejrinning of the Period 214.57 
Total Char~e!(Cred it) Recornised in Profit and Loss 58.13 
Total Remeasurements Recognized in Other Cornrehensive (Income) 

(J 7.80) 
I Loss 
Emplover Contributions (1 8.00) 

Balance Sheet (Asset)lLiability, End of Period 236.90 

J) Financial Assumptions Used to Determine the Defined Benefit I 
As at 

Obli:!ation 2\tlarcb 31. 2022 
Discount Rate I 7.50% 
Salary Escalation Rate T 5.00% 

K) Financial Assumptions Used to Determine the Profit & Loss As at 
Char!!e March 31. 2022 
Discount Rate 7.05% 
Salarv Escalation Rate 5.00% 
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.Q5% 

L ) Demographic A.s umptions Used to Determine the Defined As at 
Benefit Obligation March 31. 2022 
~nthdrawal Rate: 
UplO 8!!C 30 3.00% 
Age 31 to 40 2.00% 
Above Age 40 1.00% 
Mortality Rate IALM (20 12-.14) 
Retirement Age 58 years 

M) Asset Category I As at 
;\larch 31. 2022 

l nsurer Mana!!ed Funds I 11.60 
Total I 11.60 

J) Expected cashflows for the next 10 years I As at 
March 31. 2022 

Year-2020 -
Year·2021 I -
Year-2022 . 

Year-2023 I 52.53 
Year-2024 17.97 
Year-2025 4.37 
Year-2026 4.61 
Year-202r 9.94 
Year-2027 to 2031 -
Year-2028 to 2032 85.08 

K) Defined Benefit Obligation - Sensitivit)' Analysis 
As at 

Marth 31. 2022 
Discount Rate + 100 basis points I 716.83 
Discount Rate - 100 basis points 274.18 
Salary Escalation Rate + 100 basis pointS 272.05 
Salary Escalation Rate - 100 basis points 227.63 
Attrition Rate + 100 basis points 253.50 
Attrition Rate - 100 basis points 242.75 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts are in Rs. in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Note 32 
Segment Reporting 
The Company operates only in one reportable segment. 

Note 33 
Lease arrangements 

The Company procures office premises for its branches under operating lease 
agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both lessor and 
lessee. The initial tenure of the lease is below 12 months. The lease rentals recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year are Rs.757.73 lakh (previous year 
Rs.709.63 lakh). The contingent rem recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year is Rs.nil (previous year Rs.nil). 

NOTE 34- DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING 
STANDARD (Ind AS) 33 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Particulars 
Face value of equity share (in Rs.) 
Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding (in Nos) 
Profit for the year (Rs. in Lakh) 
Weighted average earnings per share (basic 
and diluted) (in Rs. ) 

NOTE 35 Capital management 

Risk Management 

2022-23 2021-22 
2.00 2.00 

71,185,001 64,975,806 
(20,046.20) 2,674.88 

(28.16) 4.12 

The primary objective of Capi tal Management of the Company is to maximise 
Shareholder value. The Company monitor capital using Debt-Equiry ratio which is 
total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of Capital Management, the 
Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to manage capital: 

Total equity includes General reserve, Retained earnings, Share capital, Security 
premium. Total debt includes current debt plus non-current debt less cash and cash 
equivalents & other Bank balances. 

Particulars As at 31103/2023 As at 31/03/2022 

Total debt 50,001.79 50,387.93 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & Other Bank 
balances 9,280.66 8,465.56 
Net Debt 40 721.13 41,922.37 
Total equity 8.708.91 24,726.61 
Debt-Equity ratio - 4.68 1.70 
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NOTE 36 Related Party Disclosures, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS 24) 
are given below: 

A. Relationships-

Category I: 
Subsidiaries: 
Compuage Infocom (S) Pte Ltd 

Category II: Jointly Controlled Entity: NA 

Category III: 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Atul H.Mehta 

Bhavesh H.Mehta 

Sunil Mehta (Resigned w.e.[ 28-02-2022) 

Anmol Jolly (Resigned w.e.f. 27-03-2022) 

Hasti Pala (w.e.[ 29-03-2022 to 30-03-2023) 

Non-Executive Directors 
G.S. Ganesh (Resigned w.e.f. 14-03-2023) 

Executive Director 

Executive Director 

Chief Financial Officer 

Company Secretary 

Company Secretary 

Vijay Agarwal (Resigned w.e.f. 29-03-2023) 
Fatima Hussain (Resigned w.e.f. 14-03-2023) 
Hetal Kudecha (w.e.f. 07-02-2022 to 29-03-2023) 
Virendra Bhatt (w.e.f 25-02-2021 to 02-05-2023) 

Category IV: 

Others (Close family member of KMP and Entities in which the KMP or close family member of 
KMP have significant influence) 

Falguni A. Mehta 
Forum B. Mehta 
Ajay H. Mehta 

TriIIizo Holdings Ltd. 

Pristine Care Products Pvt. Ltd. 

Wife of Atul H. Mehta 

Wife of Bhavesh H. Mehta 

Brother of Atul H. Mehta and Bhavesh H. Mehta 

Entity in which close family member of KMP has significant 
influence 

Entity jn which close family member of KMP has significant 
influence 

Transactions with the related parties : 

Particulars of transactions 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31103/2023 31/03/2022 

Interest Paid to: 

Ami H.Mehta 60.41 29.21 

Bhavesh H.Mehta I 32.50 46.79 

Falguni A. Mehta 2.66 3.85 

Forum B_ Mehta 4.01 5.81 

Ajay H. Mehta 19.12 16.38 
Nisba S. Mehta - 0.02 

Sunil M. Mehta HUF - 0.21 
Sunil M. Mehta ~ 0.54 ......-.....-: , ::--., -
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Remuneration Paid to: 

Atul H.Mehta 120.00 120.00 

Bhavesh H.Mehta 120.00 120.00 

Anmol Jolly (w.e.f. 01-10-2020 to 28-03-2022 ) - 8.12 

Sunil Mehta (Resigned w.e.f. 28-02-2022) - 71.99 

Hasti Pala (w.e.f. 29-03-2022 to 30-03-2023) 4.19 0.05 

Sittin2 Fees to :'lion-Executive Directors 

Vijay Agarwal (Resigned w.e.f 29-03-2023) 6.00 6.00 

Fatima Nasab (Resigned w.e.f 14-03-2023) - 5.00 

Virendra Bhatt (Resigned w.e.f 02-05-2023) 6.00 7.00 

Hetal Kudecha (w,e,f07-02-2022 & Resigned w.e.f 
7.00 2.00 

29-03-20'>3) 

Rent Paid to: I 
Trillizo Holdings Ltd. 15.00 15.00 

Printing & Stationery Paid to: 

Pristine Care Products Pvt. Ltd. - 0.53 

Balances due from/to the related parties : 

Particulars of transactions As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022 

Outstanding receivables: 
Trillizo Holdings Ltd. - 138.00 
Pristine Care Products Pvt. Ltd. - 75.75 

Outstanding pavables: -
Atul H.Mehta 1,714.24 1,496.53 
Bhavesh H.Mehta 1,551.16 1,371.16 
Cornpuage Infocom (S) Pte Ltd 250.78 200.01 
Falguni A. Mehta - 44.56 
Forum B. Mehta - 67.23 
Ajay H. Mehta - 1,152.92 

Loan Taken from : 

Atul H.Mehta 880.00 I 1,358.00 
Bhavesh H.Mehta 358.00 1,030.00 

Liabilities Taken over: 

Atul H.Mehta 1,050.00 
Bhavesh H.Mehta 1,050.00 

Loan Repaid to : 

Atul H.Mehta 1,712.29 1,206.00 
Bhavesh H.Mehta 1.228.00 1.335.00 
Forum B. Mehta 67.23 
Falguni A. Mehta 44.56 
Ajay H. Mehta 1,152.92 
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NOTE 37: Outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprise 

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act. 2006 to whom the company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and 
accordingly no additional disclosures have been made. 

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such 
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by 
the auditors. 

NOTE 38: 
Valuation of Imports calculated on C.l.F. basis for One Year period ended 31 st March 2023 is U3,832.10 Lakhs 
(Previous year ~ 17,654.65 Lakh). 

NOTE 39:Foreign Currency transactions 

Expenditure in Foreign currency: 
~ in lakh) 

Particular Current Period 
Previous 
Period 

Travelling - 2.37 

NOTE 40: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE 

Particular Current Period 
Previous 
Period 

a) Amount required to be spend by the company during the year 67.77 64.81 

b) Actual amount spenr by the company during the ye.ar 16.00 65.85 
i) Constructionla~qu~ition of any asset -
Li) OnpllIl'oses other than (i) above -

Contrubution to NGO's 16.00 65.10 
Contrubution to Companies own projects -

Total amount spent in cash - 0.75 
c) Short fall at the end of the year (5 1.77) -
d) Total of the previos years shortfall - -
e) Reason of shortfall Liquidity issue NA 
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NOTE 41:Ratios 

~ Particulars Numcmtor Denominator CUI'rent Period Previous Period Variance 

Current Ratio (times) !current Ass~ - --I - --
Current Liabilities 1.04 I 1.28 -[S.7Yf'o 

- -- --- -- --- --

~uity Ratio (times) (a_) ____ Ji0al Debt ~ _____ Shareholder's Equity _____ 5.~L __ 2.22 1_ [58.56% 

Debt s;.:-;ce Co-;;rag~o (~) (,II) lEarning ~ble for Debt Service Debt Service -----=-1.041 -- D.921 -213,04% 

Return of Equity (ROE) (%) (~f Net Profit after Taxes Average Shareholders EqUit-y - l- --=U9.52% 1- 11.41% 1-[ 147,50% 

Inventory Turnove;:-Rat"io (times) __ .- r OGS= --- I~rage Inventory ~' I 12.22 10.66 [4.63% 

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (times) Revenue from Operations Average Trade Receivable 7.01 7,82 -[0,36% 

13.82 
-1----

Average Trade Payables -----~ Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (times) COGS 
-- - ----- -----

10.96 -20.69% 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (times) (dl __ IRevenue __ ___ Average Working Captial . 26.35 17.12'1 53.89% 

Net Profit Ratio (%) {ei 1 et Profit after Taxes Revenue from Operations -5.34% 0.64% -934.37% 

Re,ur= ,p;"1 Employed (%) " _ t rOfi' beto::--;':;: r;;;;;; ~ TO"I~c.;;:;;n' U,blll'",,--- -146.32% 36.86% -4%:"92% 
-- -- --- -- -- --- --- --- ------ -- -- --- -- --

(a)- Reduction in shareholders equity, due to loss has resulted in an increase in this ratio . 
---/-

(b)- Loss during the year has resulted in decline in this ratio. __ . 
-_. _- 1--

(c)- Loss during the year has resulted in decline in this ratio. 
- - - --- ---._--
(d)- Reduction in ave rage working capital , have resulted in reduction in ratio . 

--

(f)- Loss during the year has resulted in decline in this ratio , 
- -- - f- --

(e)- Loss during the year has resulted in decline in this ratio . 
-- --- --- ... --- .--- ----
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Note 42 Going Concern: 

The management of Compuage Infocom Limited had prepared and reviewed the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 st March 2023.These financial statements are presented with 
assumption that company will continue its operation as going concern and it has ability to 
meet its fmancial obligation and liabilities in normal course of business. 

As outlined in the accompanying financial statement and related notes, the company has faced 
significant challenges during financial year under review. These challenge include liquidity 
constraints, disruption in supply chain, difficulties in debt collection, and ongoing working 
capital issue. These factors have collectively resulted in financial stress, as reflected in 
financial statements. 

Management had taken several steps to address these challenges, including seeking support 
for a restructuring plan from lenders. The plan sought backing from lenders to re-establish 
Compuage as a going concern. The management remains committed to business revival with 
lenders support. While these measures are ongoing, their outcome remains uncertain, and 
there is no assurance that they will fully mitigate the Company's financial constraints. 

Pending outcome of CIRP, financial statements of the company have been prepared on going 
concern basis. 
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Note 43 

As mentioned in note 42 above, the Company was admitted under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, 
vide Order No CP (IB) 329IMB/2023 dated 02.11.2023 as part of the Corporate Insolvency Process, the 
Creditors of the Company were called upon to submit their claims to the Interim Resolution Professional 
(IRP) in terms of the applicable provisions of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (lEC). Claim 
submitted by creditors are being compiled and verified by the IRP and updated status is uploaded on the lEC 
portal. Based on the last updated list of creditors (version 5) a summary is provided as under. 

(Rs.in Lakhs) 
Amount of 

Category of No. of 
Summary of 

Summary of Claims 
Sum of Claims 

Claims Under under Creditor Claims 
Received 

Admitted Verification Verificatio 
n 

Secured financial 
creditors (other 
than financial 
creditors belonging 
to any class of 
creditors) 9 57,950.71 57.950.71 - -
Operational 
creditors (other 
than Workmen and 
Employees and 
Government Dues) 33 54,518.81 52.886.35 - 0.632.46) 
Unsecured 
financial creditors 
(other than 
financial creditors 
belonging to any 
class of creditors) 11 9.409.50 4.464.50 (3.265 .40) ( 1,679.60) 
Operational 
creditors 
(Government 
Dues) 5 1.314.81 1,101.02 - (2 13.79) 
Other creditors, if 
any, (other than 
financial creditors 
and operational 
creditors) 5 744.41 744.41 - -
Operational 
creditors 
(Employees) 31 104.59 104.59 - -

Grand Total 94 124,042.84 117,251.59 (3,265.40) (3,525.84) 

The order dated 02.11.2023 imposes moratorium, in accordance with section 14 of the Code, 
and no interest is serviced during the CIRP period on the Loan outstanding as of the CIRP 
commencement date. The amount of claim admitted by the IRP may be different from the 
amount reflecting in the financial statements of the company as on 31.03.2023. Pending final 
outcome of the CIRP, no adjustments has been made in the financial statement for the 
differential amount, if any. 
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BHOGILAL C. SHAH & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
2A, Shree Pant Bhuvan, 1" floor, Sandhurst Bridge, Mumbai 400 007. 
Phone: 2361 0939 

PARTNERS : 
SNEHALV.SHAH 
SURIL V. SHAH 

B. Com., F.C.A., M.M. (U.S.A.) 
B. Com., A.C.A., M.B.A. (U.S.A.) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 
The Members of 
Compuage Infocom Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Compuage Infocom Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
together referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 st March, 2023, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of 
the Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to 
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group. Because of the 
significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been 
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

(a) As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, all the directors of the Holding Company except two 
directors and Company Secretary have resigned from their positions in the Company prior to commencement 
of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP") on 2nd November 2023. Upon commencement of 
the CI RP, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and are exercised by the 
Resolution Professional ("RP"). Since these financial statements belong to the period when the affairs of the 
Holding Company were being managed and governed by the erstwhile Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company, these financial statements have been prepared with the same "basis of preparation" as adopted 
by the erstwhile Board of Directors as enumerated upon the Board under Section 134(5), of the Companies · 
Act, 2013 and related regulations , while highlighting/addressing any material departures as per the current 
conditions and events which occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date. While signing the aforesaid 
financial statements, the Resolution Professional (RP) has relied on the representation and statements made 
by existing staff/heads of the departments and accounts, Finance and Tax team of the Company. We have 
been given to understand that RP has signed the attached financial statements solely for the purpose of 
compliance and discharging his duty under the CIRP, governed by the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 (the "Code"). 

(b) As mentioned in note 43 to the financial statements, pursuant to the commencement of CI RP of the Holding 
Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, there are various claims submitted by the financial 
creditors, operational creditors, employees and other creditors to the RP. The overall obligations and 
liabilities including interest on loans and the principal amount of loans shall be determined upon the 
successful resolution of the Holding Company. Pending final outcome of the CIRP, no accounting impact in 
the books of accounts has been made in respect of excess or short claims or non-receipts of claims for 
operational and financial creditors. Hence, consequential impact, if any, is currently not ascertainable and 
we are unable to comment on possible financial impact of the same. 

(c) Books of Accounts 
As stated in note 1 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the books of accounts maintained 
on SAP are not accessible due to high level of manpower attrition resulting in serious gaps in maintenance 
of IT systems and records. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate evidence to substantiate the same, 
we are unable to verify and comment on whether the books of accounts maintained on SAP are accessible 
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or not and the consequent impact on the standalone financial statements. As such, in the absence of 
accessibility to books of accounts, we have conducted the audit on the basis of alternate procedures to the 
extent possible. 

(d) Inventories 
Inventories are being carried at Rs. 16,735.38 lakhs out of which Rs. 2,307.40 lakhs are located at Singapore 
Branch which is not audited by us . The management was of the view that these inventories continue to remain 
marketable. However, due to ongoing default in payment to lenders who hold a hypothecation charge on 
these inventories, certain sale restrictions have been imposed. As most of the inventories remain unsold, the 
realizable value of the inventories is in doubt. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate evidence to support 
the management's assessment with respect to realizable value of the inventories, we are unable to comment 
on whether the inventories are being carried at cost or realizable value, whichever is lower as required by Ind 
AS 2 and the consequent adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the aforesaid 
inventories. 

(e) Trade Receivables and Provision for Doubtful Debts 
Trade Receivables are being carried at Rs. 54,597.82 lakhs out of which Rs. 1,772.53 lakhs are of Singapore 
Branch which is not audited by us. Amount of Provision for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables of 
Rs. 46,103.29 Lakhs has been disclosed in note 6 and not debited to the Profit and Loss Account and has 
not been reduced from Trade Receivables in the Balance Sheet which is not in accordance with Ind AS . As 
stated in note 1 due to restrictions imposed by lenders on inventory sales, the Holding Company is currently 
unable to make further supplies to customers. This disruption in the purchase-sales-collection cycle has 
posed challenges in debt collection and recovery. The expected realization of the amounts outstanding from 
customers is uncertain . Further, requests for confirmations had been sent to a sample of debtors. However, 
no replies were received from them. Due to unavailability of confirmations we are unable to comment on the 
adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the aforesaid Trade Receivables, its Ageing 
Schedule, the adequacy of Provision for Expected Credit Loss. Further, as the Provision for Expected Credit 
Loss of Rs. 46,103.29 has been disclosed as a note and not debited to the Profit and Loss Account, the loss 
has been understated to that extent. 

(f) Fixed Deposits with Banks 
Fixed Deposits with Banks are being carried at Rs. 8,047.05 lakhs. Confirmations from certain banks 
amounting to Rs. 1,955.20 lakhs are not available. Due to unavailability of confirmations, we are unable to 
comment on the adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the aforesaid Fixed Deposits 
with Banks. 

(9) Fixed Deposits other than Banks 
Fixed Deposits other than Banks are being carried at Rs. 895.00 lakhs. Confirmations from certain parties 
amounting to Rs. 830.00 lakhs are not available. Due to unavailability of confirmations, we are unable to 
comment on the adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the aforesaid Fixed Deposits 
other than Banks. 

(h) Balances with Government Authorities 
Balances with Government Authorities are being carried at Rs. 6,954.45 lakhs out of which Rs. 6,546.80 
lakhs pertains to the Holding Company and Rs. 407.65 lakhs pertains to the subsidiary company which is not 
audited by us. The balance of the Holding Company comprises of VAT paid on account of disputed cases of 
Rs. 56.64Iakhs, Customs Duty Refund of Rs. 195.42 lakhs, Unjust Enrichment of Rs. 47.82 lakhs and GST 
Input Credit Available of Rs. 6,246.92 lakhs. The recoverability of VAT Refund, Customs Duty Refund and 
Unjust Enrichment depends on the outcome of the cases filed with the respective government departments. 
Availability and Utilization of GST Input Credit depends on the outcome of the CIRP and whether the Holding 
Company is able make payments to its suppliers and to sell products in the future. Accordingly, we are unable 
to comment on the adjustments, if any, that may be required to the carrying value of the aforesaid Balances 
with Government Authorities. 

(i) Current Borrowings 
Current Borrowings are being carried at Rs. 50,535 .61 lakhs out of which Rs. 50 ,001.79 lakhs pertains to the 
Holding Company and Rs. 533.82 pertains to the subsidiary company which is not audited by us. 
Confirmations from certain banks and parties amounting to Rs. 5,774.19 lakhs are not available. Due to 
unavailability of confirmations, we are unable to comment on the adjustments, if any, that may be required to 
the carrying value of the aforesaid Current Borrowings and corresponding impact, if any, on finance costs. 

(j) Trade Payables 
Trade Payables are being carried at Rs. 33,392.39 lakhs. Confirmations from certain parties are not available. 
Due to unavailability of confirmations, we are unable to comment on the adjustments, if any, that may be 
required to the carrying value of the aforesaid Trade Payables, its ageing schedule and corresponding impact, 
if any, on Purchase of stock-in-trade. 
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(k) Purchase of stock-in-trade 
Purchase Rate Difference of Rs. 13,942.29 lakhs has been credited to this account. Proper records for 
verification of this amount were not available. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the adjustments, if 
any, that may be required to this amount and the corresponding impact, if any, on the loss of the Group. 

(I) Finance Costs 
Finance Costs of Rs. 7,379.13 lakhs includes interest on bank loans and discounting charges. Statements 
for interest and discounting charges for certain banks and other parties are not available. Accordingly, we are 
unable to comment on the adjustments, if any, that may be required to this amount and the corresponding 
impact, if any, on the loss of the Group. 

(m) Impairment to Debtors 
Impairment to Debtors of Rs. 8,392.70 lakhs is on account of loss on Merchanting Transaction for which 
application has been made to Indian Bank for seeking permission of Reserve Bank of India to write off the 
loss and condone the delay in completion of the transaction beyond the permitted period of 9 months. As the 
reply to the said application is still awaited and based on available documentation related to the transaction , 
we are unable to comment on the adjustments, if any, that may be required to this amount and the 
corresponding impact, if any, on the loss of the Group. 

(n) We have been informed that the report submitted by the Forensic Auditor appointed by Committee of 
Creditors is confidential. Further, we have been informed by the Interim Resolution Professional & Resolution 
Professional that certain information including the minutes of meetings of the Committee of Creditors and the 
outcome of certain procedures carried out as part of the CIRP are confidential in nature and could not be 
shared with anyone other than the Committee of Creditors and NCL T. Accordingly, we are unable to comment 
on the possible financial impact, presentation and disclosures, if any, that may arise if we had been provided 
access to such information. 

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern 

The financial statements are presented with the assumption that the Group will be able to continue its operations and 
that it has the ability to meet its financial obligations and liabilities in the normal course of business. As stated in note 
1 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the business of the Holding Company has been severely 
disrupted on account of extremely tight liquidity situation and inadequate support from major vendors and lenders, 
who have recalled the credit facilities. This situation has been further aggravated by high level of manpower attrition 
resulting in serious gaps in maintenance of IT systems and records. The Holding Company has defaulted in respect 
of instalments and payment of interest on term loans and dues on account of cash credits from Banks . As confirmed 
by the management, the Holding Company had submitted a restructuring plan to the lenders which has not been 
accepted by them . The Holding Company is undergoing the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process as explained 
in detail in note 42. Such events and conditions, along with the matters described in the section of Disclaimer of 
Opinion in our report, and their possible impact on erstwhile management's assumptions, and other matters as set 
forth in note 1, indicate that material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue 
as a going concern. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate evidence, we are unable to comment as to whether 
the going concern basis for the preparation of these financial statements taken by the Resolution Professional is 
appropriate. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that , in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the standalone financial statements as a whole , and in forming our opinion thereon , and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

Except for the matters discussed in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion Paragraph , there are no other Key Audit 
Matters to be communicated in the Auditor's Report. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated financial 
statements 

The Holding Company has been under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP") under the provisions 
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("the Code") vide order dated 2nd November 2023 passed by the 
National Company Law Tribunal ("NCL T") . The powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended as per Section 17 

~ of the Code and such powers were being exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the 
~"~<f~~CL T by the said order under the provisions of the Code. As per Section 20 of the Code, the management and 
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operations of the Company were being managed by the Interim Resolution Professional Mr. Arun Kapoor upon 
commencement of CIRP. Subsequently, vide order dated 29th April 2024 passed by NCL T, the IRP Mr. Arun Kapoor 
was replaced by Resolution Professional (RP) Mr. Gajesh Labhchand Jain who is now responsible for the 
management and operations of the Company. 

The Holding Company's management is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance, total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. The respective management of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These 
financial statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the 
management of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those management is also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. However, because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we 
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('I CAl') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

Other Matter 

We have not audited the financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary. The subsidiary 
accounts for total assets of Rs. 413.93 lakhs as at 31 March 2023, net loss of Rs. 3.00 lakhs for the year ended 31 
March 2023. 

These financial statements and financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in terms of section 143 (3) 
of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

The financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary which is located outside India whose 
financial statements and other financial information has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in its respective country and which has been audited by other auditors under generally accepted 
auditing standards applicable in its respective country. The Holding Company's management has converted the 
financial statements of this subsidiary located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in its 
respective country to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion 
adjustments made by the Holding Company's management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and 
affairs of the subsidiary located outside I ndia is based on the reports of other auditors and the conversion adjustments 
prepared by the Management of the Company and audited by us. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done 
and the reports of the other auditors . 
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Report on legal and other regulatory requirements 

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based 6n our audit and on the consideration of the report of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of its subsidiary, as noted in the 
"other matter" paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above, we have sought but were unable to obtain 
all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements: 

(b) as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section, we are unable to state whether proper books of 
account as required by law for have been kept by the Holding Company for preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements; 

(c) as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section, we are unable to state whether the consolidated 
Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
consolidated Cash Flow Statement and consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements; 

(d) due to the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section, we are 
unable to state whether the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

(e) the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion and in the Material Uncertainty related to Going 
Concern section above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group. 

(f) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 st 

March 2023, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the Directors of 
the Group Company incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 st March, 2023 from being appointed as a 
director, in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(g) the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated 
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section above. 

(h) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A. Our report expresses 
disclaimer opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting for the reasons stated 
therein; 

(i) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirement of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year 
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

U) other than the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph 
above, with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors 
on separate financial statements and also the other financial information of the subsidiary, as noted in the 
"other matter" paragraph: 

(i) the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact on pending litigations on its financial position 
of the Group in its consolidated financial statements; 

(ii) the Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; and 

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. 
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(iv) (a) The management of the Holding Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Holding Company to or in any other person or entity, inCluding foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Holding Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management of the Holding Company has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Holding Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company shall , whether 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the funding party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances performed by us on the Holding Company, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under subclause (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
mis-statement. 

(v) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with section 123 of the 
Act. 

For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's registration No. 101424W 

? v..v' e,pJ'M.f( 
r 

Suril Shah 
Partner 

Membership No. 42710 
UDIN : 24042710BKGWNQ9688 

Mumbai, October 8, 2024 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Compuage Infocom Limited ("the 
Holding Company") as of 31 st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Holding 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

We do not express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company. 
Because of the significance of the matters described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion" section of our report, 
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

The system of internal financial controls over financial reporting with regard to the Holding Company were not made 
available to us to enable us to determine if the Holding Company has established adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting and whether such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 SI March 2023 
due to reasons as stated in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Holding Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

However, because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not 
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the Holding Company's 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition , use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's registration No. 1 0 1 424~ 

Qr tuu 'fy..r J.J-X 
r 
Suril Shah 

Partner 
Membership No. 42710 

UDIN : 24042710BKGWNQ9688 
Mumbai, October 8,2024 

119



Compuage Infocom Limited 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

( ~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 
Particulars Note 31-Mar-23 31-r.lar-22 

A_ ASSETS 
1. Non-current assets 

a) Property. plant and equipment 2 
b) Intangible assets 2 
c) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 3 
(ii) Others financial assets 4 

Total non-current assets I 
2. Current assets 

a) Inventories 5 
b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade recei vables 6 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8 
(iv) Loans 9 
(v) Other financial assets 10 

c) Current tax assets (net) II 
d) Other current assets 12 

Total current assets I 
TOTAL ASSETS 
B. EQUITY AND LIABILmES 
Equity 

a) Equity share capital 13 
b) Other equity 14 

Total equity 
Liabilities 

I. Non-current liabilities 
a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 15 
b) Provisions 16 
c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 

Total non-current liabilities I 
2. Current liabilities 
a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 18 
Cii) Trade payables 19 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small 
enterpri ses 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro and small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 20 
b) Other current liabilities 21 
c) Provisions 22 
d) Current tax liabilities (net) 17 

Total current liabilities I 
Total liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LL-\BILITIES I 
Significant accounting policies I 
The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes 

As per our report of even date 
For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Firm Reg. No.: 101424W 
Chartered Accountants 

(CA. S. V. Shah) 
Partner 
Membership No. : 042710 
Place: Mumbai . I. 
Dated: &+~(!J ~W,..l.CJ~ 

Suspended Director 

4.854.15 4.855.19 
0.56 0.65 

57.12 82.32 
- 448.05 

4.911.83 5,386.21 

16.735.38 43.697.63 

54.597.82 52.083.26 
1.239.88 510.05 
8.047.05 7.958.35 

19.10 22.13 
1.210.73 1.174.99 

280.84 -
7.1 ]I .83 7.219.46 

89.243.63 112,665.87 
94,155.46 118.052.08 

1.715.36 1.299.52 
7.040.13 ?3 .473.00 
8.755.49 I 24,772.52 

- 4.779.81 
- 206.91 
- 4? 1.77 

- 5.408.49 

50.535.61 50.599.40 

- -

33.392.39 33.970.80 
986.13 1.318.02 
185.31 1.783.81 
300.53 30.00 

- 169.04 
85.399.97 87.871.07 
85,399.97 93.279.56 
94,155.46 I 118,052.08 

1697/2019 -2020/12588 

Bhavesh Mehta 
Suspended Director 
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Compuage Infocom Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2023 

Particulars Note 
Revenue from operations 23 
Other income 24 
Total Income 
Expenses 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 26 
Employee benefits expense 27 
Finance costs 28 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2 

. Other expenses 29 
Total Expenses 
Profit before exceptional items and tax 
Profit before tax 
Tax expense 
Current tax 17 
Tax for Earlier Years 17 
Deferred tax 17 
Total tax expense 
Profit for the year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

- Remeasurment of Defined Employee Benefit Plans 
- Income Tax relating to above items 

b) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss 
- Foreign Currency Transalation difference 1 
- Income Tax relating to above items 

Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax 
Total Comprehensive Income fot the year 
Earnings per Equity share attributable to owners of the 
Company 
No. of shares 
Basic and diluted earning per Equity share of ~2 each 
Significant accounting policies 1 
The above Profit & Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes 

As per our report of even date 
For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Firm Reg. No.: 101424W 
Chartered Accountants 

(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 
2022-23 2021-22 

373,948.47 420,750.18 
602.71 1,644.96 

374,551.18 422,395.14 

342,344.37 414,912.46 
26,962.25 (11 ,758.83) 

3,443.91 3,476.85 
7,379.13 7,442.99 

307.71 340.69 
14.238.96 4,316.90 

394,676.33 418.731.06 
(20,125.15) 3,664.08 
(20.125.15) 3,664.08 

5.48 954.53 
275.20 -

(421.77) 34.70 
(141.09)1 989.23 

(19,984.06) 2,674.85 

- 17.80 

- (4.48) 

(65.14)1 (20.61) 

- 5.19 
(65.14) (2.10) 

(20,049.20)1 2,672.75 

857.68 649.76 
(28.16) 4.11 

~~~r~)i1Ip·-p 01697/2019 -2020112588 

(CA. S. V. Shah) 
Partner 
Membership No. : 042710 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: &l~ eJU~ .:20.;.4 

/ 

Suspended Director 
Bhavesh Mehta 
Suspended Director 
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COMPUAGE INFOCOM LIMITED 
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the year ended March 31; 2023 

( ~ In Lakhs l 
Particulars March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

A. Cash Flows From Operating ActiYities 
PfO'fi l before tax (20.125.15) 3.664.08 
Ad iustmen1 For: 
Depreci ation and amortisation expenses 307.71 340.69 
LmpairmenL of Debtors 8.392.70 -
Unrealised Exchange Rate Diffference (Net) (55.21) (18.34) 
~inance costs 7.379.13 7.442.99 
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost (563.02) ( 1.627.95) 
Loss / (Gain) on Sale of Property. Plant & Equipment 1.54 -
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (4.662.30) 9,801.47 
Changes in working capital: 
Decrease!(lncreas.:) In Inventories 26.962.25 (11.758.83) 
Decrease/( lncrease) In Trade Receivables (10.907.26) 3.392.64 
Decr<:asel(lncrc:ase) In Current Loans 3.03 677.10 
Decreaselllncrease) In Other Current Asse ts 118.79 '3.310.83 
DecreaseJ(lncrease) In Other Financial Assets (35.74) 822.58 
fncrease /(Decrease) In Trade Payables (578.41 ) 9.597.20 
lllcrease /(Decrease) In Other Financial Liabilities (331.89) 1.082.86 
Increase /(Decrease) In Other Current Liabilities (1,767.54) (1.797.96) 
Im:reast: /(Decrease) In provisions 63,62 40.14 

Total 13.526.85 5.366.56 
IllcOI'lJe tax paid (net of refund) (573.68)1 (600,37) 
:-;et Cash Inflow/(Outfiow) From Operating Acthities (A) 8190.87 14,567.66 

B. Casb Flows From Investing Acthities 
PU'rchase of Property. plant and equipment (325.82) (484.44) 
Sale of Property. plant and equipment 17.70 -
Sale/(Pufcb o.st' ) of Non·Current Investments 18.94 15.80 
Proceeds from / (Payment of) fixed deposits 359.35 (1.541.54) 
Interest received on financial assets measured at amortised cost 563.02 1.6?7.95 
Net Cash Inflow/(Outfiow) From Investing Acthities (B) 633.19 (382.23) 

C. Cash Flows From Financing Acthities 
Proceed from Issuance of Equity Share Capital under Rights Issue 4.158.45 -
Proceed from / (Repayment of) Current Borrowings (63.79) (4.554. [5) 
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) Non Current Borrowings (4.779.81) (2.330.65) 
Interest Paid (7,379.13) (7.442.99) 
Dividend on Equity shares 1l29.9il (129.95) 
Net Cash Inflow/(Outfiow) From Financing ActiYities ( C ) (8.194.23) (14.457.74) 

I 
Net Increasel(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 729.83 (272.31) 

Cash And Cash Equivalents As At Beginning Of The Year 510.05 782.36 
Cash And Cash Equivalents As At End Of The Year 1.239.88 510.05 

i) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method ' as set out in the Ind AS 7 - Statement 
of Cash Flows as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 

As per our report of even date 
For Bhogilal C. Shah & Co. 
Firm Reg. No.: 101424W 
Chartered Accountants 

(CA. S. V. Sbah) 
Partner 
Membership No. : 042710 
Place: lVfumbai __ • I. 
Dated: ~ o(}o W,....>-Q..l..A'f 

• .I,.tu] Mehta 
Suspended Director 

Bhavesh I\Iehta 
Suspended Director 
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A. Equity Sharc C[lpilal 

Pmli~ulars 

As at ApI'i1 01, 2021 
Changcs ill Equily share Carilal during lhe year 
As at March 31, 2022 
Changcs in Equily share Ca[)ilal durinillheyear 
As ut Murch 31, 2023 

-- - -

n. Other ECJuity 

Particulurs 

As at A~ril 01, 2022 
Profil for lhe year 
Olhcr Comprchensive IlIcol11c 

Totull'ompIehensivc income for thc yeal' 
Prcfcl-ential [Il1otment-Rights Issuc 

Transactions with owners ill their capucity us 
owners: 
Dividclld paid (includillg dividelld dislribulion lax) 

As at March 31, 2023 

Compuage Infocom Limited 
Sl<ll~I11~1l1 of Changes in Equily for lh~ year ended March 31,2023 

({ in Lakh unl~ss ()lherwis~ slal~d) 

N()l~ Amounl 

13 1,291).52 
-

13 1,299.52 
415.84 

13 1,715.36 

l~cscrvcs and Surplus 

Sccuritics CUI>itul 
PI'cmiulll 

Gcncral Capital 
rcdcmption 

Retuincd 

Rcservc 
Rcscrvc reserve Eurnings 

reserve 

3,MlUm 35.36 1J4.~4 129.72 19,528.53 
- - - - ( 19,084.06) 

- - - - (65.14) 

- - - - (20,049.20) 

3,742.61 

- - - - -

- - - - (129.95) 

7,411.41 35.36 134.84 129.72 (650.62) 
- -

Othcr Rcscl'vcs 

Totul othcl' I 
Foreign 

li'VOCI equity currcncy 
Equity 

instru men ts translulion 
rcscrv'c 

- (24.25) 23,473.1111 

- 3.67 (19,980.39) 

- - (65.14) 
- 3.67 (20,045.53) 

3,742.61 

- - -

- - (129.95) 

- (20.58) _ 7,040.13 
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Compuage Infocorn Limited 

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3pt Match 2023. 

Compuage Infocom Limited 

Summary of Significant accounting policies to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2023 

Corporate Information 

Compuage Infocom Limited (The Company) is a public Limited company domiciled in India and incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on the BSE Ltd and NSE Ltd. 

The Company is engaged in trading in Computer parts and peripherals, Software and Telecom Products. The 
Company also provides products support services for Information Technology products . 

Group Overview 

The Company and its subsidiary Company are referred to as the Group here under. 

The group of companies are engaged in trading in Computer parts and peripherals, Software and Telecom Products. 

Group Structure 

N arne of Company Country of % of shares held by the 
incorporation parent company 

As at As at 
March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 

Compuage Infocom (S) Pte Ltd Singapore 100% 
1 100% 

Business Overview and Challenges: 

Business Overview: 
Compuage is in the business of distribution of technology products, services, software & telecom products. It helps 
marquee brands like ASUS, HP, CISCO, Microsoft and tens of others bring their products to the markets through 
10,000+ resellers. It also offers warranty services as value addition and also to shore up its bottom line. 

It has a strong reputation built over three decades and operates through a natiQnwide network comprising 45 sales 
offices, 27 warehouses, and 70 service centers. An international presence in Singapore caters to the Asia Pacific 
region. Compuage is one of the few distributors handling major brands like Asus, Cisco, HP, and Microsoft. It has 
received numerous awards for its outstanding performance. 

Compuage has been availing credit facilities from a bank consortium led by Indian Bank. It has had an unblemished 
track record for meeting its commitments to all the lenders on time, except in recent months. 

1 
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Nature of Business: 
The IT distribution sector, characterized by razor-thin profit margins (typically around 1 %), involves substantial 
logistics operations encompassing procurement, warehousing, transportation, channel development, and credit 
deployment. Compuage faces the perpetual challenge of product obsolescence due to the fast-paced evolution of 
technology. Furthermore, it competes with global giants, which enjoy economies of scale, efficient operations, and 
robust global networks, providing them a distinct competitive edge. 

Business Strategy and Execution: 

Compuage's strategy aimed to achieve growth by expanding its presence across Mobility, IT Consumer, IT 
Enterprise, Cloud Business, and Services segments, aspiring to become a comprehensive distribution hub. While 
it secured distributorships for top brands in these areas, the strategy faced challenges due to slow scaling compared 
to peers, primarily because of inadequate low-cost working capital. 

While Compuage matched its peers in terms of market penetration, sales infrastructure, and warehousing facilities, 
it did so with significantly lower revenue. Consequently, operational costs as a percentage of revenue remained 
elevated, aggravated by costly debt financing, substantially eroding gross margins. As a result, limited surplus 
funds were available for growth. To address this, Compuage strategically shifted focus away from mobility and IT 
consumer sectors to prioritize enterprise business, cloud offerings, and services, which offered better profit 
margins. This shift began in 2019, well before the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Impact of COVID: 
With the COVID-19 pandemic emerging in early 2020, Compuage faced severe challenges. The enterprise 
business, initially flourishing, suffered as major clients like corporate enterprises and government offices closed, 
impacting sales significantly. Simultaneously, semiconductor shortages disrupted stock availability, worsening 
receivables management and extending the working capital cycle. Ironically, the IT consumer sector, which Compuage had 
de-emphasized, boomed due to high demand for laptops and smartphones driven by remote work and study. This dual blow 
caused the company to lose out on the thriving IT consumer market while facing a decline in the IT enterprise sector. 

To mitigate these challenges, Compuage expanded its customer base by targeting a large number of MSME customers. 
Leveraging its nationwide distribution network, this strategy initially boosted sales but posed difficulties in receivables 
collection as defaults from this segment surged rapidly from December 2022. 

Stagnant Working Capital Support: 
Efforts to secure enhanced working capital limits encountered delays and preconditions, resulting in insufficient working 
capital to sustain operations. Some consortium banks even reduced existing limits. further aggravating the situation. 

Efforts to Overcome Challenges: 
Faced with the severe working capital deficit and declining support from banks, Compuage made extensive efforts to navigate 
the crisis. Despite some success in securing partial assistance from ~13FCs and an arrangement of Rs. 80 crores in working 
capital with one of the leading banks, these measures proved inadequate. The company explored multiple avenues, including 
private equity funding, seeking a strategic partner, and even contemplating a complete sale of the business as a going concern. 
However, due to the fiercely competitive nature of the industry and its thin profit margins, it couldn't find a suitable partner 
or in vestor. 

To address the acute liquidity shortage, the promoters sold a portion of their shareholding in the open market, injecting Rs. 
15 crores into the company. Compuage had also planned a rights issue of equity shares, which eventually materialized in 
December 2022, resulting in infusion of approximately Rs. 41.58 crares into the company. However, these funds provided 
only a temporary respite, addressing a small fraction of the substantial cash deficit the company faced. 
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Despite the substantial working capital shortfall, Compuage diligently strived to meet its payment commitments to lenders, 
even if it meant missing out on potential business opportunities. This determination to honoring obligations to lenders 
contributed to continuous delays in payments to vendors. 

Dwindling Vendor Support: 
Although Compuage initially benefited from its long-standing relationships and credibility with multinational vendors, this 
support was short-lived. The company had assured vendors that payments would be regularized once the enhanced limits 
were approved. Due to dwindling vendor support to Compuage, regular practice to adjust Compuage claims for marketing, 
training, special price clearances, price protection, etc, which gets adjusted against future purchases have not been recognised 
by the vendors. However, as these limits were not released, delays in streamlining vendor payments persisted. Vendors began 
redirecting their business to Compuage's competitors. strengthening the competition while simultaneously weakening 
Compuage. Prolonged payment delays eventually led vendors to withhold deliveries and, in some cases, completely withdraw 
their support, even terminating agency arrangements with Compuage. There are counterclaims by company as per industry's 
norms for various activities performed by the company on behalf of the vendors which have not been considered by them. 

Additional Factors: 
Factors like rupee depreciation and increased online sales exerted additional pressure on offline channels and supply chain 
margms. 

Current Situation: 
Amid market pressures, Compuage experienced a significant reduction in team size, leading to warehouse consolidation and 
outsourcing of various functions. The company is grappling with inventory sales due to restrictions imposed by lenders, 
outstanding payments recovery, and vendor claims, impacting profitability, cash flow, and credibility. This situation has been 
further aggravated by high level of manpower attrition resulting in serious gaps in maintenance of IT systems and records 
which has resulted in non-accessibility to the books of accounts maintained on SAP. 

Subsequently, a petition c.P. (IE) 329IMB12023 was filed by Plus Plus Engaugement Services Pvt Ltd under section 7 of 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ('IEC') against Compuage Infocom Limited ("Corporate Debtor") for the default in 
payment of INR 1,68,57,123/- (Rupees One Crore Sixty-Eight Lacs Fifty-Seven Thousand One Hundred Twenty-Three 
Only). The Hon' bIe NCLT, Mumbai Bench admitted the petition and ordered initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process in respect ofthe Corporate Debtor on November 02,2023. The Hon'ble Bench in the same order appointed Mr. Arun 

Kapoor as the Interim Resolution Professional CIRP'). Thereafter. Hon'ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench has passed an order dated 
29.04.2024 (Order received on 09.05.2024), for the replacement of Resolution Professional and appointed Mr. Gajesh 
Labhchand Jain (Regi stration no. IEBI/IP A -00 1 IIP-P-O 1697/2019-2020/12588) as Resolution Professi onal ("RP") under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("Code") in matter of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of Mis Compuage 
Infocom Limited. 

The Companies Act 2013 (as amended) (The "Act") under section 134( 1). states that the financial statement shall be approved 
by the Board of Directors and thereafter signed on behalf of the Board by the chairperson of the Company where he is 
authorized by the Board or by 2 Directors out of which I shall be Managing Director, if any, and the Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO), the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Company Secretary of the Company, wherever they are appointed, for 
submission to the Auditor for his report thereon. Further Section 134(5) of the Act, mentions following points under the 
purview of the Directors' responsibility: 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of 
the financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for that period; 
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(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

Cd) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) the directors, in the case of a listed company had laid down internal financial control to be followed by the 
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

These financial statements of the company for the year ended 31.03.2023 pertains to period prior to commencement 
of the CIRP on 02.11.2023. All the directors of the Company except two directors, and Company Secretary had 
resigned from their position in the company prior to commencement of CIRP. Upon commencement of the CIRP, 
the powers of the Board of Directors of the company stand suspended and are exercised by the Resolution 
Professional. 

These financial statements have been signed by the Resolution Professional (RP) while exercising the powers of 
the Board of Directors of the Company which has been conferred upon him in terms of the provisions of the Section 
17 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 2016. The Resolution Professional have signed these statements in good 
faith, solely for the purpose of compliance and discharging his duty under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process, governed by the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 2016. Since these financial statements belong to the 
period when the affairs of the company were being managed and governed by the erstwhile Board of Directors of 
the Company, these financial statements have been prepared with the same "basis of preparation" as adopted by 
the erstwhile Board of Directors as enumerated upon the Board under Section 134(5), of the Companies Act, 2013 

and related regulations, while highlighting/addressing any material departures as per the current conditions and 
events which occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date. While signing the aforesaid financial statements, the 
Resolution Professional (RP) has relied on the representation statements and information made by Suspended 
Management of the Company. 

A. Significant Accounting Policies: 

i).Basis of Preparation: 

(a) Compliance with Ind AS 

These consolidated financial statements are the separate consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared 
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards crnd AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended hereinafter 
referred to as the Ind AS, and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Consolidated financial statements up to the year ended March 31, 2020 were prepared in accordance with the 
Accounting Standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, hereinafter referred to as the 'Previous GAAP'. 

Group's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (~) , which is also its functional currency. 

(b) Use of Estirnates: 
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The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's best 
knowledge of current events arid actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the 
outcomes requiring adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 

Estimates and judgements are continualIy evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. 

(c) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the 
carrying amounts of receivables and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the 
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the 
date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit 
reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the 
assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. 
The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of 
approval of these financial statements. 

(d) Historical Cost Convention: 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on 
the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets and financialliablIities that are measured at fair 
values at the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies 
have been applied consistently over all the Periods presented in these consolidated financial statements. 

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting: 

i) . Subsidiary companies: 
Subsidiary companies are alI entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity 
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. 
Subsidiary companies are fulIy consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. 

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group. 

The Group combines the Financial Statements of the parent and its subsidiary companies line by line adding 
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and 
unrealized gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated 
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting Policies of 
subsidiary companies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the 
Group. 

Non-controlIing interest in the results and equity of subsidiary companies are shown separately in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Balance Sheet respectively. 
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ii) Associate companies: 
Associate companies are all entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control or 
joint control. This is generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting 
rights. Investments in associate companies are accounted for using the equity method of accounting 
{see (iv) below}. 

iii) Joint arrangements: 
Under Ind AS 111 Joint arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint 
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each 
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group has interest only in one 
joint venture company. 

Joint venture company 

Interest in joint venture company are accounted for using the equity method {see (iv) below} . 

iv) Equity method: 
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted 
thereafter to recognize share of the Group in post-acquisition profit and loss of the investee in profit 
and loss, and share of the Group in Other Comprehensive Income of the investee in Other 

Comprehensive Income. Dividends received or receivable from associate company and joint venture 

company are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. 

When the Group share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, 
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has 

incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. 

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associate company and joint venture company are 
eliminated to the extent of the Group interest in these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting Policies of equi ty accounted 

investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. 

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the policy 
described in (xiv) below 

v) Changes in ownership interest: 

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interest that do not result in a loss of control as 

transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment 
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interest to reflect their relative 
interest in the subsidiary companies. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non­

controlling interest and any consideration paid or received is recognized within equity. 

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control 

or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value with the change in carrying 

amount recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purpose of 
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate company, joint venture company or financial asset. 

In addition, any amount previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in respect of that entity are 
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accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts 
previo.usly recognised in Other Comprehensive Income are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

If the ownership interest in a joint venture company or an associate company is reduced but joint control or 
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss where appropriate 

Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (~), which is also its functional currency. 

H).Currentl Non-Current classification: 

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions: 

i. the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled in the Group' s normal operating cycle; 
ii. The asset is intended for sale or consumption; 
iii. The asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
iv. The assetlliability is expected to be realized/settled within twelve months after the reporting period; 
v. the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date: 
vi. In the case of a liability, the group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 
at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Group has ascertained its nonnal 
operating cycle as twelve months. 

lin. Tangible Assets !Propert\', plant and equipment: 

An item of property, pliflt and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

The Group identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if 
the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful 
life that is materially different from that of the remaining item. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and 
other nonrefundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant 
and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. 

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant 
and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and 
maintenance are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. 

iv).Depredation on tan!;!ible fixed assets: 
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Depreciation on each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight Line Method 
based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation 
methods are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, 
such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and accordingly, accounted for prospectively. 

vUntangibJe Assets: 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. 
Internally generated intangibles are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life i.e. 3 years based on management assessment and 
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 

The amortization period and the amortiz~tion method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed 
at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period 
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on 
intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

vi).Derecognition: 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

vin.Impairment of non-financial assets - property plant and equipment and intangible assets: 

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to assess if there are any indications of 
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss on such assessment will be recognised 
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the assets is 
net selling price or value in use, whichever is higher. While assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to the present value by using weighted average cost of capital. A previously recognised impairment 
loss is further provided or reversed depending on changes in the circumstances and to the extent that carrying 
amount of the assets does not exceed the carrying amount that will be determined if no impairment loss had 
previously been recognised. 

Goodwill, intangible assets having indefinite useful life and intangible assets currently not in use by the Group are 
tested for impairment annually and also whenever there are indicators of impairments. 

Reversal of impairment of Goodwill is not recognized. 

"iii).Lease: 

The Company as a Lessee 
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The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises for its branches at various 
locations. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, 
the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 
substantially all ofthe economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company 
has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROD) asset and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the 
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease 
arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROD assets 
and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 
As all the leases are short-term leases or low value leases, the Company has not recognized any right-of-use asset 
and corresponding lease liability for any of the lease arrangements in which it is a lessee during the year. 

The Company as a Lessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the 
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance 
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

Transition 

Effective April 1,2019, the Company adopted rnd AS 116, Leases and applied the standard to all lease contracts 
existing on April 1.2019. However, as all the leases are short-term leases or low value leases, the Company has 
not recognized any right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for any of the lease arrangeme.nts during the 
year. 

ix).Borro,"ine: costs: 

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowing and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowing to the extent they are regarded as an 
adjustment to the interest cost. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes 
a substantial period oftime to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 

x).Revenue Reco~tion : 

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with a transaction flows to the Group 
in the ordinary course of its activities and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts 
and volume rebates by the Group. 
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Revenue includes only the gross inflows of economic benefits, received and receivable by the Group, on its own 
account. Amounts collected on behalf ofthird parties such as Sales Tax, VAT and GST are excluded from revenue. 

The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, type of 
transaction and specifics of each arrangement. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for 
discounts and returns. No element of financing is deemed present as sales are made with a credit term which is 
consistent to market practice. 

Sale ofproducts: 
Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Group transfers all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer, while the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement nor effective control 
over the products sold. 

Rendering of services:.. 
Revenue from product support services are recognized once the service is provided and the invoice is raised and 
are net of applicable taxes. 

Interest: 
Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 

Dividend: 
Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and the amount of 
the dividend can be measured reliably. 

xi).Foreign Currency Transactions Itranslations: 

Functional and presentation Currency: 

Items included in the financial statement of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Group operates (functional currency). The Financial statements of the Group are 
presented in Indian Currency, which is also the functional currency of the Group. 

Initial Recognition: 

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Group are recorded in the functional 
currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date ofthe transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign 
exchange traIisactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Foreign exchange gain or loss resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from translation of monetary 
assets or liability denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end exchange rate are generally recognized in the 
profit and loss account except that they are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges. 

Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date: 
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Foreign currency monetary items of the Group are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items 
that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when the fair value is measured. 

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. 

xii).Derinltive .financial instruments and hed!!e accountine-: 

The Group enters into derivative financial contracts in the nature of forward currency contracts with external parties 
to hedge its foreign currency risks relating to foreign currency denominated financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost. 

The Group is not following hedge accounting. Consequently all derivative instruments are recognised and 
measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss. 

xiii).Inventories: 

(a) Stock of goods traded is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The costs of purchase of inventories 
comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the entity 
from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
finished goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining 
the costs of purchase. The costs are determined on a weighted average basis. 

(b) Saleable scrap is accounted for as and when sold. 

xiv2.Investments and other financial assets: 

Classification: 

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

i) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), or through 
Profit or Loss), and 

ii) Those measured at amortised cost 

The classification depends on the business model of the entity for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in Profit or Loss or Other Comprehensive 
Income. 

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. 

For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at 
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCl) 
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Initial reco!mition and measurement: 

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus. in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financi i~rasseL Transaction 
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent measurement: 

After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at: 

i) Fair value {either through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or through Profit or Loss (FfVPL)} or, 
ii) Amortised cost. 

Debt instruments: 

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the business model of the Group for managing the asset 
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group 
classifies its debt instruments: 

Measured at amortised cost: 

Financial assets that are held within a business model \,,-hose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss 
arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI): 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets 
and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured 
at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income. Fair value movements are recognised in the OCI. Interest 
income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain / (loss) previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity 
to other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss: (FVTPL) 

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified as FfVPL. Such financial assets 
are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, 
recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity instruments: 

The Group subsequently measures all investments in equity instruments other than subsidiary companies, associate 
company and joint venture company at fair value. The Management of the Group has elected to present fair value 
gains and losses on such equity investments in Other Comprehensive Income, and there is no subsequent 
reclassification of these fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends from such 
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investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the right to receive payment is 
established. 

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI 
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

Investments in Subsidiary Companies, Associate Companies and Joint Venture companies: 

Investments in Subsidiary Companies, Associate Companies and Joint Venture companies are carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the 
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in 
Subsidiary Companies, Associate Companies and Joint Venture companies, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Impairment of financial assets: 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

i) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, 
deposits, and bank balance. 

ii) Trade Receivables. 

The Group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which 
do not contain a significant financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require the 
Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at 
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

De-recognition: 

A financial asset is de-recognized only when the Group 
i) has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
ii) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual 

obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized. Where the entity 
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not 
de-recognized. Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognized if the Group has not retained control 
of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized 
to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

Financial liabilities: 

i) Classification as debt or equity 
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

ii) Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the fair value. 

iii) Subsequent measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss . 

iv) De-recognition 
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expires . 

Offsetting financial instruments: 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of 
the Group or the counterparty. 

xv).Retirement and other employee benefits: 

Short term employee benefits: 

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of service such as salaries, wages, bonus, ex gratia, medical 
benefits etc. are recognized in the year in which the employees render the related service and are presented as 
current employee benefit obligations within the balance sheet. 

Defined contribution plan: 

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as contribution to provident fund, Employees State Insurance 

Corporation, National Pension Scheme are charged as an expense to the statement of profit and loss on the amount 

of contribution required to be made as and \vhen services are rendered by the employees. The above benefits are 
classified as defined contribution schemes as the Group has no further defined obligations beyond the monthly 
contributions . 

The Liability or Asset, is recognized in the Balance sheet in respect of Gratuity is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation 
is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method (PUCM). 

xvi).Income Taxes: 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period based 
on the applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences and unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted 
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken 
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in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes 
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (,MAT') under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current tax 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid will be recognized 
as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax 
during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set off against the normal tax liability. Such 
an asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized 
if they arise from the initial recognition of Goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the 
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit / (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using 
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to 
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and u'nused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. In this 
case, the tax is also recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively. 

xvii).Cash and cash eQuivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other short term deposits (three 

months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and 

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

,,,,,viti) .Segment report:i:02 : 

The Group operates only in one reportable segment. 

xix).Earnings per Share: 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 
equ!ty share outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

xx). Provisions and contingent liabilities: 
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. These are reviewed at each year end and reflect the best current estimate. Provisions are not recognised 
for future operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of 
an outflow with respect to anyone item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
cannot be made. 

16 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 
NOTE 2 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Particulars Buildings IT Equipment 

Gross carrying amount 
As at April 1st, 2021 4,291.62 1,845.38 
Additions - 468.07 
Disposals - -
As at April 1st, 2022 4,291.62 2,313.45 
Additions - 315.43 
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2023 4,291.62 2,628.88 
Depreciation I Amortisation 
As at March 31, 2021 327.87 1,745.49 
Charge For the year 75.39 68.28 
Disposals - -

As at March 31, 2022 403.26 1,813.77 
Charge For the year 75.39 102.64 
Disposals - -
upto March 31, 2023 478.65 1,916.41 
Net carrying amount 
As at 31-03-2022 3,888.36 499.68 
As at 31-03-2023 3,812.97 712.47 

]. The company has hypothicated Buildings to avail the Loan from the Bank. 

Vehicles 

117.29 

-
-

117.29 
-

-117.29 

-
84.58 

6.76 
-

91.34 
6.71 

(98.05) 
-

25.95 

-

Total 
Office Furniture and Property, Intangible 

Equipment Fixture plant and Assets 
equipment 

797.83 1,611.72 8,663.84 11.99 
12.47 3.90 484.44 -
- - - -

810.30 1,615.62 9,148.28 11.99 
10.39 - 325.82 -

- - (117.29) -
820.69 1,615.62 9,356.81 11.99 

633.05 1,161.50 3,952.49 11.25 
61.82 128.35 340.60 0.09 

- - - -
694.87 1,289.85 4,293.09 11.34 
53 .17 69.71 307.62 0.09 

- - (98.05) -
748.04 1,359.56 4,502.66 11.43 

115.43 325.77 4,855.19 0.65 
72.65 256.06 4,854.15 0.56 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

NOTE 3 . Non Current Investments . 
Particluars 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31~ 2022 

a) Investment in equity instruments of Other Company 
measured at FVTPL - Unquoted 190416 Equity Shares of 
Bombay Mercantile Co- Op. Bank Ltd of ~30 Each. (Previous 
year: 274416 Equity Shares ofRs. 30 each). 57.12 82.32 

Total 57.12 82.32 

NOTE 4 : Other Non Current Financial Assets 

As at As at 
Particluars 

March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

Fixed Deposits with Banks, with maturity beyond 12 months - 448.05 

Total . 448.05 

NOTE 5 . Inventories . 
Particluars 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Stock in trade 16,735.38 43,697.63 
Total 16,735.38 43,697.63 

NOTE 6 : Trade Receivables 

Particluars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 
Unsecured, considered good 8,494.53 52,083.26 
ru nsecured, considered Doubtful (Not provided for) 46,103.29 -
Total 54,597.82 52,083.26 

Ae.ein" for trade receivables ouLStandin" as at 31st March ~O" ~ ~ ~ ~ --
Particluars Outstandine. for fol\o"ine. periods from due dates of pavment 

Not due Less than 6 16 months-l 
months year 

1 - 2 years 2 _ 3 ears I More than 3 
y vears Total 

Undisputed trade receivables-considered good. 8.494.53 I 8.494.53 

Undisputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in 

I I credit risk . - - - - - -
Undisputed trade receivables-credit impaired. - I - - I - - I 
Disputed trade receivables-considered "ood. - I -
Disputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit I 
risk. 4.895.38 1 38.166.53 1 651.17 1.267.56 976.33 146.32 46.103.29 

Disputed trade receivables-credit impaired. - I - - - - -

Less: Provision fordoubtfull debts--credit impaired - - - I - - -
Total 13.389.91 I 38,166.53 I 651.17 1,267.56 976.33 146.32 54.597.82 

A ein~ for trade receivables outstanding as at 31st March 2022 
Particluars Outstandino for fol\o"ine. eriods from due dates of a ment 

Not due Less than 6 6 months-II' I' 3 More than 3 1 
months vear - - years ~ - years years Total 

Undis uted trade receivables-considered good. 24.858.24 23.883.89 867.49 552.36 22.84 85.77 50.270.59 

Undisputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in 
credit risk. I - I 
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Undisputl'd trade receivables-credit impaired. I - , . J 
Disputed trade recehables-{:QllSidered .!!Ood. 4?6.76 I 
Disputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit I risk . -
Disputed trade receivables-credit inronired. - - I 
Less: Provision fordaubtfull debts-credit impairl'd - I - I 
Total 24.858.24 24.310.65 I 

NOTE 7 : Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particluars 

Bank balances 
In current accounts 
In unpaid dividend accounts 

Cash on hand 
Fixed depositS with original maturity less than 3 months 
Total 

NOTE 8 : Other Bank Balances 

Particluars 

Fixed deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months 
Total 

NOTE 9 : Current Loans 

Particluars 

Loans to employees 
Total 

NOTE 10 : Other Current Financial Assets 

Particluars 

Fixed deposits other than Banks 
Security deposits 
Interest accrued 
Total 

NOTE 11 : Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particluars 

Advance income tax (net of provisions) 
Total 

NOTE 12 : Other Current Assets 

Prepaid expenses 
Advance to staff 

Particluars 

Balances with Government authorities 
Miscell ses (to the extent not written of) 
Total 

- I - I - I -

685.42 644.16 0.38 55.95 1.812.67 

- - I - -
- - - -
- - -

1,552.91 1,196.52 23.22 1 141.72 52.083.26 

I 

As at 
March 31,2023 

1,202.95 
16.35 
20.58 

-

1,239.88 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

8,047.05 
8,047.05 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

19.10 
19.10 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

895.00 
239.38 

76.35 
1,210.73 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

280.84 
280.84 

As at 
March 31,2023 

97.k5 
2.64 

6.954.45 
58.59 

7,112.83 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

434.22 
19.34 
14.54 
41.95 

510.05 

As at 
March 31,2022 

7,958.35 
7,958.35 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

22.13 
22.13 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

735.00 
370.99 
69.00 

1,174.99 

As at 
March 31,2022 

-

As at 
March 31, 2022 

-

478.10 
1.65 

6,739.71 

7,219.46 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(, in l:lkh unless otherwise stated) 

NOTE 13 . [OIJIT)" SHARE C,\PIT AI '" 
Particulars 

Al!thorised 
9.62.70.000 Equity shares of f2.00 each 
46.65.600 Preference ' hares of ~O. 10 (Ten paise) each 
l.l O.OO.OOOPreftrence shares on 10.00 ea·:h 
Total 
Issued, suhscribed and fuliy paid-up 
8.57.68.064 Equity shares ofn.OO each fully paid ;Preyious 
Year; 6.49.75.806 Equity shares of ~2.00 each fully paid 

I 

Total 

I 

As at As at 
March 31..2013 March 3L 202.2 

1.925.40 1.925.40 
4.67 I 4.67 

LlOO.OO 1.100.00 
3.C30.07 3,030.07 

J.7j 5.36 1.299.52 

1,715.36 1,299.52 

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount o\!tstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repcrting period; 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31. 2023 Marcb 31. 2021 

No. in lakh I 't In lakh No. in lakh 't In lakh 

At the begin!ling of t!le Period 649.76 1,299.52 649.76 1.299.52 

Add; Preferential allotment-Rights Issue 207.92 415.84 - -

Outstanding at the end of the period 857.68 1.715.36 649.76 1.299.52 

Tenns I rights attached to CQuitv shares 
The c0mpacy has oniy one class of equity shares having a par value of ~2.00 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 

share. 

lr. the event of liquidati on of the company. the holder of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the company.afier distribution 
of all preferential amounts. 

The distri~ution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by shareholders. 

c) Detail~ o{ Shareholders hold·11l!! more thao 5% or EQuin· slrdl'CS: 
As at As at 

Name of Shareholder March 31. 2023 Marclt 31. 2022 
Holdin!! % No. in lakh Holding % No. in lakh 

I. Arul Harkishandas Mehta 20.35% 174.54 23.02% 149.54 

2. Bha,esh Harkishandas Mehta 20.35% 174.54 23.02% \-+9.54 

3. Ajav Harkishanda> Mehta 1.95 'Jt 16.69 12.30% 79.94 

d) Disclosure of shareholdino of promoters' c 
Disclosure of sharehoidin~ or promoters as at 31st Mart:b 2023 

As at As at 
Name of Shareholder March 31. 2023 March 31,2022 

Holdin!! % No. in lakh Holdin!! % No. in lakh 
I. Atul Harki; handas Mehta 20.35% 174.54 23.02% 149.54 
2. Bhavesh Harkishandas Mehta 20.35% 174.54 23.C2% 149.54 

3. Ajay Harkishandru; Mehta 1.95% 16.69 12.30% 79.94 

o isclosure of ,hareholdina of promoters as at 31st March 1022 
As at As at 

Name of Shareholder March 31, 1022 March 31, 2021 

Holdine % No. in lakh Holdi,,!! % No. in lakh 
I. Arul Harkishandas Mehta 23.02% 149.54 23.02'ic 1 .. 9.54 
2. Bhavesh Harkishandas Mehta 23.02% 149.54 23.02% 149.54 
3. Ajay Harkishandas Mehta 12.30% 79.94 12.30'k 79.94 

NOTE 14 . OTHE:R EQUITY -
Particulars 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

a) Capital reserve 13484 134.84 
b) Capital redemption reserve 129.72 129.72 
c) Securities premium reserve 7.411.41 3.668.80 
dl Generai reserve 35.36 35.36 
e) F0rei!w Currency Translation Reserve I 

i) Exchange difference in translating the financial 
of a foreign operation 

Balanc<! at the beginning of the year ("4.25) (26.52) 
Add; Change:; in foreign cureney translation rese,,'e 3.67 2.27 
Balance at the end of the year (20.58 ) (24.25) 
e) Retained Earnings: 
Balance at the beginnino of the year 19.528.53 16.985.73 
Add; Profit for the year (19.984.06) 2.674.85 
Add; Other Comprehensive Income (65.14) (2.10) 
Less; Di vidend.P<J::Equ"",\q!ulres (129.95) (129.95) 
Balance a~.a!·tl\e encf-of@.l~r (650.62) 19,528.53 
Total /./~~-:? .... / ~~ .. ...;\\ 7,040.13 23.473.00 

~~" il ~ . ~ o"""·-''''' <-~ ~~~. ~;:~ m 
, ~ CD~~O '" 
~6~OZ -4' <1'.,. -~ o 0;. 

"O .... AL * ~l.~ -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

NOTEr NC B :l : on urrent orrowmgs 

ParticIuars 

Term loans from banks. secured 
Term loans from others. unsecured 
Total 

NOTE 16 . Non Current Provisions 

ParticIuars 

Provision for gratuity 

Total 

NOTE 17:- CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAX 

As at As at 
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

- 4,136.71 
- 643.10 

- 4,779.81 

As at As at 
31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

- 206.91 

- 206.91 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 ,March 31 , 
2022 are: 

a) Income tax expense 

Particulars 

i) Current tax 
Current tax on profits for the year 
Adjustments for current tax of prior period 
Total current tax expense 
ii) Deferred tax 
(Decrease) I Increase in deferred tax liabilities 
Decrease I (Increase) in deferred tax assets 
Total deferred tax expensel(benefit) 

Income tax ex-pense 

b) Current tax liabilities (net) 

Particulars 

Provision for tax (net of taxes paid) 

Total [ 

c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

As at 
31-03-2023 

5.48 
-

5.48 

-421.77 

-

(421.77) 
(416.29) 

As at 
31-03-2023 

-

As at 
31-03-2022 

954.53 
-

954.53 

34.70 
-

34.70 
989.23 

As at 
31-03-2022 

169.04 

169.04 

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to the below items and corresponding movement in deferred tax 
liabilities I (assets) : 

Particulars 
As at (Charged) I As at (Charged) I 

31-03-2023 Credited 31-03-2022 Credited 
Property. plant and equipment & Intangible assets p&1 - (466.52) 466.52 35.12 
Fair valuation of term loan p&J - - - (0.42) 

Remeasurment of Defined Employee Benefit Plans-OCI - -22.30 22.30 4.48 
Foreign Currency Transalation difference-OCI - 67.05 (67.05) (5 .19) 
Net deferred tax (asseQ,. , - (421.77) 421.77 33.99 

fi,~~~ ' ~ -;~~ 

~; (!J ~~:"g", V 
~?;;::;~ t- ) 
~~~!z :: 

~::::::: ~ ~ 

- " "o."'Il ,.. \\ ~ -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCL-\L STATEMENTS 
( ~ in Lath unless otherwise stated) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE:'vIENTS 
(~ in Lakh unles~ otherwise stated) 

NOTE 23 . REVENUE FROM OPERA. nONS 

Particulars 

(a) Sale of Products 
Computer Componen::s & Others 

Tiltal (a) 

(b) Sale of services 
Product support services 
Total (b) 

Total 

NOTE 24 . OTHER INCOI\-IE . 
Particulars 

Interest from bank deposits 
Interest from others 
Rent Income 
Miscella.'leous income 

I 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

372.618.40 419.516.50 

372,618.40 419,516.50 

1.330.07 1.233.68 
1,330.07 1.233.68 

373,948.47 420.750.18 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 

469.93 374.15 
93.09 1,253.80 
35.92 14.28 
3.77 2.73 

I Total 602.71 1.644.96 

NOTE 25: PURCHASE OF STOCK·IN-TR.4.DE 

Particulars 
As at As at 

~Iarch 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 
Computer Components & Others 342.344.37 414.911.46 

Total 342,344.37 414,912.46 

NOTE 26 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN­
PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE 

Particulars 

(2) Stocks at the end of the year 
Stock-in-trade 
Total (a) 

Less: 
(b) Stocks at beginning of the year 
Stock-in-trade 
Total (b) 

(Increase) I Decrease in stocks 

NOTE 27 • EMPLOYEE BE1'I"EFIT EXPENSES . 
Particulars 

Salaries. wages and bonus 

Contribution to provident and other funds 
Gratuity 
Staff welfare 
Total 

NOTE 28 : FlNA."iCE COSTS 

Particulars 

Interest on borrowings (at amortised cost) 
Interest on Preference Shares 
Total 

As at 
March 31. 2023 

16.735.38 
16,735.38 

43.697.63 
43,697.63 

26,962.25 

As at 
March 31. 2023 

3.210.91 
60.86 

116.98 
55.16 

3,443.91 

As at 
March 31. 2023 

7.379.13 

7.379.13 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

43.697.63 
43,697.63 

31.938.80 
31,938.80 

(11,738.83) 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

3.298.95 
71 .33 
58.13 
48.44 

3,476.85 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

7.410.19 
32.80 

7,442.99 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(~ in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

NOTE 29 . OTHER EXPENSES . 
Particulars 

Rent and compensation 
Power & fuel 
Rates and taxes 
Insurance 
Pavments to the statutorv auditors: 

a) Audit fees 
b) Tax matters 
c) Other matters 

Expenditure on Corporate Social Reponsibility 
Net exchange rate difference-Loss 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Impairment to Debtors 
Total 

NOTE 30:- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

As at As at 
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022 

757.73 709.63 
87.42 34.29 

- 47.75 
200.24 354.65 

16.50 20.42 
2.00 2.00 
1.50 1.50 

16.00 65.85 

10.83 48.15 
4,754.04 3,032.66 
8,392.70 -

14,238.96 4,316.90 l 

The disputed demands for taxes and other matters amounts as of the reporting period ends are respectively as 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31·03·2023 31-03·2022· 
Claims a2ainst the ComQanv n-ot acknowledged as debts 
Disputed demands in respect of V AT/Custom Duty 1,334.72 1,202.44 
Disputed demands in respect of Income Tax 6,554.45 -
(Based on legal opinion, the Company does not feel any liability will 
arise and hence no provision has been made in the accounts.) 

":"1 •. 

The Company does not envisage any likely reimbursements in respect of the above. 

The above matters are currently being considered by the tax authorities and the Company expects the judgment will 
be in its favour and has therefore, not recognised the provision in relation to these claims. Future cash outflow in 
respect of above will be determined only on receipt of judgement I decision pending with tax authorities. The 
potential undiscounted amount of total payments for taxes that the Company could be required to make if there was 
an adverse decision related to these disputed demands of regulators as of the date reporting period ends are as 
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NOTE 31:- EMPLOYEE BEl'<'Ef1T OBLIGATIO~S 
Funded Scheme 
a) Defined Benefit Plans: 
Gratuity 

The actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for the Gratuity was 
carried out as at March 31. 2022. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current servie 
cost and past service cost. were measured using the projected uni t credit method. 

Based on Acturial vluation obtained the following tablcsets out the status of Gratuity plan and amount recognised 
in the companies financial statements as at 31.03.2022. 

Due to the circumstances as stated in Note I. the company has provided for Gratuity of all eligible employees as 
payable as on 31.03.2023 at the time of seperation. 

A) Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial Position at 
Period-End 
Present Value of Funded Defined Benefit Obligation 
Fair value of Plan Assets 
JIIet Defined Benefit (Asset)lLiability Recognised in Statement of 
Financial Position 

B) Net Defined Benefit CostltIncome) included in Statement of 
Profit & Loss at Period-End 
Service Cost 
Interest Cost on DBO CA) 
Interest Income Plan Assets (B) 

Net Interest Cost (A) + (B) 
Past Service Cost 
Total Defined Benefit Costl(Income) included in Profit & Loss 

C) Current / ~on-Current Bifurcation 

Current Liability 
Non-Current Liability 
(Asset)lLiabilil)' Reco!!Ilised in the Balance Shel't 

D) Actual Return on Plan Assets 

Interest Income on Plan Assets 
Remeasurements on Plan Assets 
Actual Return on Plan Assets 

E) Analysis of Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive 
(Income) / Loss at Period-End 
Amount reco2:nized in OCI - Be2:innin2: of the period 
Remeasurements due to : 

Effect of chan2:e in financial assumptions u\) 
Effect of experience adjustments (B) 
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses (A) + (B) 
Return on Plan Assets (exculdin~ interest) 
Total remeasurements reco2:nized in OCI 
Amount reco:mized in OCI - End of the period 

F) Total Defined Benefit Cost / (Income) included in Profit & 
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
Amount reco2:nized in Protit & Loss. End of Period 
Amount reco2:nized in OCI. End of Period 
(Asset)lLiability Recognised in the Balance Sheet 

G) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the Period 

Defined Benefit Obligation. Beginning of the Period 
Net Current Service Cost 
Interest Cost on OBO 
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 

nefit Obligation, End of Period 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
T 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

(Rs in Lakhs) 
As at 

March 31. 2022 
748.51 
(] 1.60) 

236.91 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

41.16 
18.9? 
(1.95 ) 
16.97 

-
58.13 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

30.00 
206.91 
236.91 

As at 
Marcb 31. 2022 

1.95 
(5.85) 
(3.90) 

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

(70.81) 

(11.01) 
(!?64) 
(73.65) 

5.85 
(17.80) 
(88.61 ) 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

58.13 
(17.80) 
40.33 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

230.16 
4l.l6 
18.92 

(23.64) 
(I8.10) 
248.50 
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H) Change in Fair value of Plan Assets during the Period 
As at 

March 31. 2022 
Fair Value of Plan Assets, Be2:innin2: of the Period I 15.60 
Interest Income Plan Assets 1.95 
Actual Company Contributions 18.00 
Actuarial Gains I (Losses) (5.85) 
Benefits Paid I (18.10) 
Fair value of Plan Assets, End of Period I 11.60 

I) Reconciliation of Balance Sheet Amount 
1 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

Balance Sheet (Asset) I Liability. Bec innin2" of the Period I 214.57 
Total Char2"e/(Credit) Recognised in Profit and Loss 1 58.13 
Total Remeasurements Recognized in Other Comrehensive (Income) 

I 
(17.80) 

/ Loss 
Emplover Contributions I (18.00) 

Balance Sheet (Asset)lLiability, End of Period I 236,90 

J) Financial Assumptions Used to Determine the Defined Benefit I As at 
Obligation March 31. 2022 
Discount Rate I 7.50o/c 
Salary Escalation Rate I 5.00% 

K) Financial Assumptions Used to Determine the Profit & Loss I As at 
Charge March 31. 2022 
Discount Rate I 7.05% 
Salarv Escalation Rate I 5.00% 
Expected Return on Plan Assets T 7.05% 

L) Demographic Assumptions Used to Determine the Defined 
I 

As at 
Benefit Obligation March 31. 2022 
Withdrawal Rate: I 
UptO age 30 3.00% 
A2:e 31 to 40 2.00'70 
Aboye A2:e 40 1.00'70 
Mortality Rate IIALM (2012: 14) 
Retirement Age 58 years 

M) Asset Category 
As at 

I\Iarch 31. 2022 
Insurer Mana2:ed Funds 11.60 
Total I 11.60 

J) Expected cashflows for the next 10 years 
As at 

March 31. 2022 
Year-20?0 I -
Year-202I -

Year-?022 I -
Year-2023 52.53 
Year-2024 17.97 
Year-20?5 4.37 
Year-2026 I 4.61 
Year-2027 9.94 
Year-2027 to 2031 -
Year-2028 to ?032 85.08 

K) Defined Benefit Obligation - Sensitivity Analysis I 
As at 

March 31. 2022 
Discount Rate + 100 basis points I '26.83 
Discount Rate - 100 basis points 774.18 
Salarv Escalation Rate + 100 basis points 772.05 
Salary Escalation Rate - 100 basi s points 227.63 
Attrition Rate + 100 basis points 253.50 
Attrition Rate - 100 basis points )42.75 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts are in Rs. in Lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Note 32 
Segment Reporting 
The Company operates only in one reportable segment. 

Note 33 
Lease arrangements 

The Company procures office premises for its branches under operating lease 
agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both lessor and 
lessee. The initial tenure of the lease is below 12 months. The lease rentals recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year are Rs.753.74 lakh (previous year 
Rs.709.63 lakh). The contingent rent recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year is Rs.nil (previous year Rs.nil). 

NOTE 34- DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING 
STAND:\.RD (Ind AS) 33 EARNINGS PER SHARE -" . . 

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 
Face value of equity share (in Rs.) 2.00 2.00 
Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding (in Nos) 71,185,001 64,975 ,806 
Profit for the year (Rs. in Lakh) (20,049.20) 2.674.88 
Weighted average earnings per share (basic 

(28.16) 4.11 
and diluted) (in Rs.) 

NOTE 35 Capital management 

Risk Management 

The primary objective of Capital Management of the Company is to maximise 
Shareholder value. The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio which is 
total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of Capital Management, the 
Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to manage capital : 

Total equity includes General reserve, Retained earnings, Share capital, Security 
premium. Total debt includes current debt plus non-current debt less cash and cash 
equivalents & other Bank balances. 

Particulars As at 31103/2023 As at 31103/2022 

Total debt 50,535.61 50,881.09 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & Other Bank 
balances 9,286.93 8,468.40 
Net Debt 41,248.68 42,412.69 
Total equity 8,755.49 24.772.52 

~ . ' uity ratio I 4.71 1.71 

~ 
~ N-m~ ~ r,; Q "QCD 
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NOTE 36 Related Party Disclosures, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS 24) 
are given below: 

A. Relationships -

Category I: 
Subsidiaries: 
Compuage Infocom (S) Pte Ltd 

Category II: Jointly Controlled Entity: NA 

Category III: 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Atul H.Mehta 

Bhavesh H.Mehta 

Sunil Mehta (Resigned w.e.f. 28-02-2022) 

Anmol Jolly (Resigned w.e.f. 27-03-2022) 

Hasti Pala (w.e.f. 29-03-2022 to 30-03-2023) 

Non-Executive Directors 
G.S. Ganesh (Resigned w.e.f. 14-03-2023) 

Executive Director 

Executive Director 

Chief Financial Officer 

Company Secretary 

Company Secretary 

Vijay Agarwal (Resigned w.e.f. 29-03-2023) 
Fatima Hussain (Resigned w.e.f. 14-03-2023) 
Hetal Kudecha (w.e.f. 07-02-2022 to 29-03-2023) 
Virendra Bhatt (w.e.f 25-02-2021 to 02-05-2023) 

Category IV: 

Others (Close family member of KlVIP and Entities in which the KMP or close family member of 
K.MP have significant influence) 

Falguni A. Mehta 

Forum B. Mehta 

Ajay H. Mehta 

Trillizo Holdings Ltd. 

Pristine Care Products Pvt. Ltd. 

Transa ction "ith the related parties : 

Particulars of transactions 

Interest Paid to: 

Atul H.Mehta 

Bhavesh H.Mehta 

Falguni A. Mehta 

Forum B. Mehta 

Ajay H. Mehta 
Nisha S. Mehta 

Sunil M. Mehta HUF 

SU~l .~ 

, 

Wife of Atul H. Mehta 

Wife of Bhavesh H. Mehta 

Brother of Atul H. Mehta and Bhavesh H. Mehta 

Entity in which close family member of KMP has significant 
influence 

Entity in which close family member of K.T\1P has significant 
influence 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31103/2023 31/0312022 

60.41 29.21 

32.50 46.79 

2.66 3.85 

4.01 5.81 

19.12 16.38 

- 0.Q2 

- 0.21 

- 0.54 

{ 
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I 
Remuneration Paid to: 

Atul H.Mehta I 120.00 120.00 

Bhavesh H.Mehta 120.00 120.00 

Anmol Jolly (w.e.£. 01-10-2020 to 28-03-2022) I · 1 8.12 

Sunil Mehta (Resigned w.e.£. 28-02-2022) · 71.99 

Hasti Pala (w.e.£. 29-03-2022 to 30-03-2023) 1 4.19 0.05 

Sitting Fees to Non-Executive Directors 
Vijay Agarwal (Resigned w.e.f 29-03-2023) 6.00 6.00 

Fatima Nasab (Resigned w.e.f 14-03-2023) - 5.00 

Virendra Bhatt (Resigned w.e.f 02-05-2023) 6.00 7.00 

Hetal Kudecha (w,e,f07-02-2022 & Resigned w.e.f I 29-03-2023) 
7.00 2.00 

Rent Paid to: 

Trillizo Holdings Ltd. 1 15.00 15.00 

Printing & Stationery Paid to: 

Pristine Care Products Pvc. Ltd. · 0.53 

Balances due from/to the related parties: 

Particulars of transactions As at 31/03/2023 1 As at 31/0312022 

Outstanding receivables: I 
Trillizo Holdings Ltd. - 1 138.00 
Pristine Care Products Pvt. Ltd. - T 75.75 

Outstandinu pavabJes' ." . 
Atul H.Mehta 1,714.24 1,496.53 
Bhavesh H.Mehta 1,551.16 1.371.16 
Compuage Infocom (S) Pte Ltd 250.78 200.01 
Falguni A. Mehta - 44.56 
Forum B. Mehta - 67.23 
Ajay H. Mehta - 1,152.92 

Loan Taken from: 

Atul H.Mehta 880.00 1,358.00 
Bhavesh H.Mehta 358.00 1.030.00 

Liabilities Taken over : 

Atul H.Mehta 1,050.00 
Bhavesh H.Mehta 1,050.00 

Loan Repaid to : 

Atul H.Mehta 1,712.29 1,206.00 
Bhavesh H.Mehta 1.228.00 1,335.00 
Forum B. Mehta 67.23 

44.56 1 
1,152.92 
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NOTE 37: Outstanding dues of micro enterprise·and small enterprise 

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 to whom the company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and 
accordingly no additional disclosures have been made. 

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such 
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by 
the auditors. 

NOTE 38: 

Valuation of Imports calculated on C.LF. basis for One Year period ended 31 5t March 2023 is ~13,832.10 Lakhs 
(Previous year ~ 17,654.65 Lalch). 

NOTE 39:Foreign Currency transactions 

Expenditure in Foreign currency:. 
~ in takb) 

Particular Current Period 
Pre"ious 
Period 

Travelling - 2.37 

NOTE 40: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE 

Particular Current Period 
Pre"ious 
Period 

a) Amount required to be spend by the company during the year 67.77 64.81 

b) Actual amount spent by the company during the year 16.00 65 .85 
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -

ii) On purposes other than (i) above -
Contrubution to NGO's 16.00 65.10 
Contrubution to Companies own projects -

Total amount spent in cash - 0.75 
c) Short faIl at the end of the year (51.77) -
d) Total of the previos years shortfall - -
e) Reason of shortfall Liquidity issue NA 
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NOTE 41:Ratios I -- - ,t' , 
Particulars Numerator Denominator Current Period Previous Period Variance 

---
Current Ratio (times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.05 1.28 -17.97% 

- -

Debt Equity Ratio (times) (a) Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 5.77 2.24 157.59% 
- - -

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (times) (b) Earning available for Debt Service Debt Service -1.04 0.92 -213 .04% -

Return of Equity (ROE) (%)(ci Net Profit after Taxes Average Shareholders Equity -119.21% 11.38% -1147.54% 

-- -- -
Inventory Turnover Ratio (times) COGS Average Inventory 12.22 10.66 14.63% 

-- -- - - - -
- --

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (times) Revenue from Operations Average Trade Receivable 7.01 7.82 -\0.36% 
-- 1 ---- -- --- --- --

- - -- - ---
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (times) COGS Average Trade Payables 10.96 13.82 -20.69% 

-- ---
- - -

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (times) (eI) Revenue Average Working Captial 26.12 17.03 53.38% 
-- -- --- - ---

-- -
Net Profit Ratio (%) (e ) Net Profit after Taxes Revenue from Operations -5.34% 0.64% -934.37% 

--- -- -

- -- - -
R~t~-;~'-~n ' capita', E-~pl~'yed (%)(1[------ Profit before Interest & Taxes Total Assets-Current Liabilities -145.58% 36.80% -495.57 % 

-- - -- -- - --
- f-- ~p.jESN 

(a)- Reduction in shareholders equity, due to loss has resulted in an increase in this ratio . 
- - - - . v.., 

(b)- Loss during the year has resulted in decline in this ratio. 
- ( 

J IP REGN . NO ~ 
- ----- --- " IBBIIIPA-OOll * 

(c)- Loss during the year has resulted in decline in this ratio . IP·P01 6911 
-- --- - '" 20~9.~O~O ~ 

(d)- Reduction in average working capital, have resulted in reduction in ratio. U'_ "S~~, ' 
- - , -- - - - , 

(e)- Loss during the year has resulted in decline in this ratio. - --
(f)- loss during the year has resulted in decline in this ratio . 

-- -- - -- - __ .0",,- - ----
---- -L -- -- - -

-- ----- ~--

---. --- -- - --- -- ---

I 
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Note 42 Going Concern: 

The management of Compuage Infocom Limited had prepared and reviewed the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 st March 2023. These financial statements are presented with 
assumption that company will continue its operation as going concern and it has ability to 
meet its financial obligation and liabilities in normal course of business. 

As outlined in the accompanying financial statement and related notes, the company has faced 
significant challenges during financial year under review. These challenge include liquidity 
constraints, disruption in supply chain, difficulties in debt collection, and ongoing working 
capital issue. These factors have collectively resulted in financial stress, as reflected in 
financial statements. 

Management had taken several steps to address these challenges, including seeking support 
for a restructuring plan from lenders. The plan sought backing from lenders to re-establish 
Compuage as a going concern. The management remains committed to business revival with 
lenders support. While these measures are ongoing, their outcome remains uncertain, and 
there is no assurance that they will fully mitigate the Company's financial constraints. 

Pending outcome of CIRP, financial statements of the company have been prepared on going 
concern basis. 
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Note 43 

As mentioned in note 42 above, the Company was admitted under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, 
vide Order No CP (IB) 329IMB/2023 dated 02.11.2023 as part of the Corporate Insolvency Process, the 
Creditors of the Company were called upon to submit their claims to the Interim Resolution Professional 
(IRP) in terms of the applicable provisions of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). Claim 
submitted by creditors are being compiled and verified by the IRP and updated status is uploaded on the IBC 
portal. Based on the last updated list of creditors (version 5) a summary is provided as under. 

(Rsjn Lakhs) 
Amount of 

Category of No. of 
Summary of Summary of Claims 

Sum of Claims 
Claims Under under 

Creditor Claims 
Received 

Admitted 
Verification Verificatio 

n 
Secured financial 
creditors (other 
than financial 
creditors belonging 
to any class of 
creditors) 9 57,950.71 57.950.71 - -
Operational 
creditors (other 
than Workmen and 
Employees and 
Government Dues) 33 54,518.81 52.886.35 - (1.632.46) 
Unsecured 
financial creditors 
(other than 
financial creditors 
belonging to any 
class of creditors) 11 9.409.50 4,464.50 (3,265.40) (1,679.60) 
Operational 
creditors 
(Government 
Dues ) 5 1,314.81 1.101.02 - (213.79) 
Other creditors, if 
any, (other than 
financial creditors 
and operational 
creditors) 5 744.41 744.41 - -
Operational 
creditors 
(Employees) 31 104.59 104.59 - -

Grand Total 94 124,042.84 117,251.59 (3,265.40) I (3.525.84) 

The order dated 02.11.2023 imposes moratorium, in accordance with section 14 of the Code, 
and no interest is serviced during the CIRP period on the Loan outstanding as of the CIRP 
commencement date. The amount of claim admitted by the IRP may be different from the 
amount reflecting in the financial statements of the company as on 31.03.2023. Pending final 
outcome of the CIRP, no adjustments has been made in the financial statement for the 
differential amount, ~. ~~, 
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